
MIDWEST CITY 

MEETING AGENDAS FOR 

January 08, 2019 

NEW NOTICE: The Council has eliminated the Staff Briefings this year and will go directly into the 

City meetings down in the Council Chambers of City Hall at 6:00 PM. The Council will informally 

gather prior to the new 6:00 PM regular meeting in the second floor conference room for dinner; 

however, no City Council business will be discussed or acted upon and the room will be open to the 

public. Meals will only be provided to the City Council and staff. 

The 6:00 PM meetings will be shown live on Channel 20. 

The recorded video will be available on Youtube and the City’s website within 48 hours at 

www.youtube@midwestcityok.org. 

The meeting minutes and video can be found on the City’s website in the Agenda Center: 

https://midwestcityok.org/AgendaCenter. 

To make a special assistance request, call 739-1215 or email pmenefee@midwestcityok.org no 

less than 24 hours prior to the start of a meeting. If special assistance is needed during a 

meeting, call 739-1388. 



 

CITY OF MIDWEST CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

City Hall - Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

 

January 08, 2019 – 6:00 PM 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER. 

B.  OPENING BUSINESS. 

 Invocation by Public Works Director Vaughn Sullivan 

 Pledge of Allegiance by Carl Albert JROTC Cadets Karis Foster and Mercedees Hirsch 

 Community-related announcements and comments 

 
C.  CONSENT AGENDA.  These items are placed on the Consent Agenda so the Council, by 

unanimous consent, can approve routine agenda items by one motion. If any item proposed does 

not meet with the approval of all Council, or members of the audience wish to discuss an item, it 

will be removed and heard in a regular order. 

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular 

meeting of December 11, 2018, as submitted. (City Clerk - S. Hancock) 

 
2. Discussion and consideration of accepting the City Manager's Report for the month of 

November, 2018. (Finance - C. Barron) 

3. Discussion and consideration of supplemental budget adjustments to the following fund for FY 

2018-2019, increase: Reimbursed Projects Fund, revenue/ Miscellaneous (37) $470; expenses/ 

Housing (37) $470; revenue/Charges for Services (87) $9,600; expenses/Economic (87) 

$9,600. Capital Improvements Fund, expenses/Capital Improvements (57) $115,527. 

Employee Activity Fund, expenses/ MWC Activities (38) $150. Animals Best Friend Fund, 

revenue/Miscellaneous (00) $838; expenses/Animal Welfare (10) $838. Grants/Housing 

Activities Fund, revenue/ Intergovernmental (37) $194,995; expenses/Housing (37) $194,995. 

Capital Improvements Fund, revenue/Transfers In (00) $75,000; expenses/Capital 

Improvements (57) $75,000. (Finance - C. Barron) 

 
4. Discussion and consideration of accepting the financial audit of the City of Midwest City as of 

and for the year ended June 30, 2018. (C. Barron - Finance) 

5. Discussion and consideration of accepting the monthly report on the City of Midwest City 

Employees’ Health Benefits Plan by the City Manager and action as deemed necessary by the 

Council to maintain the plan. (Human Resources - C. Wilson) 

 
6. Consider and adopt a resolution fixing the amount of bonds to mature each year, fixing the 

time and place the bonds are to be sold, authorizing the Clerk to give notice of said sale as 

required by law, and declaring an emergency. (City Manager - G. Henson) 

 
7. Discussion and consideration of appointing the Mayor's nominee of Aaron Budd as the 

Midwest City representative to the newly formed Regional Transportation Authority of Central 

Oklahoma.
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Consent Agenda continued.   

8. Discussion and consideration of accepting a State and Local Assistance Performance Grant 

from and entering into an Agreement for the Sub-Grant of Emergency Management 

Performance Grant Program Funds with The State of Oklahoma Department of Emergency 

Management (OEM) in the amount of $20,000 effective October 1, 2018 to encourage the 

development of comprehensive disaster preparedness and assistance plans, programs, 

capabilities, and organizations by Tribal, State and Political Subdivisions. (Emergency 

Management - M. Bower) 

 
9. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into an agreement for professional 

services with Freese and Nichols, Inc. in the lump sum amount of $36,000 and an additional 

not to exceed fee of $5,000 (special services, if needed) for the engineering and design of the 

concrete trail along N.E. 23rd St. and improvements under the Crutcho Creek Bridge being 

part of Phase II of the SCIP Recreational Trail Project. (Grants Management – T. Craft) 

10. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into an IBM Maintenance Services 

Agreement from February 1, 2019 to April 30, 2019 with SPS VAR, LLC in the amount of 

$1,895.00 for hardware and software maintenance. (Information Technology - R. Rushing) 

 
11. Monthly Neighborhood Services report for November 2018. (Neighborhood Services - M. 

Stroh) 

 
12. Discussion and consideration of appointing Mr. Thomas Galbraith to fill the remaining term of 

Mr. Jeremy Griffin, ending March 26, 2019, on the Midwest City Park and Recreation Board, 

as Mr. Griffin has resigned, and to fill a full three-year term ending March 22, 2022. (Public 

Works - V. Sullivan) 

13. Discussion and consideration of accepting a proposal from Managing Results, LLC in the 

amount of $28,934 to prepare a City Strategic Plan. (City Manager - G. Henson) 

 
14. Discussion and consideration of approving a list of candidates for Municipal Judges consisting 

of Adam Bush, Gary Bachman, David Howell, and Joel Porter. (City Manager - G. Henson)  

D.     DISCUSSION ITEMS. 

1. (MP-13)  Discussion and consideration of approval of the Nash’s Addition Minor Plat located 

in the SE/4 of Section 12, T-11-N, R-2-W of the Indian Meridian, Oklahoma County, 

Oklahoma 

2. (PC – 1983) Public hearing with discussion and consideration of approval of an ordinance 

redistricting from R-6, Single Family Detached Residential to a Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) governed by the R-6, Single Family Detached Residential District, for the property 

described as a part of the NE/4 of Section 1, T-11-N, R-2-W, located in the 500 block of St. 

Paul Avenue. (Community Development - B. Harless) 

3. Discussion and consideration of appointing a Ward 5 and Ward 6 citizen to the Animal 

Ordinance Review Committee established at the December 11, 2018 City Council meeting to 

review and make recommendations regarding Midwest City animal ordinances relating to 

Chapter 8 – Animals and Fowl including Articles I through IX. (Police - B. Clabes)
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Discussion Items continued.   

 

4. Discussion and consideration of 1) establishing an Ad-Hoc Ordinance Oversight Council 

Committee to oversee ordinance updates; and 2) appoint three members of the City Council. 

(City Manager - G. Henson) 

 
5. Discussion and Consideration of an Ordinance Amending the Midwest City Municipal Code 

3121, Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1-15 and Municipal Code 3005, Chapter 28, 

Offenses - Miscellaneous, Article VIII, Dangerous Drugs, Section 28-133, and Providing For 

Repealer and Severability. (City Prosecutor/Assistant City Attorney - J. Horn)  

 
E.  NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. The purpose of the "Public Discussion Section" of the Agenda is 

for members of the public to speak to the City Council on any Subject not scheduled on the Regular Agenda. The 

Council shall make no decision or take any action, except to direct the City Manager to take action, or to schedule the 

matter for discussion at a later date. Pursuant to the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, the Council will not engage in any 

discussion on the matter until that matter has been placed on an agenda for discussion. THOSE ADDRESSING THE 

COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO STATE THEIR NAME AND ADDRESS PRIOR TO SPEAKING TO THE 

COUNCIL. 
  
F.    ADJOURNMENT. 

  



 

 

      

 CONSENT AGENDA 



A notice for staff briefings for the Midwest City Council was filed for the calendar year with the City Clerk of 

Midwest City. Public notice of this agenda was accessible at least 24 hours before this meeting at City Hall and on 

the Midwest City website (www.midwestcityok.org). 

Midwest City Council Staff Briefing Minutes 

December 11, 2018 – 6:00 PM 

This staff briefing was held in the Midwest City Council Conference Room on the second floor of City 

Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma. 

Mayor Matthew Dukes called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM with the following members present: 

Councilmembers Susan Eads, Españiola Bowen, Pat Byrne, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; 

and City Clerk Sara Hancock. Absent: none. 

DISCUSSION.  

Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or additional information for 

items on the City Council for December 11, 2018. Council and Staff discussed individual agenda 

items. 

Mayor Dukes adjourned the meeting at 6:12 PM. 

____________________________ 

ATTEST: MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Mayor 

_________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk 



A notice for staff briefings for the Midwest City Council was filed for the calendar year with the City Clerk of 

Midwest City. Public notice of this agenda was accessible at least 24 hours before this meeting at City Hall and on 

the Midwest City website (www.midwestcityok.org). 

  

 

 

 

Midwest City Council Minutes  

 

December 11, 2018 – 7:00 PM 

 

This meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chambers at City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, 

Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma.  

 

Mayor Matt Dukes called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM with the following members present: 

Councilmembers Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Españiola Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; 

and City Clerk Sara Hancock. Absent: none.  

 

Opening Business. Public Works Director Vaughn Sullivan opened with the invocation, followed by 

the Pledge of Allegiance led by Carl Albert JROTC Cadets Daniels and Debolt. Council and Staff made 

community-related announcements.  

 

Consent Agenda. Allen made a motion to approve the consent agenda, except for item 3, as submitted, 

seconded by Reed. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. 

Absent: none. Motion carried. 

 

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular meeting of 

November 27, 2018, as submitted. 

 

2. Discussion and consideration of supplemental budget adjustments to the following fund for FY 

2018-2019, increase: Grants Fund, revenue/Intergovernmental (90) $240,000; expenses/Hospital 

Authority (90) $240,000. 

 

3. Discussion and consideration of 1) passing and approving a resolution of support for the 

nomination of Mayor Matthew D. Dukes II for election to the District 8 seat on the Board of 

Directors of the Oklahoma Municipal League; and 2) declaring such nomination to be for the 

benefit of the City of Midwest City and other municipalities within the district; and declaring 

the mission of the Oklahoma Municipal League to be for the public purpose. Bowen made a 

motion to approve Resolution 2018-34 as submitted, seconded by Allen. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, 

Bowen, Reed, Allen, and Moore. Nay: none. Absent: none. Abstain: Mayor Dukes. Motion carried. 

 

4. Discussion and consideration of 1) approval of and entering into a project agreement with the State 

of Oklahoma, by and through the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department to receive 

$240,000 in grant funds for the design and construction of Phase II of the SCIP Recreational Trail 

and agreeing to provide $75,000 in local matching funds; 2) authorization of the Mayor, City 

Manager, and/or his designee to enter into the necessary contracts and documents to implement all 

aspects of the grant. 

 

5. Discussion and consideration of 1) approval of and entering into the Oklahoma Housing Finance 

Agency (OHFA) Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) grant contract to receive 

$194,995 for down payment and closing cost assistance in Midwest City and agreeing to provide 

$50,000 in banked matching funds; 2) authorization of the Mayor and City Manager to enter into the 

necessary contracts and certifications to implement all aspects of the grant.
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Consent Agenda continued.    

 

6. (PC – 1953) Discussion and consideration of 1) amending Resolution Number 2018-18 pertaining to 

amending the Comprehensive Plan from MH, Manufacture Home, to MDR, Medium Density 

Residential, for the property described as a tract of land lying in the NW/4 of Section 25, T-12-N, R-

2W, located at 2222 N. Douglas Blvd. 

 

7. Discussion and consideration of awarding the bid to and entering into a contract with MTZ 

Construction, Inc. in the amount of $213,617.00 for the Albert Drive, Caldwell Drive, and S.E. 6th 

Street Drainage Improvements Project. 

 

8. Discussion and consideration of (1) entering into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Cities 

of Oklahoma City, Del City and Oklahoma County to participate with those governmental entities in 

the 2018 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program Award; (2) agreeing to abide by 

the special conditions set forth within the grant language if approved; and (3) authorizing the mayor 

and/or city manager to execute such documents and enter into such agreements as are necessary or 

appropriate to carry out the objectives of the grant. 

 

9. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into a Sponsorship and Marketing 

Consulting Agreement with STAAR Solutions in the amount of $3,000 plus sponsorship sales 

commissions and a $2,500 stipend fee to MindsEye Advertising to effectively assist the City of 

Midwest City in achieving its goals and initiatives for the 2019 Star Spangled Salute Air Show. 

 

10. Discussion and consideration of 1) declaring an Air Science Technologies down flow workstation, 

serial number 211, as obsolete city equipment/property; and 2) authorizing the disposal of this 

property by public auction or sealed bid. 

 

Discussion Items. 

 

1. Discussion and consideration regarding a public presentation by Selser Schaefer Architects 

from Tulsa, OK. Hank Spieker and Brian Thomas spoke with Council. No action needed.  

 

2. Discussion and consideration of establishing an Animal Ordinance Review Committee to 

review and make recommendations regarding Midwest City animal ordinances relating to 

Chapter 8 – Animals and Fowl including Articles I through IX consisting of three Council 

members and a citizen from each ward nominated by their Councilmember. Bowen made a 

motion to appoint Councilmembers Allen, Moore and Bowen, as submitted, along with Midwest 

City citizens; Amy Otto of Ward 1, Lindsey Hutchenson of Ward 2, Kim Templeman of Ward 3, and 

Sydni Boyd of Ward 4, seconded by Eads. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, 

and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. Motion carried. 

 

New Business/Public Discussion.  
 

There was no new business or public discussion.
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Executive Session.  
 

1. Discussion and consideration of (1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 O.S. § 

307 (B)(4), to discuss Matthew Myers v. Jaleel Mure and the City of Midwest City as 

Intervenor, Case No. CJ-2018-1265, and (2) in open session, authorizing the city manager to 

take action as appropriate based on the discussion in executive session. 

This executive session was not needed.  

Adjournment.  
 

There being no further business, Mayor Dukes adjourned the meeting at 7:37 PM. 

 

 

ATTEST:         

 

_____________________________ 

         MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Mayor  

 

__________________________ 
SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk  



 

 The City of 

MIDWEST CITY 
___________________________________________________________ 

100 N. MIDWEST BLVD * MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 73110  
(405) 739-1245 * FAX (405) 739-1247 * TDD (405) 739-1359 

             
            Memorandum 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Council 

 

FROM: Christy Barron, Finance Director 

 

DATE:  January 8, 2019 

 

Subject:    Discussion and consideration of accepting the City Manager's Report for the 

month of November, 2018. 

 

The funds in November that experienced a significant change in fund balance from the October 

report are as follows: 

 

Hotel/Conference Center (195) had an operational gain of $30,116 in November. 

 

Golf (197) had an operational loss of $34,395 in November. 

 

Sooner Rose TIF (352) decreased due to the payments to SR2 DEV LLC for:  

 Driveway improvements                                                                      <$131,089> 

Retail second amendment contribution                                                <$265,000> 

 

MWC Hospital Authority (425) activities for November: 

            Compounded Principal (9010) – unrealized gain on investment          $1,320,680 

            Discretionary (9050) – unrealized gain on investment                            $271,903 

                                                                                                    

   This item is at Council’s discretion. 
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  City of Midwest City

 Financial Summary by Fund

 for Period Ending November, 2018
    (Unaudited)

Fund 

Number

Fund                                                          

Description
Assets Liabilities

6-30-18 Fund 

Balance
Revenues Expenditures Gain or (Loss)

 Fund 

Balance

9 GENERAL GOVERNMENT SALES TAX       2,656,422                       -            2,364,357        1,023,703          (731,638) 292,065                  2,656,422 

10 GENERAL       5,358,609           (136,431)            4,924,165      15,783,055     (15,485,041) 298,014                  5,222,178 

11 CAPITAL OUTLAY RESERVE          933,807                       -              924,939              8,868                      - 8,868                         933,807 

13 STREET AND ALLEY FUND       1,465,837                       -            1,237,093           241,883           (13,140) 228,744                  1,465,837 

14 TECHNOLOGY FUND          174,169                       -              263,115           157,839          (246,785) (88,945)                      174,169 

15 STREET LIGHT FEE       1,327,229                       -            1,103,255           249,960           (25,986) 223,974                  1,327,229 

16 REIMBURSED PROJECTS          634,418           (184,121)              580,104             53,213          (183,020) (129,808)                    450,297 

17 29TH & DOUGLAS PROPERTY       5,500,249                       -            5,500,144                 105                      - 105                         5,500,249 

20 MWC POLICE DEPARTMENT       3,099,045                       -            2,477,841        6,516,488       (5,895,284) 621,204                  3,099,045 

21 POLICE CAPITALIZATION          706,992                       -              411,574           337,558           (42,139) 295,418                     706,992 

25 JUVENILE FUND            42,836                       -                55,803             22,746           (35,713) (12,967)                        42,836 

30 POLICE STATE SEIZURES            71,408                       -                65,811              6,348                (750) 5,598                           71,408 

31 SPECIAL POLICE PROJECTS            77,195                       -                78,654              5,477             (6,936) (1,460)                         77,195 

33 POLICE FEDERAL PROJECTS            65,705                       -                66,543                 371             (1,209) (838)                            65,705 

34 POLICE LAB FEE FUND            18,001                       -                16,064              6,701             (4,764) 1,937                           18,001 

35 EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY FUND            20,782                       -                20,717                 971                (906) 65                                20,782 

36 JAIL          135,646                       -              120,161             45,664           (30,179) 15,485                       135,646 

37 POLICE IMPOUND FEE          193,253                       -              208,443             27,577           (42,766) (15,190)                      193,253 

40 MWC FIRE DEPARTMENT       2,191,691                     (4)            1,530,845        5,079,583       (4,418,741) 660,842                  2,191,687 

41 FIRE CAPITALIZATION          741,955                       -              615,372           248,958          (122,375) 126,583                     741,955 

45 MWC WELCOME CENTER          359,960                 (154)              345,044             94,036           (79,274) 14,762                       359,806 

46 CONV / VISITORS BUREAU          191,324                       -              170,847           154,380          (133,903) 20,477                       191,324 

50 DRAINAGE TAX FUND            15,146                       -                14,670                 476                      - 476                              15,146 

60 CAPITAL DRAINAGE IMP          519,033                       -              484,549           194,026          (159,542) 34,483                       519,033 

61 STORM WATER QUALITY       1,074,862                       -            1,022,326           325,145          (272,609) 52,536                    1,074,862 

65 STREET TAX FUND       1,442,448                       -            1,294,577           197,546           (49,676) 147,870                  1,442,448 

70 EMERGENCY OPER  FUND          668,654                       -              666,108           228,517          (225,971) 2,545                         668,654 

75 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN          362,539                       -              323,195           419,391          (380,047) 39,344                       362,539 

80 INTERSERVICE FUND          377,421                       -              324,335        1,072,578       (1,019,492) 53,086                       377,421 

81 SURPLUS PROPERTY          363,259           (283,348)                75,599             22,082           (17,770) 4,312                           79,911 

115 ACTIVITY FUND          337,117                   (79)              361,252             59,945           (84,159) (24,214)                      337,038 

123 PARK & RECREATION          650,577                 (200)              560,631           230,343          (140,597) 89,745                       650,377 

141 COMM. DEV. BLOCK GRANT              6,039                   (10)                  6,029           254,089          (254,089) -                                    6,029 

142 GRANTS/HOUSING ACTIVITIES          164,257               (4,500)              154,840           108,199          (103,282) 4,917                         159,757 

143 GRANT FUNDS          109,813             (49,813)                60,000             65,254           (65,254) -                                  60,000 



  City of Midwest City

 Financial Summary by Fund

 for Period Ending November, 2018
    (Unaudited)

Fund 

Number

Fund                                                          

Description
Assets Liabilities

6-30-18 Fund 

Balance
Revenues Expenditures Gain or (Loss)

 Fund 

Balance

157 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS       2,748,218                       -            2,533,542           238,167           (23,491) 214,676                  2,748,218 

172 CAP.   WATER   IMP-WALKER          922,553               (3,578)              775,403           216,235           (72,662) 143,573                     918,976 

178 CONST LOAN PAYMENT REV       2,927,682                       -            2,640,106           344,975           (57,399) 287,576                  2,927,682 

184 SEWER BACKUP FUND            81,349                       -                80,576                 773                      - 773                              81,349 

186 SEWER CONSTRUCTION       3,738,581           (175,000)            3,396,171           635,005          (467,595) 167,410                  3,563,581 

187 UTILITY SERVICES          504,076                 (924)              430,911           488,960          (416,719) 72,241                       503,152 

188 CAP. SEWER IMP.-STROTH          474,204               (1,945)              387,633           175,655           (91,029) 84,626                       472,259 

189 UTILITIES CAPITAL OUTLAY       2,622,538             (75,798)            2,212,408           404,315           (69,983) 334,332                  2,546,740 

190 MWC SANITATION DEPARTMENT       2,416,086                       -            2,532,079        2,604,063       (2,720,056) (115,993)                 2,416,086 

191 MWC WATER DEPARTMENT       2,291,789                       -            1,964,796        2,852,114       (2,525,121) 326,993                  2,291,789 

192 MWC SEWER DEPARTMENT       1,074,800                 (153)            1,059,189        2,302,064       (2,286,606) 15,458                    1,074,646 

193 MWC UTILITIES AUTHORITY          925,204                       -              916,418              8,786                      - 8,786                         925,204 

194 DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT       2,692,395               (2,075)            2,937,767             46,209          (293,655) (247,446)                 2,690,320 

195 HOTEL/CONFERENCE CENTER          810,073           (630,692)              130,617        2,188,452       (2,139,688) 48,764                       179,381 

196 HOTEL 4% FF&E          797,996                       -              820,955             87,538          (110,497) (22,959)                      797,996 

197 JOHN CONRAD REGIONAL GOLF          134,007               (1,620)              121,184           439,620          (428,416) 11,204                       132,387 

201 URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY            52,922                       -                57,066                 519             (4,663) (4,144)                         52,922 

202 RISK MANAGEMENT       1,289,574                   (37)            1,718,668           379,678          (808,809) (429,131)                 1,289,537 

204 WORKERS COMP       2,636,040                       -            2,563,722           445,273          (372,955) 72,318                    2,636,040 

220 ANIMALS BEST FRIEND            70,257                       -                73,944             12,359           (16,047) (3,687)                         70,257 

225 HOTEL MOTEL FUND                      -                       -                          -           272,474          (272,474) -                                           - 

230 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS       1,460,583        (1,460,583)                          -             14,027           (14,027) -                                           - 

235 MUNICIPAL COURT            55,040             (55,040)                          -                 455                (455) -                                           - 

240 L & H BENEFITS       2,032,989             (51,090)            2,215,453        3,502,974       (3,736,528) (233,554)                 1,981,899 

250 CAPITAL IMP REV BOND       4,626,458      (51,938,123)        (49,026,543)        6,252,884       (4,538,006) 1,714,878            (47,311,665)

269 2002 G.O. STREET BOND          462,416                       -              458,027              4,388                      - 4,388                         462,416 

310 DISASTER RELIEF       1,251,412           (165,130)            1,157,477           137,153          (208,348) (71,195)                   1,086,282 

340 REVENUE BOND SINKING FUND                      -                       -                          -        2,374,662       (2,374,662) -                                           - 

350 G. O. DEBT SERVICES          129,286                       -              124,438             25,485           (20,636) 4,849                         129,286 

352 SOONER ROSE TIF       7,868,279                       -            8,318,025           102,462          (552,208) (449,745)                 7,868,279 

353 ECONOMIC DEV AUTHORITY     51,372,648      (50,551,808)              349,514           566,606           (95,280) 471,326                     820,841 

425-9010 MWC HOSP AUTH-COMP PRINCIPAL     90,081,500        (8,017,466)          82,962,227           935,093       (1,833,285) (898,192)               82,064,035 

425-9020 MWC HOSP AUTH-LOAN RESERVE       3,001,493           (501,493)            2,500,000             25,011           (25,011) -                             2,500,000 

425-9050 MWC HOSP AUTH-DISCRETIONARY     12,707,580             (18,441)          10,958,390        2,025,290          (294,542) 1,730,748             12,689,138 

425-9060 MWC HOSP IN LIEU OF/ROR/MISC       5,929,766           (154,711)            5,783,307           959,938          (968,188) (8,250)                    5,775,057 

TOTAL 242,247,491 (114,464,363)        121,582,471 64,312,736 (58,112,077)          6,200,659 127,783,130



The City of 

MIDWEST CITY 

___________________________________________________________ 

100 N. MIDWEST BLVD * MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 73110 

(405) 739-1245 * FAX (405) 739-1247 * TDD (405) 739-1359

Memorandum 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Council 

FROM: 

DATE:  

Subject:   

Christy Barron, Finance Director 

January 8, 2019 

Discussion and consideration of supplemental budget adjustments to the 

following fund for FY 2018-2019, increase: Reimbursed Projects Fund, 

revenue/Miscellaneous (37) $470; expenses/Housing (37) $470; revenue/

Charges for Services (87) $9,600; expenses/Economic (87) $9,600.  Capital 

Improvements Fund, expenses/Capital Improvements (57) $115,527. Employee 

Activity Fund, expenses/MWC Activities (38) $150. Animals Best Friend Fund, 

revenue/Miscellaneous (00) $838; expenses/Animal Welfare (10) $838. Grants/

Housing Activities Fund, revenue/Intergovernmental (37) $194,995; expenses/

Housing (37) $194,995. Capital Improvements Fund, revenue/Transfers In (00) 

$75,000; expenses/Capital Improvements (57) $75,000. 

The first supplement is needed to budget donations and expenses for Autumn House 

Christmas Buckets Project. The second supplement is needed to budget advertising revenue from 

bus stop shelters to be used for upkeep of the shelters. The third supplement is needed to 

budget additional expenses for Caldwell Drainage Improvements Project and Roefan & 

Hand Water Line Project. The fourth supplement is needed to budget additional expenses 

for employee Christmas party. The fifth supplement is needed to budget insurance recovery 

from damaged Animal Welfare truck to be used for repairs of the truck. The sixth 

supplement is needed to budget 2018 OHFA Home Investment Partnership Program Grant.  

The seventh supplement is needed to budget transfer in from Hospital Authority Fund and 

associated expense for matching cost of SCIP Trail Phase II Project. 
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SUPPLEMENTS

January 8, 2019

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

REIMBURSED PROJECTS (016) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

37 Miscellaneous 470

37 Housing 470

470 0 470 0

Explanation:

To budget donations and expenses for Autumn House Christmas Buckets Project.

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

REIMBURSED PROJECTS (016) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

87 Charges for Services 9,600

87 Economic 9,600

9,600 0 9,600 0

Explanation:

To budget advertising revenue from bus stop shelters to be used for upkeep of the shelters.

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS (157) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

57 Capital Improvements 115,527

0 0 115,527 0

Explanation:

To budget additional expenses for Caldwell Drainage Improvements Project ($113,617) and Roefan & Hand Water Line Project

($1,910).  Funding to come from fund balance.

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY (035) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

38 MWC Activities 150

0 0 150 0

Explanation:

To budget additional fees for employee Christmas party.  Funding to come from fund balance.



SUPPLEMENTS

January 8, 2019

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

ANIMALS BEST FRIEND (220) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

00 Miscellaneous 838

10 Animal Welfare 838

838 0 838 0

Explanation:

To budget insurance recovery from damaged animal welfare truck to be used for repairs.

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

GRANTS/HOUSING ACTIVITIES (142) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

37 Intergovernmental 194,995

37 Housing 194,995

194,995 0 194,995 0

Explanation:

To budget 2018 OHFA Home Investment Partnership Program grant.

Fund BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS (157) Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue Budget Appropriations

Dept Number Department Name Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

00 Transfers In 75,000

57 Capital Improvements 75,000

75,000 0 75,000 0

Explanation:

To budget transfer in from Hospital Authority Fund and associated expense for matching cost of SCIP Trail Phase 2 Project.



THE CITY OF 

 MIDWEST CITY 

    Finance Department 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM:  Christy Barron, Finance Director 

DATE: January 8, 2018 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of accepting the financial audit of the City of Midwest City 

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

The financial audit for the City of Midwest City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and the 

required communications by the auditor are attached to your council agenda. The financial audit report 

expressed an unmodified opinion for the year ending June 30, 2018 with no audit adjustments.  

The auditor communicated three uncorrected misstatements that are immaterial, both individually and in 

the aggregate, to the City’s financial position.   Therefore, no audit adjustments were required. The 

uncorrected misstatements related to 1) OPEB liability errors in actuarial assumptions, 2) entry of prior 

year expenses for hospital authority mowing fees and 3) accrual of accounts payable liability. 

There was one internal control finding relating to the health insurance census data.  This data is sent to the 

actuary to calculate the estimated liability for the retiree health insurance that is presented in the financial 

statements.  The auditor found errors in the hire dates and tiers of coverage listed on the census data 

provided to the actuary that could impact the estimates provided.  The finding is contained in the 

document titled “Required Communications” under the section Findings Related to the Financial 

Statements. 

Mike Gibson of RSM US LLP will be at the January 8, 2018 meeting to present the audit report and 

answer any questions about the audit report and audit finding. 

The Federal threshold for requiring an audit of Federal grant compliance requirements was $750,000 for 

fiscal year 2017-18.  Since the City did not expend more than $750,000 in Federal funds during fiscal 

year 2017-18, a Federal single audit was not required.  

Attachments:   Financial Audit Report - FY17-18 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Midwest City 
Midwest City, Oklahoma 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Midwest City, 
Oklahoma, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 
2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Emphasis of Matters 
As explained in Note 7 to the financial statements, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, which restated beginning net 
position and other postemployment benefits liability of the governmental activities, business-type activities 
and the Midwest City Municipal Authority. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the pension and other post-employment benefit schedules, and the general fund, 
police fund, and fire fund budgetary comparison schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements, and the schedule of debt service requirements, listed in the table of contents as other 
supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. These statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the 
schedule of debt service coverage requirements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The accompanying statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 

 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
December 21, 2018 
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The City of Midwest City’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in 
focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, (c) 
identify changes in the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent years’ 
challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) 
identify individual fund issues or concerns.  
 
Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s 
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the City’s 
financial statements beginning on page 20. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, by $506,373,292 (net position).  Of this amount, unrestricted net 
position of the governmental activities was a deficit of $48,409,654, with the business type activities 
reporting a positive unrestricted net position of $10,629,478. The unrestricted net position, when not 
in a deficit position, may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors.   

 
   The Primary Government’s total net position increased by $1,150,146 or .23% from the prior year.  

This was a result of a decrease of $1,916,773 in the governmental activities while the business-type 
activities had an increase of $3,066,919.  Expenses increased over the prior year.  The detailed 
changes made from the Governmental Fund Statements to the Statement of Net Position can be found 
on page 24.  
 

 The City’s total deferred inflows increased by $4,286,229 or, 530%. This is mainly due to increases 
of police and fire pension related deferred inflows and deferred inflows related to total OPEB 
liability, which resulted from the implementation of the new GASB standard. 

  
 Sales tax is the major source of revenue for governmental activities.  Sales and use tax collections for 

fiscal year 2018 totaled $36,830,105 compared to FY 2017 which totaled $32,765,177.  The total 
increase in sales and use tax collections was $4,064,928. The City passed a .75% sales and use tax 
increase effective January 1, 2018 (total rate increased from 3.85% to 4.6%).  The .75% sales and use 
tax is dedicated to the following:  .32% - police department; .22% - fire department; and .21% general 
operations (a special revenue fund).  The City began collecting the sales and use tax increase in 
March 2018. A historical review of governmental activity revenues can be found in the statistical 
information section of the report.  

 
 The City’s total deferred outflows decreased by $236,788 or, 2.15%. This is mainly due to decreases 

of police and fire pension related deferred outflows.  

    At the end of the fiscal year 2018, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $2,445,261 
or 8.4% of General Fund revenues. 

 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of 
Midwest City’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise of three 
components:  (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the 
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financial statements.    This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. 
 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to the private-sector 
business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows,  
liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference between the four elements reported as net position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator on whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless 
of when cash is received or paid.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some 
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and fines and 
earned but not used vacation and sick leave as stated in City policy and union contracts).  Both the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting as opposed to the modified accrual basis used for Fund Financial Statements of the 
governmental funds. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided between two types of 
activities: 
 
    Governmental activities.  Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general 

government, public safety, streets, culture and recreation, health and welfare and economic 
development.  Sales taxes and franchise taxes finance most of these activities as reflected on page 20. 

   
    Business-type activities.  The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of services it 

provides.  The City’s utility system (water, sewer, sanitation, and drainage), conference center/hotel, 
golf, trailer park and industrial park activities are reported here. 

 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Fund financial statements 
provide detailed information about the most significant funds, but not the City as a whole.  Some funds 
are required to be established by state law or bond covenants.  However, the City Council establishes 
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other monies.  All of the funds of the City 
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
 Governmental funds.   The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, 

which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are 
available for spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting method identified as the 
modified accrual basis of accounting which measures cash and all other financial assets that can 
readily be converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view 
of the City’s general governmental operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental fund 
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
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be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  By comparing information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government’s near-term financing decisions.  The relationship or differences between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds are detailed in a reconciliation following the fund financial statements on page 24 
and 26 of this report.  

 
The City of Midwest City maintains individual governmental funds.  Information is presented 
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Police, Fire, Hospital Authority, 
Sooner Rose TIF, and Economic Development Authority funds.  Data from the debt service fund, 15 
special revenue funds, and 5 capital project funds, all of which are considered to be governmental, are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements starting on page 84 of this 
report. 
 

     Proprietary funds.  The City charges customers for certain services it provides, whether to outside 
customers or to other units within the City.  These services are generally reported in proprietary 
funds.  Proprietary funds are reported in the same manner that all activities are reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.  In fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are similar to the business-type activities that are reported in the 
Government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.  
The internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are utilized to report activities 
that provide supplies and services for the City’s other programs and activities, such as the risk 
management functions, health self-insurance fund, fleet services, surplus property activities and 
public works function.  Because these services benefit both governmental and business-type 
functions, they have been included in both the governmental and business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

 
The City of Midwest City maintains one major enterprise fund.  The City uses this fund to account for 
its water, sewer, sanitation, conference center/hotel, debt service, utility services, utility capital, 
customer deposits, golf and drainage operations.  The fund provides the same type of information as 
the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail and includes some of the internal 
service fund-type activity.  The City considers this enterprise fund activity to be a major fund.  Data 
from 2 non-major enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual 
fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining 
statements starting on page 93 of this report. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
 

As of June 30, 2018, the City’s combined net position is $506,373,292, of which $388,265,366 can be 
attributed to governmental activities and $118,107,926 is attributed to business-type activities. This 
analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the City’s 
governmental and business-type activities. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net position, 81.7%, reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, water rights, building, machinery and equipment, less any related debt used to acquire those 
assets that is still outstanding).  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. The net change in capital assets can be reviewed in Table 1 with key element 
changes shown in Table 3. 
 

TABLE 1
NET POSITION

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.
(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

Restated, Restated, Restated,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and other assets 230,165$       156,720$      47% 24,695$      21,675$    14% 254,860$      178,395$   43%
Capital assets 310,564         318,064        -2% 155,810      160,373    -3% 466,374        478,437     -3%
     Total assets 540,729         474,784        14% 180,505      182,048    -1% 721,234        656,832     10%
Deferred outflow of resources 9,712             10,759          -10% 1,059          1,111        -5% 10,771          11,870       -9%

Long-term obligations outstanding 144,664         23,719          510% 60,500        65,566      -8% 205,164        89,285       130%
Other liabilit ies 13,000           70,835          -82% 2,375          2,552        -7% 15,375          73,387       -79%
     Total liabilities 157,664         94,554          67% 62,875        68,118      -8% 220,539        162,672     36%
Deferred inflow of resources 4,512             807               459% 581             -            100% 5,093            807            531%

Net position:
  Net investment in capital assets 308,253         316,764        -3% 105,459      105,420    0% 413,712        422,184     -2%
   Restricted 128,422         104,189        23% 2,020          1,938        4% 130,442        106,127     23%
   Unrestricted (deficit) (48,410)         (30,771)         57% 10,629        7,683        38% (37,781)         (23,088)      64%
     Total net position 388,265$       390,182$      0% 118,108$    115,041$  3% 506,373$      505,223$   0%

 (In Thousands)

Total Primary Government
Governmental

Activities Activities
Business-Type

 
 

Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $1,916,773 or .49%. The business type 
activities increased the City’s net position by $3,066,919 or 2.66% for a net increase of $1,150,146, or 
.23%.  The key elements of these changes are contained in Table 2.      
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% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenues:
Program revenues:
  Charges for services 8,688$        7,709$      13% 29,161$    28,977$    1% 37,849$   36,686$   3%
  Operating grants and contributions 4,460          4,960        -10% 2               -           100% 4,462       4,960       -10%
  Capital grants and contributions 2,525          2,604        -3% -            -           0% 2,525       2,604       -3%
General revenues:
  Sales and use taxes 36,830        32,765      12% -            -           0% 36,830     32,765     12%
  Other taxes 5,307          5,004        6% -            -           0% 5,307       5,004       6%
  Other general revenue 13,375        14,227      -6% 109           (32)           -441% 13,484     14,195     -5%
     Total revenues 71,185        67,269      6% 29,272      28,945      1% 100,457   96,214     4%
Program expenses:
  General government 7,653          7,449        3% -            -           -      7,653       7,449       3%
  Public safety 29,070        29,356      -1% -            -           -      29,070     29,356     -1%
  Streets 15,082        15,169      -1% -            -           -      15,082     15,169     -1%
  Cultural, parks and recreation 1,928          1,887        2% -            -           -      1,928       1,887       2%
  Health and welfare 416             405           3% -            -           -      416          405          3%
  Economic development 13,829        6,773        104% -            -           -      13,829     6,773       104%
  Interest expense 2,379          1,347        77% -            -           -      2,379       1,347       77%
  Water -              -            -     6,648        6,717        -1% 6,648       6,717       -1%
  Sewer -              -            -     8,098        8,077        0% 8,098       8,077       0%
  Sanitation -              -            -     4,579        4,439        3% 4,579       4,439       3%
  Drainage -              -            -     662           657           1% 662          657          1%
  Conference center -              -            -     7,749        8,053        -4% 7,749       8,053       -4%
  Other activities -              -            -     1,214        1,228        -1% 1,214       1,228       -1%
     Total expenses 70,357        62,386      13% 28,950      29,171      -1% 99,307     91,557     8%
     Excess (deficiency) before
       transfers 828             4,883        -83% 322           (226)         -242% 1,150       4,657       -75%
Transfers (2,745)         (3,963)       -31% 2,745        3,963        -31% -           -           
Increase (decrease)

  in net position (1,917)$       920$         -308% 3,067$      3,737$      -18% 1,150$     4,657$     -75%

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Total Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

(In Thousands)

 
 
Governmental Activities. The revenues reflect an increase over last year of $3,918,496. This increase 
is primarily the result of an increase in the sales and use tax rate from 3.85% to 4.6% effective January 
1, 2018.  The City starting collecting the increased sales and use tax in March 2018.  Sales and use tax 
collections increased $4,064,928 in FY 2018. 
 
The most significant governmental activities expense was providing public safety with a cost of 
$29,069,958. These expenses were funded by revenue collected from a variety of sources with the 
largest being a transfer from General Fund to the Police and Fire Special Revenue Funds in the amount 
of $18,883,771 and dedicated sales tax of $7,676,485 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  The 
most significant portion of public safety expense is the cost of personnel. Salaries and benefits totaled 
$25,659,761. Other significant governmental expenses are for the streets in the amount of $15,082,019 
of which $12,041,992 is depreciation expense, economic development which increased by $7,057,627 
in FY 2018 because the City started construction on a new Tax Incentive Financing District, and 
interest expense which increased by $1,031,969 in FY 2018 because the City had two new bond 
issuances.     

 
Business-type Activities.  Business-type revenue increased by $324,417 or 1.12% from the prior 
year. The sanitation income increased from $6,039,417 to $6,342,135 due to a rate increase effective 
June 22, 2017.  
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Budgetary Highlights.  For fiscal year 2017-2018, General Fund revenue (including transfers) budget 
was amended by $1,124,843 or 3% of the original budget of $37,506,461. The actual revenue (including 
transfers) was more than the final budget projection by $422,513, or 1.09%.  The revenue increase is 
attributed to sales tax coming in above projections for the year.  The actual expenditures (including 
transfers) on a budgetary basis were $38,760,527 compared to the final budget of $40,154,176.  General 
Fund actual expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary basis were $1,393,649 or 3.47% below 
final budget projections. See page 76 of the report for more detail. 
 
The Police Fund revenue (including transfers) budget was increased by $148,999, or 1.16%, of the 
original budget of $12,860,817. The actual revenue (including transfers) was more than the final budget 
projection by $1,080,115 or 8.30%. The City passed a .75% sales tax increase effective January 1, 2018 
with .32% going to the Police Fund.  The City began collecting the increased sales tax in March 2018.  
The sales tax increase was not in the budget.  The City plans to hire six additional police officers with 
the additional sales tax revenue dedicated to the police department.  The additional police officers will 
be hired over a three year period starting July 1, 2018.  The actual expenditures (including transfers) on 
a budgetary basis were $13,347,447 compared to the final budget of $13,977,302.  Actual expenditures 
(including transfers) were $629,855 or 4.51% below final budget projections.     
 
The Fire Fund revenues (including transfers) budget was amended by $104,672 or .99%. The actual 
revenue (including transfers) was more than the final budget projection by $720,009 or 6.76%. The City 
passed a .75% sales tax increase effective January 1, 2018 with .22% going to the Fire Fund.  The City 
began collecting the increased sales tax in March 2018.  The sales tax increase was not in the budget.  
The City plans to use the additional sales tax revenue dedicated to the fire department to implement the 
recommendations outlined in the ESCI Fire Department Study and to hire three additional firemen in 
fiscal year 2019-2020.  The actual expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary basis were 
$10,763,683 compared to the final budget of $11,386,204.  Actual expenditures (including transfers) 
were $622,521 or 5.47% below projections.  
 
The budget to actual comparisons for these funds can be found on pages 76-79 of the report. 

 
Capital Assets    At the end of fiscal year 2018, the City had $466,374,252 invested in a broad range of 
capital assets, including police and fire equipment, buildings, conference center and hotel, park 
facilities, roads, bridges, water and sewer facilities and distribution systems. This amount represents a 
net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $7,500,041 for the governmental activities. 
Although the City had land additions of $1,610,727, building additions of $157,173, equipment 
additions of $1,034,360, vehicle additions of $456,682, construction in progress additions of 
$2,117,027 and infrastructure additions of $3,661,007; the depreciation expense of $14,461,725 caused 
the current year reduction, with street depreciation for the year amounting to of $12,041,992.  
 
The business-type activities had a net decrease of $4,563,492. Table 3 reflects the net key elements that 
make up the capital assets by type and source.    
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Capital Assets

(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total Primary Government

  

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land 34,302$       32,767$     7,572$       7,572$       41,874$               40,339$              
Water rights -               -             4,673         4,673         4,673                   4,673                  
Construction in progress 6,162           5,947         1,738         2,693         7,900                   8,640                  
Buildings 29,776         29,619       32,474       32,111       62,250                 61,730                
Machinery and equipment 21,297         20,535       13,999       13,774       35,296                 34,309                
Vehicles 9,561           9,400         9,152         8,765         18,713                 18,165                
Infrastructure 449,904       446,307     181,234     179,949     631,138               626,256              

551,002       544,575     250,842     249,537     801,844               794,112              

Less: Depreciation (240,437)      (226,510)    (95,032)      (89,164)      (335,469)              (315,674)             

     Totals 310,565$     318,065$   155,810$   160,373$   466,375$             478,438$            

TABLE 3

 
 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on pages 49-50 of this report. 
 
Debt Administration. At year end, the City had $149,817,429 in long term debt outstanding compared to 
$86,959,222 at the end of the prior fiscal year, an increase of 72.28% as shown in Table 4.  The City had 
two new bond issuances is FY 2018.  Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the amount of 
$49,155,000 and Tax Apportionment Refunding Bonds in the amount of $19,250,000 for a Tax Incentive 
Financing district to be repaid 50% by property taxes and 50% by sales and use taxes generated within the 
district.  See pages 53-56 for a more in depth review of long-term debt. 
 
 

TABLE 4

Long-Term Debt

(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total Primary Government

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

General obligation bonds 975$                1,300$             -$              -$                975$               1,300$          
Notes payable 20,652             21,336             49,350          53,675            70,002            75,011          
Accrued compensated absences 5,565               5,517               1,821            2,087              7,386              7,604            
Revenue bonds 68,405             -                  1,522            1,482              69,927            1,482            
Revenue bonds premium -                  -                  1,475            1,492              1,475              1,492            
Refundable deposits 52                    70                    -                -                  52                   70                 

     Totals 95,649$           28,223$           54,168$        58,736$          149,817$        86,959$        

 
 
FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Economic Outlook. Tests on the Boeing KC-46A Pegasus aero-tanker continue to go well, and the first 
few aircraft may be delivered as early as early 2019.  This is great news for Tinker Air Force Base 
(TAFB), which is the top employer for Midwest City, as it will be responsible for the Pegasus’ 
maintenance. Servicing the plane will require a workforce of approximately 1321 at an average annual 
income of $62,000. This translates to a yearly economic impact of $1 billion for the state. These jobs will 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018                  

              

15 
 

further enhance employment opportunities at TAFB where an estimated 31,030 Oklahomans already 
work. 
 
As of October 2018, U.S. unemployment was at approximately 3.7%, an 18-year low.  State 
unemployment was equally low (3.4%) with the highest employment rates found in Central and Western 
Oklahoma. 
 
We offer the following additional forecasts by sector: 
 

 Retail.  
 
At the time of this report, the Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority was under contract to 
sell 13.28 acres of prime real estate in the vicinity of S Douglas BLVD and Interstate 40. The 
buyer, Franklin Land Associates, is an arm of GBT Realty Corporation, a major developer of 
retail and mixed-use properties.  Redevelopment of this comparatively small parcel looks very 
promising due to enormous daily traffic counts. 
 
One of the country’s strongest retailers, Burlington Stores, held its grand opening on September 
14, 2018.  This 40,000 square foot store is the latest edition to the Sooner Rose Shopping & 
Entertainment Center where it joins fellow retailers Academy Sports + Outdoors and Hobby 
Lobby. 
 
Only one leasable tenant space remains available in the Town Center Plaza (“TCP”) at the time of 
this report. 
 
The strip centers at 2301 and 2601 S Douglas BLVD are nearly 100% occupied and are doing 
well. The center at 1011 S Air Depot BLVD is mostly full, and our market has shown it can 
easily support new, Class B retail space.  
 
A tremendous amount of Class C retail space remains vacant, most of which is in the Air Depot 
corridor.  Heritage Plaza, 351 N Air Depot BLVD, is over 30% vacant and the 142,772 ft.² former 
Sears building remains empty with few lookers.  Conditions at Heritage Park Mall continue to 
deteriorate. 
 

 Hospitality.  
 
Midwest City is not only the economic center of eastern Oklahoma County, it is also the culinary 
hub as well. Employees from TAFB frequent our restaurants for lunch and the 100,000+ citizens 
from the East Metro frequently enjoy dinner here.  These trends are reflected in the multitude of 
restaurant projects underway in the community, which includes Feast (buffet) and Meiji (hibachi-
style) eateries in the Sooner Rose Shopping & Entertainment Center. Both are projected to begin 
operations sometime in early 2019. 
 
In the 2133 block of S Air Depot BLVD, a the Hibachi Sushi & Seafood Buffet restaurant opened 
in November 2018. Work also continues on the Open Flame Coffee Company Roastery, 307 S 
Air Depot BLVD, with an opening promised this winter. 
 
The OKC Metro’s second Blaze Pizza will opened in  September 2018 at 7199 SE 29th ST in 
Town Center Plaza’s (“TCP”) Downtown area, and the Wedge Pizzeria, 2320 S Air Depot 
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BLVD, opened in November 2018. Joining Wedge in the same vicinity is the Metro area’s second 
Drum Room, a trendy favorite amongst the millennial crowd. 
 
A new McDonald’s is slated to be built at 7551 E Reno AVE and another Del Rancho is in the 
works for 9201 SE 29th ST. Another quick service restaurant, Taco Bell, has filed a permit 
application to build on the last remaining lot in TCP. 
 
Lastly, Johnnie’s Charcoal Broiler Express, 6825 SE 29th ST, is opening in December 2018. 
 
At least four other real estate scouts are currently searching Midwest City for new sites at the 
time of this report and we feel the restaurant sector will remain strong into the near future. 
 
The Hampton Inn, 1833 Center Drive, completed a major renovation.  However, the hotel 
industry remains sluggish due to overdevelopment in all price points throughout the OKC metro. 
 

 Industrial. The final plat of the Soldier Creek Industrial Park (“SCIP”) was recently approved, 
thereby opening up approximately 40 acres for industrial development with over 100 
undeveloped acres remaining in reserve. We currently have a couple of prospects eyeing SCIP 
but interest in the park has been sporadic.  
 
Tomcat Aviation moved into the former Chromalloy Gas Turbine building earlier this year 
bringing about four dozen employees along.  This building, which had been vacant for years, 
promises to create 30 – 50 additional aerospace jobs in the forthcoming years. 
 

 Office and Professional. The Mid-Town Office Park seems to be filling space as quickly as it is 
built out.  There are other small, free-standing office buildings under construction and even more 
being proposed east of S Douglas BLVD.  We have fielded inquiries about office space in the 
Medical District and along SE 29th ST as well. 
 
A Texas-based call center operator, the Heller Group, is in the process of remodeling the former 
Furr’s Cafeteria space in the Holiday Square Shopping Center, 1110 S Air Depot BLVD. Heller 
may create up to 250 positions by the end of 2018. 
 

FY 2018-2019 Budgets and Rates - The fiscal year 2018-2019 expenditure budgets presented to the 
Council and Board of Trustees was $96,905,009, which is net of $47,144,215 inter/intra-fund transfers.   
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The three major governmental funds reflect the following budgets adopted for FY 18-19: 
 

 Revenues Transfers In  Expenditures Transfer Out  (Use) of Fund Balance
General $25,996,068  $10,533,263  $10,995,221  $25,325,744  $208,366
Police   $ 5,605,434  $  9,402,609  $13,326,707  $     650,000   $1,031,336 
Fire          $  4,173,303  $  7,522,644  $10,690,303  $     250,000  $755,644
 
Personal services were budgeted with merit steps included for all pay plans; non-represented, police and 
fire.  A 2.9% cost of living (COLA) was included for non-represented employees. The non-represented 
employees participate in a defined contribution plan; the contribution by the City is 14%. 
 
In November 2018, the City reached a labor agreement with the Police union for fiscal years 2019 and 
2020.  Currently, the statutory contribution requirement for the police defined benefit pension plan is 
21%, with the City paying 13% and the employee paying 8%. The agreement includes the following for 
fiscal year 2019: 

 2.5% across the board wage increase;  
 a $25 increase to the longevity table making the yearly amount payable $125 beginning in the 

fifth year of service  instead of the sixth year of service;  
 adding $11.75 to the current education incentive per pay period (estimated cost of $28,400 per 

year);  
 addition $10 per shift for the field officer training incentive (estimated cost of $5,000 annually); 

 
The agreement includes the following for fiscal year 2020: 

 2.25% across the board wage increase if the Police Fund revenues for fiscal year 2019 exceed 
budget by at least 3% on July 15, 2019 minus other revenues (grants, donations, etc.); or 

 2.5% across the board wage increase if the Police Fund revenues for fiscal year 2019 exceed 
budget by at least 3.5% on July 15, 2019 minus other revenues (grants, donations, etc.); or 

 3.0% across the board wage increase if the Police Fund revenues for fiscal year 2019 exceed 
budget by at least 4.25% on July 15, 2019 minus other revenues (grants, donations, etc.); or 

 If none of the above revenue thresholds are met, the contract will be reopened for negotiations 
 
The Fire union has not reached a labor agreement with the City for a fiscal year 2019 labor contract.  
Currently, the statutory contribution requirement for fire defined benefit pension plan is 23%, with the 
City paying 18% and the employee paying 5%.  
 
The City through self-insurance sponsors medical, prescription and dental insurance to full time 
employees and qualifying retirees and their families. Annual health insurance premium amounts are 
established by the City Council. The “Affordable Care Act” (ACA) has certain costs that are not to be 
passed on to the employee or retiree. For FY 2018-2019, the budgeted amount is $153,897. 
 
The City is currently offering one medical insurance plan.  The Blue Preferred Plan has a lower premium 
and reduced provider network compared to the Blue Option Plan which was previously provided as an 
option to City employees.   
 
Emergency reserves are contained in the operational fund budgets of the City. The General fund is 
required to maintain a 10% reserve while all others are required to maintain a 5% reserve. The reserves 
are equal to the annual operating budget less transfer outs and capital outlay. The reserves are only 
accessible if a significant event should occur such as a downturn in the economy greatly affecting the 
funding of the City’s operations, uses for natural disasters or one-time non-recurring emergency that 
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disrupts the cash receipts of the City. With this resolution in place for maintaining a reserve, the City 
becomes more financially stable and better equipped to handle any unforeseen emergencies or major loss 
of revenues. 
 
Request for Information.   This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s 
finances, comply with finance-related laws, regulations and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public 
accountability.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional information should be addressed to the City of Midwest City, Finance Department, 100 N. 
Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 
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Statement of Net Position– June 30, 2018 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 24,885,522$             4,372,425$               29,257,947$             
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 13,616,757               2,990,013                 16,606,770               
Investments 114,365,122             12,918,037               127,283,159             
Land held for economic development 3,439,804                 -                                3,439,804                 
Accounts receivable, net 1,916,274                 3,335,264                 5,251,538                 
Interest receivable 54,427                      22,833                      77,260                      
Other receivable 229,788                    91,138                      320,926                    
Inventory 2,364,402                 276,343                    2,640,745                 
Internal balances 418,650                    (418,650)                   -                                
Prepaid items 4,612                        6,278                        10,890                      
Due from other governments 6,186,323                 -                                6,186,323                 
Lease receivable 62,677,553               -                                62,677,553               
Deposits held by others 5,566                        -                                5,566                        
Investments, non- current, restricted -                                1,101,582                 1,101,582                 
Capital assets:

Land, water rights, and construction in progress 40,463,649               13,983,418               54,447,067               
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 270,100,695             141,826,490             411,927,185             

Total assets 540,729,144             180,505,171             721,234,315             

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding -                            819,874                    819,874                    
Deferred amount related to pensions 9,080,969                 -                            9,080,969                 
Deferred amount related to OPEB 630,939                    238,722                    869,661                    

Total deferred outflows 9,711,908                 1,058,596                 10,770,504               

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,280,805                 1,236,490                 2,517,295                 
Wages payable 1,590,621                 463,003                    2,053,624                 
Claims payable 2,310,403                 -                                2,310,403                 
Due to other governments 8,569                        -                                8,569                        
Accrued interest payable 708,626                    675,054                    1,383,680                 
Unearned revenue 7,100,725                 -                                7,100,725                 
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 3,732,243                 5,218,320                 8,950,563                 
Due in more than one year 140,931,600             55,281,567               196,213,167             

Total liabilities 157,663,592             62,874,434               220,538,026             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount related to pensions 2,652,752                 -                            2,652,752                 
Deferred amount related to property taxes 322,688                    -                            322,688                    
Deferred amount related to OPEB 1,536,654                 581,407                    2,118,061                 

Total deferred inflows 4,512,094                 581,407                    5,093,501                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 308,252,543             105,458,542             413,711,085             
Restricted for:

Debt service 149,038                    2,019,906                 2,168,944                 
Hospital 94,580,194               -                                94,580,194               
Capital improvements 6,987,796                 -                                6,987,796                 
Public Safety 10,319,736               -                                10,319,736               
Street operations 2,341,418                 -                                2,341,418                 
Culture and recreation 1,319,154                 -                                1,319,154                 
Economic Development 10,043,482               -                                10,043,482               
Other 2,681,659                 -                                2,681,659                 

Unrestricted  (deficit) (48,409,654)              10,629,478               (37,780,176)              

Total net position 388,265,366$           118,107,926$           506,373,292$           

Primary Government

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Statement of Activities –Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Program Revenue

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities
Business-type 

Activities Total
Primary government

Governmental activities
General government 7,653,254$              3,728,037$           84,067$                270,388$              (3,570,762)$             -$                                      (3,570,762)$                
Public safety 29,069,958              2,063,875             3,245,101             -                            (23,760,982)             -                                        (23,760,982)                
Streets 15,082,019 568,008                503,666                2,254,850             (11,755,495)             -                                        (11,755,495)                
Culture and recreation 1,928,455 466,061                113,308                -                            (1,349,086)               -                                        (1,349,086)                  
Health and welfare 416,456 -                            -                            -                            (416,456)                  -                                        (416,456)                     
Economic development 13,829,278              1,861,753             514,069                -                            (11,453,456)             -                                        (11,453,456)                
Interest expense 2,378,801                -                            -                            -                            (2,378,801)               -                                        (2,378,801)                  

Total governmental activities 70,358,221              8,687,734             4,460,211             2,525,238             (54,685,038)             -                                        (54,685,038)                

Business-type activities:
Water 6,647,472                7,998,054             -                            2,080                    -                               1,352,662                         1,352,662                    
Wastewater 8,098,410                8,107,156             -                            -                            -                               8,746                                8,746                           
Sanitation 4,579,243                6,342,135             -                            -                            -                               1,762,892                         1,762,892                    
Drainage 661,479                   484,385                -                            -                            -                               (177,094)                           (177,094)                     
Conference center 7,749,424                5,157,031             -                            -                            -                               (2,592,393)                        (2,592,393)                  
Golf 1,153,318                1,072,355             -                            -                            -                               (80,963)                             (80,963)                       
Mobile home park 4,104 160                       -                            -                            -                               (3,944)                               (3,944)                         
Industrial park 57,073 -                            -                            -                            -                               (57,073)                             (57,073)                       

Total business-type activities 28,950,523              29,161,276           -                            2,080                    -                               212,833                            212,833                       

Total primary government 99,308,744$            37,849,010$        4,460,211$          2,527,318$          (54,685,038)           212,833                            (54,472,205)              

General revenues:
Taxes:

Sales and use taxes 36,830,105               -                                        36,830,105                  
Property tax 300,987                    -                                        300,987                       
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,004,282                 1,004,282                    
Franchise and public service taxes 2,910,373                 -                                        2,910,373                    
Hotel/motel taxes 598,486 -                                        598,486                       

Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs 494,009                    -                                        494,009                       
Investment income 12,571,687               8,724                                12,580,411                  
Miscellaneous 803,457                    100,241                            903,698                       

Transfers - internal activity (2,745,121)               2,745,121                         -                                  
Total general revenues and transfers 52,768,265               2,854,086                         55,622,351                  

Change in net position (1,916,773)               3,066,919                         1,150,146                    

Net position - beginning, restated 390,182,139             115,041,007                     505,223,146                

Net position - ending 388,265,366$           118,107,926$                   506,373,292$              

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018                  

              

22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018                  

              

23 
 

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2018 
 

General Fund Police Fund Fire Fund
Midwest City 

Hospital Authority Sooner Rose TIF

Economic 
Development 

Authority

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,670,610$               712,877$                  448,579$                  13,604,928$             7,578,565$               6,336,064$               3,717,262$               34,068,885$             
Investments 4,733,836                 2,176,144                 1,626,021                 91,401,970               739,460                    269,871                    11,263,173               112,210,475             
Land held for economic development -                                -                                -                                5,684,054                 -                                -                                -                                5,684,054                 
Receivables:
  Accounts receivable 1,343,248                 85,906                      2,784                        20,726                      20,556                      149,261                    425,167                    2,047,648                 
  Accrued interest receivable 9,164                        4,407                        2,726                        6,901                        -                                -                                20,115                      43,313                      
  Due from other funds 103,791                    2,217,372                 1,746,982                 2,689                        -                                -                                92,387                      4,163,221                 
  Deposits held by others -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                5,566                        5,566                        
  Prepaid items 4,612                        -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                4,612                        
  Other receivable 18,941                      4,439                        874                           -                                -                                -                                -                                24,254                      
  Due from other governments 3,048,973                 736,553                    580,338                    -                                -                                -                                1,820,459                 6,186,323                 
Inventory -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                60,000                      60,000                      
Advance to other funds 885,203                    -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                49,530                      934,733                    

Total assets 11,818,378$             5,937,698$               4,408,304$               110,721,268$           8,338,581$               6,755,196$               17,453,659$             165,433,084$           

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 301,638$                  38,340$                    18,184$                    312,882$                  143,780$                  -$                          211,969$                  1,026,793$               
  Wages payable 432,294 579,726                    436,970                    8,826                        -                                -                                73,705                      1,531,521                 
  Unearned revenue -                                -                                -                                7,100,724                 -                                -                                -                                7,100,724                 
  Refundable deposits - court 52,230 -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                52,230                      
  Due to other funds 3,881,783 -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                828,611                    4,710,394                 
  Due to other governments 8,569                        -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                8,569                        
 Advance from other funds 49,530 -                                885,203                    -                                -                                -                                -                                934,733                    

Total liabilities 4,726,044                 618,066                    1,340,357                 7,422,432                 143,780                    -                                1,114,285                 15,364,964               

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue 1,061,884 71,650                      -                                689,532                    -                                -                                590,839                    2,413,905                 

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 889,815                    -                                -                                5,684,054                 -                                -                                115,096                    6,688,965                 
Restricted 1,595,346                 5,247,982                 3,067,947                 95,501,195               8,194,801                 6,755,196                 14,473,465               134,835,932             
Committed -                                -                                -                                1,424,055                 -                                -                                -                                1,424,055                 
Assigned 1,100,028                 -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                1,159,974                 2,260,002                 
Unassigned 2,445,261                 -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                2,445,261                 

Total fund balances 6,030,450                 5,247,982                 3,067,947                 102,609,304             8,194,801                 6,755,196                 15,748,535               147,654,215             

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 11,818,378$             5,937,698$               4,408,304$               110,721,268$           8,338,581$               6,755,196$               17,453,659$             165,433,084$           

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 
Fund Balance – Net Position Reconciliation – June 30, 2018: 
 

Fund balances of governmental funds 147,654,215$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $239,258,155 309,704,528             

Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current fund liabilities and, therefore, along 
with deferred outflows, are either reported as deferred outflows of resources in the funds or not 
reported in the funds at all:

 Due from other governments 68,310                      
 Other receivable, net of allowance 2,022,906                 
 HMA hospital receivable 62,677,553

64,768,769

The net pension liablity and the total OPEB liability and the pension and OPEB related deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows are not due and payable from current financial resources, and 
therefore, are not reported in these fund financial statements, but are reported in the governmental 
activities of the Statement of Net Position.

 Pension related deferred outflows 9,080,969                 
 Net pension liability (32,280,170)              
 Pension related deferred inflows (2,652,752)                
 OPEB related deferred outflows 604,153                    
Total OPEB liability (16,024,043)              
 OPEB related deferred inflows (1,471,417)                

(42,743,260)              

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities to individual 
funds.  An allocation of the assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in 
governmental activities in the statement of net position, net of amount allocated to business-type 
activities. 5,029,938                 

Certain other long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and, 
therefore, along with deferred inflows, are not reported in the funds:

 General obligation bonds payable (975,000)                   
 Notes payable (20,652,140)              
 Bonds payable (68,405,000)              
 Accrued compensated absences (5,408,058)                
 Accrued interest payable (708,626)                   

(96,148,824)              

Net position of governmental activities 388,265,366$           

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Year 
Ended June 30, 2018 
 

General Fund Police Fund Fire Fund

Midwest City 
Hospital 

Authority Sooner Rose TIF

Economic 
Development 

Authority

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 23,630,293$        4,200,304$       3,476,181$           1,004,282$             20,556$                  -$                            9,327,991$           41,659,607$         
Intergovernmental 698,259               801,553            3,355,239             -                              -                              -                              1,160,794             6,015,845             
Charges for services 2,306,506            98,790              5,408                    -                              -                              1,503,861                1,498,039             5,412,604             
Fines and forfeitures 1,248,027            68,666              -                            -                              -                              -                              112,030                1,428,723             
Licenses and permits 452,608               2,900                8,300                    -                              -                              -                              125,456                589,264                
Investment income 17,896                 (32,984)             (36,451)                 13,150,764             47,008                    -                              (25,474)                 13,120,759           
Miscellaneous 657,889               12,028              9,348                    1,236,928               -                              -                              261,770                2,177,963             

Total revenues 29,011,478          5,151,257         6,818,025             15,391,974             67,564                    1,503,861                12,460,606           70,404,765           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 5,396,446            -                        -                            1,408,240               -                              -                              526,983                7,331,669             
Public safety 998,372               13,435,411       13,619,975           -                              -                              -                              629,899                28,683,657           
Streets 2,753,935            -                        -                            -                              -                              -                              131,570                2,885,505             
Culture and recreation 942,952               -                        -                            -                              -                              -                              621,416                1,564,368             
Health and welfare 366,339               -                        -                            -                              -                              -                              -                            366,339                
Economic development 2,912,973            -                        -                            -                              9,365,622               43,903,665              1,208,915             57,391,175           

Capital outlay 295,606               731,334            99,638                  122,293                  1,336,801               -                              2,591,975             5,177,647             
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                           -                        -                            683,969                  16,475,000             -                              325,000                17,483,969           
Interest and fiscal  charges 3,762                   -                        37,218                  1,169,425               420,340                  -                              51,750                  1,682,495             

Total expenditures 13,670,385          14,166,745       13,756,831           3,383,927               27,597,763             43,903,665              6,087,508             122,566,824         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 15,341,093          (9,015,488)        (6,938,806)            12,008,047             (27,530,199)            (42,399,804)            6,373,098             (52,162,059)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
 Proceeds from issuance of debt -                           -                        -                            -                              35,725,000             49,155,000              -                            84,880,000           
Transfers in 11,723,187          10,598,482       8,568,242             325,357                  -                              -                              613,619                31,828,887           
Transfers out (27,380,741)         -                        (166,000)               (424,638)                 -                              -                              (6,735,537)            (34,706,916)          
Total other financing sources and uses (15,657,554)         10,598,482       8,402,242             (99,281)                   35,725,000             49,155,000              (6,121,918)            82,001,971           

Net change in fund balances (316,461)              1,582,994         1,463,436             11,908,766             8,194,801               6,755,196                251,180                29,839,912           

Fund balances - beginning 6,346,911            3,664,988         1,604,511             90,700,538             -                              -                              15,497,355           117,814,303         

Fund balances - ending 6,030,450$          5,247,982$       3,067,947$           102,609,304$         8,194,801$             6,755,196$              15,748,535$         147,654,215$       

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Changes in Fund Balances – Changes in Net Position Reconciliation – Year Ended June 30, 2018: 
 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: 29,839,912$             

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report 
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:
   Capital asset purchases capitalized 4,594,546                 
   Capital asset donated 2,525,238                 
   Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (173,690)                   
   Depreciation expense (14,392,483)              

(7,446,389)                

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure and collections of leasehold receivables are a 
revenue in the governmental funds.  However, the repayments reduce long-term liabilities or the 
long-term assets in the Statement of Net Position:
   Leasehold receivable receipts (863,485)                   
   Loan to leasehold 43,903,665               
   Debt proceeds (84,880,000)              
   Note payable principal payments 17,158,969               
   General obligation bond principal payments 325,000                    

(24,355,851)              

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not 
reported as revenues in the funds:
   Change in unavailable revenue 266,520                    

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:
   Other poste employment benefits (206,050)                   
   Interest expense (700,068)                   
   Pension expense 98,572                      
   Accrued compensated absences (54,798)                     

(862,344)                   

Internal service fund activity is reported as a proprietary fund in fund financial statements, but 
certain net revenues/expenses are reported in governmental activities on the Statement of 
Activities, net of amount allocated to business-type activities
   Total change in net position for internal service funds 641,379                    

Change in net position of governmental activities (1,916,773)$              

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position - June 30, 2018 
 

Midwest City 
Municipal 
Authority

Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,089,812$              208,967$             4,298,779$         1,477,477$         
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 2,990,013                -                           2,990,013           -                          
Investments 11,960,894              707,594               12,668,488         5,433,759           
Accounts receivable, net 3,335,264                -                           3,335,264           74,160                
Other receivable 91,138                     -                           91,138                -                          
Accrued interest receivable 22,833                     -                           22,833                11,114                
Prepaid items 6,278                       -                           6,278                  -                          
Inventory 276,343                   -                           276,343              60,152                
Due from other funds 814,420                   -                           814,420              202                     

Total current assets 23,586,995              916,561               24,503,556         7,056,864           

Non-current assets:
  Investments, restricted 1,101,582                -                           1,101,582           -                          
  Land, construction in progress, and water rights 7,806,389                6,177,029            13,983,418         -                          
  Other capital assets, net 139,003,682            2,693,997            141,697,679       988,627              

Total non-current assets 147,911,653            8,871,026            156,782,679       988,627              

Total assets 171,498,648            9,787,587            181,286,235       8,045,491           

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding 819,874                   -                       819,874              -                      
Deferred amount related to OPEB 221,676                   -                       221,676              43,832                

1,041,550                -                       1,041,550           43,832                

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,236,573 -                           1,236,573           264,703              
Claims liability -                               -                           -                          784,403              
Wages payable 424,628                   -                           424,628              86,701                
Due to other funds -                               -                           -                          267,449              
Accrued interest payable 675,054                   -                           675,054              -                          
Accrued compensated absences 463,750                   -                           463,750              109,437              
Refundable deposits 202,387                   -                           202,387              -                          
Revenue bonds payable 4,495,000                -                           4,495,000           -                          

Total current liabilities 7,497,392                -                           7,497,392           1,512,693           

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 840,071                   -                           840,071              218,879              
Claims liability -                               -                           -                          1,526,000           
Total OPEB liability 5,879,556                -                           5,879,556           1,162,532           
Refundable deposits 1,319,237                -                           1,319,237           -                          
Revenue bonds payable, net 46,676,240              -                           46,676,240         -                          

Total non-current liabilities 54,715,104              -                           54,715,104         2,907,411           

Total liabilities 62,212,496              -                           62,212,496         4,420,104           

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount related to OPEB 539,893                   -                       539,893              106,751              

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 96,458,705              8,871,026            105,329,731       988,627              
Restricted for debt service 2,019,906                -                           2,019,906           -                          
Restricted for other purposes 100,883                   216,134               317,017              -                          
Unrestricted 11,208,315              700,427               11,908,742         2,573,841           

Total net position 109,787,809$          9,787,587$          119,575,396$     3,562,468$         

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because
certain internal service fund balances are included with business-type activities and reported 
as interfund balances (1,467,470)          

Total net position per Government-Wide financial statements 118,107,926$     

 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Year Ended 
June 30, 2018 
 

Midwest City 
Municipal 
Authority

Nonmajor 
Enterprise Funds Total

Internal Service 
Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 28,928,927$             145$                         28,929,072$             10,751,710$             
Fees, licenses and permits 88,420                      -                                88,420                      -                                
Miscellaneous 140,001                    -                                140,001                    181,999                    
Total operating revenues 29,157,348               145                           29,157,493               10,933,709               

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services 10,451,525               -                                10,451,525               1,856,796                 
  Materials and supplies 3,748,406                 -                                3,748,406                 1,389,170                 
  Other services and charges 7,064,863                 4,104                        7,068,967                 951,160                    
  Insurance claims and expense -                                -                                -                                5,915,695                 
  Depreciation and amortization 5,858,416                 57,073                      5,915,489                 83,165                      

Total operating expenses 27,123,210               61,177                      27,184,387               10,195,986               

Operating income (loss) 2,034,138                 (61,032)                     1,973,106                 737,723                    

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income (loss) 78,662                      14,474                      93,136                      (25,111)                     
Interest expense and fiscal charges (1,967,261)              -                              (1,967,261)              -                               
Gain on asset retirement 16,596                      -                                16,596                      -                                
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (1,872,003)                14,474                      (1,857,529)                (25,111)                     

Income (loss)  before contributions and transfers 162,135                    (46,558)                     115,577                    712,612                    
                      

Capital contributions 89,266                      -                                89,266                      -                                
Transfers in 13,651,407               69,166                      13,720,573               135,636                    
Transfers out (11,065,366)              -                                (11,065,366)              -                                

Change in net position 2,837,442                 22,608                      2,860,050                 848,248                    

Total net position - beginning, restated 106,950,367             9,764,979                 116,715,346             2,714,220                 

Total net position - ending 109,787,809$           9,787,587$               119,575,396$           3,562,468$               

Change in net position per above 2,860,050$               
Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities are 
 different because the net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with
 business-type activities 206,869                    

Change in Business-Type Activites in Net Postion per Government-Wide Financial Statements 3,066,919$               

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Midwest City 
Municipal 
Authority

Nonmajor Enterprise 
Funds Total

Internal Service 
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 29,499,302$             145$                               29,499,447$                       10,896,149$              
Payments to suppliers (10,911,529)              (21,698)                           (10,933,227)                        (1,663,386)                
Payments to employees (10,421,269)              -                                      (10,421,269)                        (1,845,126)                
Receipts (payments) from interfund loans (47,687)                     -                                      (47,687)                               (16,897)                     
Receipt of customer deposits 499,379                    -                                      499,379                              -                                
Return of customer deposits (466,176)                   -                                      (466,176)                             -                                
Claims and benefits paid -                                -                                      -                                      (6,499,427)                

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8,152,020                 (21,553)                           8,130,467                           871,313                     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 13,651,407               69,166                            13,720,573                         -                                
Transfers to other funds (11,065,366)              -                                      (11,065,366)                        135,636                     

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,586,041                 69,166                            2,655,207                           135,636                     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (1,324,763)                -                                      (1,324,763)                          (15,591)                     
Principal paid on capital debt (4,325,000)                -                                      (4,325,000)                          -                                
Payments of interfund loan for capital purchases -                                (65,063)                           (65,063)                               -                                
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt (2,235,062)                -                                      (2,235,062)                          -                                
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 34,609                      -                                      34,609                                -                                

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (7,850,216)                (65,063)                           (7,915,279)                          (15,591)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (Purchase) of investments (2,653,939)                (3,359)                             (2,657,298)                          (2,809,741)                
Interest and dividends 421,701                    14,474                            436,175                              118,999                     

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,232,238)                11,115                            (2,221,123)                          (2,690,742)                

Net increase (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents 655,607                    (6,335)                             649,272                              (1,699,384)                

Balances - beginning of year 6,424,218                 215,302                          6,639,520                           3,176,861                  

Balances - end of year 7,079,825$               208,967$                        7,288,792$                         1,477,477$                

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,089,812$               208,967$                        4,298,779$                         1,477,477$                
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,990,013                 -                                  2,990,013                           -                            

Total cash and cash equivalents 7,079,825$               208,967$                        7,288,792$                         1,477,477$                

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 2,034,138$               (61,032)$                         1,973,106$                         737,723$                   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)  to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 5,858,416                 57,073                            5,915,489                           83,165                       
Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net 281,364                    -                                  281,364                              (37,560)                     
Other receivable 54,026                      -                                  54,026                                -                            
Due from other funds (21,970)                     -                                  (21,970)                               (196)                          
Prepaid items (6,278)                       (6,278)                                 -                            
Inventory (15,128)                     -                                  (15,128)                               (9,855)                       
Deferred outflows OPEB (1,388)                       -                                  (1,388)                                 (292)                          
Accounts payable (76,854)                     (17,594)                           (94,448)                               69,060                       
Claims liability -                            -                                  -                                      34,007                       
Due to other funds (25,717)                     -                                  (25,717)                               (16,701)                     
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (24,840)                     -                                  (24,840)                               (824)                          
Refundable deposits 39,767                      -                                  39,767                                -                            
OPEB liability (462,527)                   -                                  (462,527)                             (91,454)                     
Accrued compensated absences (20,882)                     -                                  (20,882)                               (2,511)                       
Deferred inflows OPEB 539,893                    -                                  539,893                              106,751                     

Net cash provided by (used in)  operating activities 8,152,020$               (21,553)$                         8,130,467$                         871,313$                   

Noncash activities:
  Contributed capital assets - from governmental funds 89,266$                    -$                                89,266$                              -$                          

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018                  

              

31 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOOTNOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018                  

              

32 
 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The City of Midwest City’s (the “City”) accounting and financial reporting policies conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America (GAAP).  GAAP includes all 
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.  The accounting and 
reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent 
subsections of this note. 

 
1.A.   Financial Reporting Entity   
 

The City of Midwest City – operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks 
and recreation, and administrative activities  
 
The City of Midwest City is an incorporated municipality located in central Oklahoma. The City 
operates under a council-manager form of government with a charter that provides for three branches of 
government: 

 
 Legislative – the governing body includes an elected seven-member City Council and Mayor 
 Executive – the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City Council 
 Judicial – the Municipal Judges are practicing attorneys appointed by the City Council 

 
In determining the financial reporting entity, the City of Midwest City complies with the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board and includes all component units for which the City is 
financially accountable. The City’s financial reporting entity primary government presentation includes 
the City of Midwest City and certain component units as follows: 

 
Blended Component Units: Separate legal entities for which the City Council members also serve as 
the trustees/governing body of the Authorities and /or the City is able to impose its will on the 
Authorities through required approval of all debt obligations issued by these entities. These component 
units funds are blended into the City’s by appropriate fund type to comprise part of the primary 
government presentation. 

 
Midwest City Utilities Authority –created for industrial development. 
Midwest City Municipal Authority – created to operate the water, wastewater, sanitation and 
conference center/hotel. 
Midwest City Hospital Authority – created to operate the hospital, however, in 1996 the hospital 
was leased for a 30 year term. In March 2009, this lease was extended to May 2048. The Trustees 
manage activities related to the hospital lease.  Economic development is also a principal mission of 
the Authority. 
Urban Renewal Authority – created for economic development. 
Economic Development Authority – created for economic development. 
 

Each of these component units listed above are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of 
Oklahoma State law.  Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power.  The Authorities are generally 
created to finance City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt 
and to enable the City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the 
Authority.  The Authorities generally retain title to assets which are acquired or constructed with 
Authority debt or other Authority generated resources.  In addition, the City has leased certain existing 
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assets at the creation for the Authorities to the Trustees on a long-term basis.  The City, as beneficiary 
of the Public Trusts, receives title to any residual assets when a Public Trust is dissolved. 
 
In accordance with state law, the City Council must approve, by two-thirds vote, all debt obligations of 
these public trusts prior to incurring the obligation.  This is considered sufficient imposition of will to 
demonstrate financial accountability and to include the trusts within the City’s financial reporting 
entity.  The public trusts do not issue separate annual financial statements. 
 
 

1.B.   Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial condition 
and changes therein at two distinct levels: 
 

 The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation) 
 The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds) 

 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 
The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City presents two kinds 
of activities:  
 
Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, 
general administration, streets, parks and recreation.  Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and 
federal grants finance most of these activities. 
 
Business-type activities – Services where the City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of 
the cost of the services it provides.  The City’s water, sewer, sanitation systems and the hotel/conference 
center activities are reported here. 

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
The statements of net position and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic 
resources measurement focus.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred 
or economic asset used.   
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Fund Financial Statements: 

 
Governmental Funds: 
Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows 
into and out of those funds and the balances remaining at year-end.  Governmental funds report their 
activities on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources measurement 
focus that is different from other funds. For example, these funds report the acquisition of capital assets 
and payments for debt principal as expenditures and not as changes to asset and debt balances.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.   For this purpose, the City considers revenues 
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period except for 
reimbursement type grants that are recorded as revenues when the related expenditures are recognized 
and available within 120 days of year end.  Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting.   However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences, claims, judgments, and net pension liabilities are recorded only when 
payment is due. 
 
Sales and use taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, court fines and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 
 
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government 
operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental fund information helps one determine 
(through a review of changes to fund balance) whether there are more or fewer financial resources that 
can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  The City’s governmental funds include: 

 
Major Funds: 

 General Fund – accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds. 
For reporting purposes the General Fund also includes the activities of the Reimbursed 
Projects Account, Employee Activity Account, Activity Account, Animals Best Friend 
Account, Disaster Relief Account, and Retiree Health Claims Account. 

 Police Fund – is a special revenue fund that accounts for police services funded by a 
restricted sales tax, a transfer of 34.21% of General Fund revenues per ordinance legally 
restricted for police operations, and fines and fees restricted for traffic enforcement 
operations. For reporting purposes, the Police Fund includes the Jail Fund. 

 Fire Fund –– is a special revenue fund that accounts for fire protection services funded by 
sales tax legally restricted for fire and a transfer  of 27.66% of General Fund revenues per 
ordinance legally restricted for fire operations. 

 Midwest City Hospital Authority – is a special revenue fund that manages activities related to 
the hospital lease, funded by interest income and in lieu of taxes.  The Hospital Authority also 
makes investments and expenditures in economic development activities. 

 Economic Development Authority – is a special revenue fund that manages activities related 
to economic development, funded by lease income. 

  Sooner Rose TIF– is a special revue fund that manages the activities related to the Sooner 
Rose development district, funded by sales and use tax, interest income and property taxes. 
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Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds): 
 

Special Revenue Funds include Grants, Juvenile, Parks and Recreation, Emergency Operations,  
Technology, Welcome Center, Police Impound Fees, Street and Alley, Police Special Projects, Police 
Lab Fee, Convention/Visitors Bureau, Urban Renewal Authority Funds, Tax Increment Financing, 
Street Light Fee, and General Government Sales Tax. 

 
Debt Service Fund – accounts for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring general 
obligation bonds, and their related interest expenses. 

 
Capital Project Funds: 

 Capital Improvement Fund – accounts for assessed fees that help fund capital projects for 
various functions of the City. 

 Downtown Redevelopment Authority – accounts for the lease proceeds from the 29th street 
redevelopment.   Proceeds are used to fund various needs of the City. 

 2002 Street Project Fund – accounts for the proceeds from the 2002 General Obligation Street 
Bonds which funds capital street projects. 

 Dedicated Tax 2012 Fund – accounts for the sales tax restricted for street, parks, trails, 
sidewalks and public transportation projects. 

 Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund – accounts for sales tax restricted by a vote of the 
citizens for capital improvements, including debt retirements. 

 Capital Outlay Reserve Fund – accounts for funds set aside to fund the five year capital needs 
projects. 
  

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities 
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of 
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level. 
 
Proprietary Funds: 
 
When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service 
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to other funds or departments of the City. 
Proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement 
focus. For example, proprietary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and principal 
payments on long-term debt are recorded as a reduction to the liability.   
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the Midwest City Municipal Authority (Municipal Authority), non major enterprise funds and of the 
City’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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The City’s proprietary funds include the following: 
 
Enterprise Funds  
 
Major: 
 The Municipal Authority includes the following accounts: 
 

 Water Account (includes the Water Operating Account and the Water Capital Projects Account) 
accounts for the activities providing water services to the public.  

 Sewer Account (includes the Sewer Operating Account and the Sewer Capital Projects Account) 
accounts for the activities providing sewer services to the public.  

 Sanitation Account (includes the Sanitation Operating Account) accounts for the activities 
providing sanitation services to the public.  

 Conference Center/Hotel Account (includes the Conference and Hotel Operating Account) 
accounts for the activities related to the Conference Center and Hotel.  

 Drainage Account (includes the Drainage Operating Fund and the Capital Projects Account) 
accounts for the activities providing drainage services to the public. 

 Debt Service Account accounts for the debt activities related to the 2011 and 2011A Revenue 
Bonds. 

 Utility Services Fund – accounts for activities related to billing for water, sewer, sanitation, 
storm water, and drainage. 

 Utilities Capital Fund – accounts for capital purchases for the water, sewer, and sanitation 
systems. 

 Customer Deposit Fund –accounts for utility customer deposits. 
 Golf Course Fund –accounts for activities of the John Conrad and the Hidden Creek golf 

courses. 
 

Non-Major: 
 Utilities Authority Fund –accounts for industrial development activities. 
 29th and Douglas –accounts for activities of the trailer park at 29th and Douglas.  

 
Internal Service Funds (aggregated in a single column for reporting purposes) 

 
 Risk Management Fund -  accounts for the cost of providing various insurance services (i.e, 

general liability, vehicle and property) to other funds and departments of the City 
 Public Works Administration Fund - accounts for the cost of centralization of administrative 

resources to various departments of the City.  This fund primarily serves the business-type 
activities. 

 Fleet Services Fund - accounts for fuel, maintenance and repairs for the City’s fleet. 
 Surplus Property Fund - accounts for the disposal of surplus property on behalf of all 

departments. 
 L&H Benefits Fund - accounts for health and life benefits to employees.   
 Workers Compensation Fund – accounts for the cost of providing workers compensation  

insurance services to the other funds and departments of the  city 
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1.C.   Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 
 

Deposits and Investments: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less, and money market investments.  
Trust account investments in open-ended mutual fund shares are also considered cash equivalents. 
 
Investments, other than Hospital Authority investments, consist of long-term certificates of deposit, 
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, and U.S. agency securities. Certificates of deposit are reported at cost, 
while the U.S. Treasury and agency securities are reported at fair value. Hospital investment consist of 
mutual funds, equities, and foreign equities.  Investments are reported at fair value.  
 
Except where otherwise required, cash resources have been pooled in order to maximize investment 
opportunities.  Income from investments purchased with pooled cash is allocated to individual funds 
based on the funds’ average cash balance and legal requirements. 
 
Restricted Assets: 
 
Certain proceeds of the enterprise funds’ promissory notes, as well as certain resources set aside for 
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position because they are 
maintained in separate bank accounts, and their use is limited by applicable loan covenants.  The debt 
service fund accounts are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the 
next 12 months.  In addition, amounts held for meter deposit refunds are considered restricted. 
 
Receivables  
 
In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the 
periodic aging of accounts receivable.   Major receivable balances for the governmental activities 
include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, grants and court fines.  Business-type activities report 
utilities as its major receivable. 

 
In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals 
such as sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues.   Non-
exchange transactions collectible but not available are reported as a deferred inflow of resources in the 
fund financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not reported 
as a deferred inflow of resources in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the 
accrual basis.  Interest on investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days 
since they would be considered both measurable and available.  Proprietary fund material receivables 
consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  Utility accounts receivable and interest 
earnings comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts 
receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
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Inventories: 
 
Inventories are valued at average cost.  Governmental fund inventory is related to parts of vehicle and 
equipment maintenance. Proprietary fund inventory is related to material on hand for repairs and 
improvements to the utility system. The cost of inventories are recorded as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
Land Held for Economic Development:  
 
The Hospital Authority owns land that is being held for future economic development.  This land is 
carried at the lower of cost or market.   
 
Capital Assets: 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated 
acquisition value at the date of donation. 
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
The City early implemented GAS Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End 
of the Construction Period, and no longer capitalizes interest costs, in proprietary funds or business-
type activities. 
 
Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The range of 
estimated lives by type of assets is as follows: 

 
 Buildings/improvements     25-60 years 
 Utility systems     25-99 years 
 Infrastructure     25-99 years 
 Machinery and equipment    5-20 years 
 Vehicles 5-25 years 

 
Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities 
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
In 1996, the Hospital Authority entered into a long-term lease agreement with a third party to lease 
the Midwest City Municipal Hospital for a 30 year period.  The lessee prepaid the entire amount of 
the rent for the 30 years, a total of $26.9 million.  This amount is being recognized in income over the 
30 year period. 
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Long-term obligations: 
 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statements of Net Position.  Bond premiums 
and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of bond premium or discount.  Deferred amount on refundings are amortized over the 
shorter of the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the refunded debt using the straight line 
method.   Deferred amounts are shown as deferred inflows or outflows. 
 
Long-term obligations of governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 
statements.  The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and 
interest reported as expenditures. 
 
The City’s long term debt consists of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds and notes, accrued 
compensated absences, contracts payable, net pension liability, net OPEB obligation, and refundable 
deposits. 
 
Compensated Absences: 
 
Under the terms of union contracts and City personnel policies, City employees are granted vacation 
and sick leave in varying amounts.  Regular full-time civilian employees earn vacation leave per pay 
period in varying amounts from 80.08 hours per year to 204.10 hours per year based upon years of 
service. Upon separation from the city, a civilian employee is paid for accrued vacation up to a 
maximum of 192 hours plus current year accrual earned to date of separation.  Civilian employees earn 
sick leave per pay period of 3.7 hours, for a total of 96.20 hours per year with the exception of Fire 
Rookies working 24 hour shifts who earn 5.54 hours per pay period for an annual total of 144.04 hours 
per year.  Civilian employees who separate from employment with the city will be compensated for all 
accrued but unused sick leave as follows: Upon separation from the city after 10 years of service, a 
civilian employee is paid for accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 960 hours plus current year accrual 
earned to date of separation at 1/2 his/her hourly rate of pay.   Civilian employees who separate from 
employment prior to 10 years of service shall receive no compensation for accrued sick leave benefits.  
 
Police union employees earn vacation leave per pay period in varying amounts from 80.08 hours per 
year to 204.10 hours per year based upon years of service. Upon separation from the city, a police 
union employee is paid for accrued vacation up to a maximum of 216 hours plus current year accrual 
earned to date of separation.  Police union employees earn sick leave per pay period of 4.6 hours for an 
annual total of 119.60 hours.  Police union employees who separate from employment with the city will 
be compensated for all accrued but unused sick leave as follows: Upon separation from the city after 10 
years or more of service, a police union employee is paid for accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 
11,000 hours plus current year accrual earned to date of separation at ½ his/her hourly rate of pay.  
Police union employees who separate from employment prior to 10 years of service shall receive no 
compensation for accrued sick leave benefits.  100% of the sick leave balance shall be paid to the police 
union employee’s named beneficiary in the event an employee is killed in the line of duty.   
 
Fire union employees earn vacation leave per pay period in varying amounts from 80.08 hours per year 
to 301.34 hours per year based upon shift worked and years of service. Upon separation from the city, a 
fire union employee is paid for accrued vacation up to a maximum of 300 hours plus current year 
accrual earned to date of separation for 24 hour workers; up to a maximum of 216 hours plus current 
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year accrual earned to date of separation for 8 hour workers.  Fire union employees earn sick leave per 
pay period of 5.54 for a total of 144.04 hours per year for 24 hour workers and 96.20 hours per year for 
8 hour workers.  Fire union employees who separate from employment with the city will be 
compensated for all accrued but unused sick leave as follows: Upon separation from the city after 10 
years or more of service or with an on-the-job injury, a fire union employee is paid for accrued sick 
leave up to a maximum of 1,314 hours for 24 hour workers; up to a maximum of 939 hours for 8 hour 
workers at 1/3  his/her hourly rate of pay.  Hours accumulated over the maximum are paid at the rate of 
½ his/her hourly rate of pay each bi-weekly pay period. Employees, regardless of years of service, will 
be paid out at ½ for separation due to on the job injury. Fire union employees who separate from 
employment prior to 10 years of service and without an on-the-job injury shall receive no compensation 
for accrued sick leave benefits.  
 
Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources: 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources until then.  The City has three items that qualify for reporting in this category.    
A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its 
reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded 
or refunding debt. The city also reports deferred outflows for pension and OPEB-related amounts. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as 
in inflow of resources (revenues) until that time.  The governmental funds report unavailable revenues 
from court fines and property taxes.  These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources in the period that the amounts become available.    In the City’s government-wide statements 
the property tax revenues remain as a deferred inflow under the full accrual basis of accounting and will 
become an inflow in the year for which they are levied.   The government-wide Statement of Net 
Position also reports deferred inflows for pension and OPEB-related amounts.   
 
Fund Equity: 
  
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Net position is displayed in three components: 
a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, 
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those 
assets, plus the remaining construction proceeds of debt issued for capital improvements. 
 
b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments, 
or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
  
c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” 
or “net investment in capital assets.” 
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It is the City’s policy to first use unrestricted net position prior to the use of restricted net position when 
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.   Fund balance is further classified as 
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.  These classifications are defined as: 
 
a. Nonspendable – includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in   
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
b. Restricted – consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 
(2) laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
c. Committed – includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest 
level of decision-making authority is made by ordinance.  The Municipal Authority, Hospital Authority 
and Urban Renewal Authority highest level of decision-making authority is made by resolution. 

 
d. Assigned – includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific 
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.  Assignments of fund balance may be made by city 
council action or management decision when the city council has delegated that authority.  Assignments 
for revenues in other governmental funds are made through budgetary process. 
 
e. Unassigned – represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. 
 
It is the City’s policy to first use unrestricted fund balance prior to the use of the restricted fund balance 
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available.  The City’s policy for the use of fund balance amounts require that unassigned amounts 
would be reduced first followed by assigned amounts and then committed amounts when expenditures 
are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications 
could be used.   
 

1.D.   Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses 
 

Program Revenues: 
 
Program revenues within the Statement of Activities that are derived directly from each activity or from 
parties outside of the City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues.  The City has the following 
program revenues in each activity: 

 
 Public Safety – Fire, Police, 911 –fines and forfeitures, restricted operating grants, 911 

revenue, and restricted capital grants, property seizure, donations, state on-behalf 
pension contributions 

 Streets – commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State. 
 Culture and recreation – pool fees, rental of community center and senior center, 

programming fees,  park fees,  softball fees, operating and capital grants 
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 Health and Welfare – FEMA grants 
 Economic Development – rental income and operating grants 
 General Government – license and permits, technology and false alarm fees, impact fees, 

and operating grants 
 
All other governmental revenues are reported as general revenues.  All taxes are classified as general 
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.  
 
Sales Tax Revenue: 
 
Sales tax revenue represents a 3.85 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales which is collected by the 
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City.   Upon final allocation the sales tax is broken 
down as follows: 
 

 July 1 to December 
31, 2017 

Staring January 
2018 

General Government 1.04 27.01% 1.25 27.17% 
Police 1.10 28.57% 1.42 30.87% 
Fire .92 23.90% 1.14 24.78% 
911 .04 1.04% .04 .87% 
Capital Improvements .25 6.49% .25 5.43% 
Parks and Recreation .05 1.30% .05 1.09% 
Sewer Plant .40 10.39% .40 8.70% 
Streets/Parks/Sidewalks/Trails/and Public 
Transportation 

 
.05 

 
1.30% 

 
.05 

 
1.09% 

Totals 3.85 100% 4.6 100% 
 
In November 2017, voters approved an increase in the City’s sales tax rate from 3.85% to 4.6%, 
effective January 1, 2018. 
 
Property Tax Revenue: 
 
In accordance with state law, a municipality may only levy a property tax to retire general obligation 
debt approved by the voters and to pay judgments rendered against the City. Property taxes levied by 
the City are billed and collected by the County Treasurer's Office and remitted to the City in the month 
following collection. Property tax is levied each October 1st on the assessed valuation of non-exempt 
real property located in the City as of the preceding January 1st, the lien date. Property taxes are due on 
November 1st following the levy date, although they may be paid in two equal installments (if the first 
installment is paid prior to January 1st, the second installment is not delinquent until April 1st). 
Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and are remitted to the City. Property tax 
receivables are recorded on the lien date, although the related revenue is reported as a deferred inflow 
of resources and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. Property taxes 
unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following October.  For 
the year ended June 30, 2018, the City's net assessed valuation of taxable property was $330,156,570.  
The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valuation for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 
$0.92. 
Property tax accrued on the lien date of January 1, 2018 and recorded as a deferred inflow of resources 
was $322,688. 
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Expenditures and Expenses: 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, expenses, including depreciation of capital assets, are 
reported by function or activity. In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are 
reported by class as current (further reported by function), capital outlay and debt service. In the 
proprietary fund financial statements, expenses are reported by object or activity. 
 
 

1.E.   Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities 
 
In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide statement of net 
position and statement of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the 
fund financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 
Interfund activity, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial statements as 
follows: 
 

1. Internal balances – amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund 
receivable and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities 
columns of the statement of net position, except for the net residual amounts due between 
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances. 

2. Internal activities - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund transfers 
are eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of 
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as 
Transfers - Internal Activities.  The effect of interfund services between funds is not 
eliminated in the statement of activities. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is 
reported as follows in the fund financial statements: 

 
1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as 

interfund receivables and payables. 
 
2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as 

revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
  
3. Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain 

expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as 
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds. 

 
4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not 

expected are reported as transfers in and out. 
1.F. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
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the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

1.G. New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

The City implemented the following new accounting standards during the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
The City implemented Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions – GASB No. 75 was issued in June 2015, and addresses accounting and 
financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental 
employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For a defined benefit 
OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project 
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that 
present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information 
requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed. This Statement resulted in a restatement 
of net positon by decreasing net position by $14,225,371. 
 
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements – GASB 81 was 
issued in March 2016, to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest 
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government 
is a beneficiary of the agreement. Implementation of GASB 81 did not significantly affect the City’s 
financial statements. 
 
The City implemented GASB Statement 85, Omnibus 2017, This Statement addresses a variety of 
topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and 
application, and postemployment benefits. Implementation of GASB 85 did not significantly affect the 
City’s financial statements. 
 
The City implemented GASB Statement 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues - The primary 
objective of this Statement is to improve the consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary 
assets acquired with only existing resources – resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt – are 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves 
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to 
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. Implementation of GASB 86 did not 
significantly affect the City’s financial statements. 
 
The City early implemented GASB 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a 
Construction Period – This statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial 
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  As a result, interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital 
asset reported in a business-type activity or proprietary type funds. Implementation of GASB 89 did not 
significantly affect the City’s financial statements. 

 
2.   Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments 

    
Deposits and Investments Risks 
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  The City categorizes its fair value measurements within 
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is 
based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Markets Other Observable Unobservable

for Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value

US agency securities -$                    34,723,247$            -$                       34,723,247$               
Real Estate -                      -                         566,668                  566,668                     
Mutual Fund - equities 28,185,127           -                         -                         28,185,127                 
Mutual Fund - Fixed Income 5,573,304             -                         -                         5,573,304                   

33,758,431$          34,723,247$            566,668$                69,048,346$               

 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the City’s investments in U.S. agency securities are valued using Level 2 
inputs.  The value is determined using quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 
 
Real estate investments classified in Level 3 are valued using the change in assessed property tax land 
values for similar properties from the county assessor. 

 
Certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value are measured at net asset value 
(NAV), or its equivalent.  NAV per share is calculated as of the City’s year-end in a manner 
consistent with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s measurement principles.  The 
valuation method for investments measured at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) is presented on 
the following table. 
 

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value Fair Value Redemption Frequency Redemption Notice Period
US equity index funds (1) 42,531,012$              Daily 2 days
US fixed income debt funds (2) 8,437,211                Daily 2 days

50,968,223$              

 
 

(1) US equity index funds – The Fund is an index fund that seeks investment results that correspond 
generally to the S&P 500 Index.  The Fund is invested and reinvested in a portfolio of equity 
securities with the objective of approximating as closely as practicable the capitalization weighted 
total rate of return of that segment of the U.S. market for publicly traded equity securities 
represented by the larger capitalized companies.  The investment is valued at the net asset value 
of units held at the end of the period based upon the fair value of the underlying investments. 
 

(2) US fixed income debt funds – The US fixed income debt fund is an index fund that establishes 
an objective of delivering investment performance approximating as closely as practicable the 
total rate of return of the market for debt securities as defined by the Barclays U.S. Aggregate 
Bond Index. The Fund uses a "passive" or indexing approach to try to achieve the Fund's 
investment objective. The investment is valued at the net asset value of units held at the end of 
the period based upon the fair value of the underlying investments. 
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The City of Midwest City primary government and blended component units are governed by the 
deposit and investment limitations of state law and trust indentures. The deposits and investments 
held at June 30, 2018 by these entities are as follows: 
 

Carrying Credit On Less
Type Value Rating Demand Than One 1 - 5 6 - 10 More than 10

Demand deposits 31,123,668$          n/a 31,123,668$   -$                -$              -$              -$                
T ime deposits 11,452,962            n/a -                  6,500,000       4,952,962     -                -                  
Government Money Market  Accounts 11,656,259            AAAm 11,656,259     -                  -                -                -                  
U.S. Agencies Obligations 34,723,247            n/a -                  -                  7,952,421     148,765        26,622,061     
    Sub-total 88,956,136            42,779,927$   6,500,000$     12,905,383$ 148,765$      26,622,061$   

Real Estate 566,668                 
Mutual Funds - equities 70,716,140            
Fixed Income 14,010,514            
    Sub-total 85,293,322            
    Total Deposits and Investments 174,249,458$        

Reconciliation to Financial Statements:
  Cash and cash equivalents 29,257,947$          
  Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 16,606,770            
  Investments 127,283,159          
  Investments, restricted 1,101,582              

174,249,458$        

Maturities in Years

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds 
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized 
without a written or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to 
investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities 
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. 
 
The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral, 
valued at  no more than market value, at a minimum level of 110% of the uninsured deposits and accrued 
interest thereon. The City’s policy limits acceptable collateral to U.S. Treasury securities, federally 
insured obligations, or direct debt obligations of municipalities, counties, and school districts in 
Oklahoma. Also, as required by Federal 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging 
collateral to the City must have a written collateral agreement 
 
At June 30, 2018, the City had no exposure to custodial credit risk as defined above. 
  
Investment Credit Risk – The City’s investment policy limits investments, excluding the Hospital 
Authority and Municipal Authority, to the following: 
 
a. Obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities;  
b. Collateralized or insured non-negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit that are 

either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with an in-state financial institution, and fully 
insured deposits in out-of-state institutions; 

c. Insured or fully collateralized negotiable certificates of deposit; 
d. Repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items specified in paragraph 

a above; and 
e. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments 

mentioned in the previous paragraph a.  
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Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The City has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit rating, but discloses any 
such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality ratings of investments in 
debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—rating agencies—
as of the year end. Unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the U.S. government or 
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not 
require disclosure of credit quality.  
 
Investment Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. The City’s investment policy indicates that the investment portfolio, 
shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all operating requirements as anticipated.  The 
City discloses its exposure to interest rate risk by disclosing the maturity dates of its various investments 
by date range. 
 
As noted in the preceding schedule of deposits and investments, at June 30, 2018, the investments held by 
the City mature between 2018 through 2030. 

 
Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist 
when investments in any one issuer represent a significant percent of total investments of the City (any 
over 5% are disclosed). Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and 
investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from 
this consideration. The City’s investments in Blackrock (classified as mutual funds – equities) and 
Vanguard mutual funds each exceed 5%. 
 
Hospital Authority Investments: 
 
The Hospital Authority policy provides that assets be invested to preserve its principal, produce a 
proscribed level of income, and provide for growth of principal with no outside additions to the fund 
being anticipated.  Assets are to be invested in a diversified portfolio to achieve attractive real rates of 
return.  The investment policy of the Hospital Authority allows for the investment of funds in domestic 
and international common stocks, government and corporate bonds, short-term fixed income securities 
maturing in one year or less (cash equivalents); by utilizing primarily index funds, mutual funds, or 
collective trust funds.   In addition, the Hospital Authority may invest portions of the fund corpus, or 
income, in real estate.  Such real estate investments would typically include developed or undeveloped 
real property located in Midwest City, Oklahoma or its environs, or commingled funds which invest in 
various kinds of property located throughout the United States.  The overall rate of return objective of the 
portfolio is a highest possible rate of return consistent with the risk levels established by the Board.   
 
The acceptable long-term rate of return is expected to provide equal or superior results, using a three to 
five year moving average, relative to the following benchmarks: 
 

1. An absolute return objective of the Consumer Price Index plus 4% compounded annually. 
2. An income return sufficient to meet any disbursement requirement as stipulated by the Board. 
3. A return exceeding the 90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill rate (risk-free rate). 
4. Domestic equity fund returns which exceed the S&P 500 Stock index return by 1% (100 basis 

points), per year and fixed income return which exceed the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond 
Index by ½% per year (50 basis points). 
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5. Stock and bond returns which fall into the top 25% of the Consultant’s Universe (or other 
representative universe approved by The Board) of common stock and bond funds (referred to 
as equity and fixed income), with some consistency. 

6. Passive domestic returns which replicate the return of the Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock Index, 
passive fixed returns which replicate the return of the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index, 
and passive international returns which replicate the return of the MSCI EAFE International 
Index.   

 
Asset allocation guidelines for the Hospital Authority are as follows: 
 

Class Target Maximum June 2018 Percent

Equities - Domestic 20%-70% 85% 73.3%
Fixed Income 2.5%-30% 80% 14.6%
Cash Equivalents 0% 20% 12.1%

      
 

Restricted Cash and Investments 
 
The amounts reported as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position are comprised of amounts held 
for Debt Service accounts by the trustee bank for revenue bond retirement and revenue bond construction 
funds, and the Customer Deposit Account for refundable deposits held by others.  The restricted assets as 
of June 30, 2018 are as follows: 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Restricted for Debt Service 16,311,717$         
Restricted for Refundable Deposits 295,053

16,606,770$         

Investments:
Investments Restricted for Refundable Deposits 1,101,582$           

1,101,582$           

 
 

 
 
3.   Leases Receivable 
 
The Hospital Authority entered into an agreement with the Midwest Regional Medical Center (now 
known as Alliance Health Midwest) to provide funds up to $25,000,000 to construction two additional 
floors onto the existing six floor patient tower. The loan is amortized over a 25 year period with an 
interest rate of 7.5%, will be repaid within 9 years from December 2010, with a balloon payment in 
November 2019. The loan is secured with a lease receivable for future rental of the facility.   At the end of 
the fiscal year, the City reflects a $19.1 million receivable in the governmental activities. 
 
The Economic Development Authority entered into an agreement with Sooner Town Center, LLC to 
provide funds up to $49,155,000 for the Town Center Plaza Project.  The loan is amortized over a 30 year 
period with interest rates of 2.40% to 4.70%. The loan is secured with a lease receivable for future rental 
of the facility.   At the end of the fiscal year, the City reflects a $43.6 million receivable in the 
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governmental activities.  At the end of the fiscal year, the borrower had not drawn $5.2 million of the 
available loan proceeds. 
 
 
4.   Capital Assets and Depreciation  

 
Capital Assets: 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, capital assets balances changed as follows: 
 
 

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2017 Additions Disposals June 30, 2018

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Governmental activities:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:
    Land 32,766,690$      1,610,727$                75,720$           34,301,697$             
    Construction in progress 5,946,526          2,117,027                  1,901,601        6,161,952                 
      Total capital assets not being depreciated 38,713,216        3,727,754                  1,977,321        40,463,649               
  Capital assets  being depreciated: .
    Buildings 29,619,008        157,173                     -                       29,776,181               
    Machinery and equipment 20,534,768        1,034,360                  272,586           21,296,542               
    Vehicles 9,400,303          456,682                     296,425           9,560,560                 

Infrastructure 446,306,606      3,661,007                  63,500             449,904,113             
      Total other capital assets 505,860,685      5,309,222                  632,511           510,537,396             
  Less accumulated depreciation for:
    Buildings 12,354,697        659,623                     -                       13,014,320               
    Machinery and equipment 15,123,996        974,458                     238,723           15,859,731               
    Vehicles 5,141,463          600,895                     278,658           5,463,700                 

Infrastructure 193,889,360      12,226,749                17,159             206,098,950             
      Total accumulated depreciation 226,509,516      14,461,725                534,540           240,436,701             
  Capital assets  being depreciated, net 279,351,169      (9,152,503)                97,971             270,100,695             
 Governmental activities capital assets, net 318,064,385$     (5,424,749)$              2,075,292$      310,564,344$           
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Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2017 Additions Disposals June 30, 2018

Business-type activities:
  Capital assets not being depreciated:
    Land 7,572,449$        -$                              -$                     7,572,449$               
   Water rights 4,672,610          -                                -                       4,672,610                 
   Construction in progress 2,693,397          78,000                       1,033,038        1,738,359                 
      Total capital assets not being depreciated 14,938,456        78,000                       1,033,038        13,983,418               
  Capital assets  being depreciated:
    Buildings 32,111,141        362,957                     -                       32,474,098               
    Machinery and equipment 13,773,839        266,283                     41,295             13,998,827               
    Vehicles 8,765,073          422,276                     35,791             9,151,558                 

Utility systems 179,948,561      1,322,672                  37,296             181,233,937             
      Total other capital assets 234,598,614      2,374,188                  114,382           236,858,420             
  Less accumulated depreciation for:
    Buildings 10,631,012        732,664                     -                       11,363,676               
    Machinery and equipment 9,131,108          628,114                     23,992             9,735,230                 
    Vehicles 4,767,000          487,160                     35,791             5,218,369                 

Utility systems 64,634,550        4,081,474                  1,369               68,714,655               
   Total accumulated depreciation 89,163,670        5,929,412                  61,152             95,031,930               
  Capital assets  being depreciated, net 145,434,944      (3,555,224)                53,230             141,826,490             
   Business-type activities capital assets, net 160,373,400$     (3,477,224)$              1,086,268$      155,809,908$           

 
 
Depreciation: 
 
Depreciation expense has been allocated as follows: 
 

434,040$        
Public safety 1,223,632
Streets 12,041,992

347,304
Health and welfare 31,258

314,257
  Sub-total governmental funds depreciation 14,392,483

Depreciation on capital assets held by the
City's internal service funds is charged
to the various functions based upon usage 69,242
  Total 14,461,725$   

Culture and recreation

Economic development

Governmental Activities:

General government
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Business-Type Activities:

Water 1,142,275$     
Sewer 2,916,708
Sanitation 495,141
Drainage 278,351
Conference center/hotel 909,561
Golf 116,380
Industrial park 57,073
  Total Business Type Activities 5,915,489

Depreciation on capital assets held by the
City's internal service funds is charged
to the various functions based upon usage 13,923
  Total 5,929,412$     

 
 
5.   Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers  
 

Internal and Interfund Balances: 
 
Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2018 were as follows: 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount Nature of Interfund Balance

General Gov Sales Tax Surplus Property 60,581$                   Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
General Fund Comm Dev Block Grant 75,905                     To cover negative balance in pooled cash
General Fund Housing Grant 27,886                     To cover negative balance in pooled cash
General Fund Fire Fund 885,203                   Long-term loan for capital improvements
Police Fund General Fund 2,146,368                Restricted sales tax payable
Police Fund Surplus Property 71,004                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Juvenile Fund Surplus Property 780                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Fire Fund General Fund 1,735,415                Restricted sales tax payable
Fire Fund Surplus Property 11,567                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Welcome Center Surplus Property 350                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Convention & Visitor Bureau Surplus Property 148                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Emergency Operating Fund Surplus Property 287                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Grant Fund Surplus Property 1,222                       Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Grant Fund Police Impound Fee 403                          Revenue accrued to be transferred
Downtown Redevelopment Reimbursed Project 49,530                     Long-term loan for capital improvements
Hospital Authority Surplus Property 2,689                       Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Capital Improvements Fund Debt Service 28,616                     Revenue accrued to be transferred
Public Works Administration Surplus Property 3                              Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Fleet Services Fund Surplus Property 199                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Storm Water Quality Surplus Property 54                            Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Sanitation Fund Surplus Property 72,398                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Water Fund Surplus Property 17,760                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Sewer Surplus Property 13,213                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Hotel Surplus Property 12,680                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Golf Surplus Property 2,514                       Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed
Debt Service Sales Tax Capital Improvement 695,801                   Revenue accrued to be transferred

5,912,576$              

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
Due From Other 

Funds
Advance From 
Other Funds

Due To Other 
Funds

Advance To 
Other Funds

Net Internal 
Balances

Governmental Funds 4,163,221$              934,733$               4,710,394$        934,733$               (547,173)$        
Proprietary Funds 814,420                   -                        -                    -                        814,420            
Internal Service Funds 202                          -                        267,449             -                        (267,247)          
  Total 4,977,843$              934,733$               4,977,843$        934,733$               -$                 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Net Internal Balances 814,420$                 
Internal Service Fund Activity reported in Business-Type Activities (1,233,070)               
  Net Internal Balances (418,650)$                
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Internal and Interfund Transfers: 
 
The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers between funds in the Statement of Activities to 
avoid the grossing up of balances.  Only the residual balances transferred between governmental and 
business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and then offset in the total column.  Internal 
activities between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

 
Transfer In Transfer Out Amount Nature of Transfer

General Fund Fire Fund 166,000$                 Code Enforcement Allocation
General Fund Storm Water Quality Fund 66,908                     Indirect Cost Allocation
General Fund Sanitation Fund 913,936                   Indirect Cost Allocation
General Fund Water Fund 848,460                   Indirect Cost Allocation
General Fund Sewer Fund 922,099                   Indirect Cost Allocation
General Fund Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund 8,275,056                Debt Service Subsidy
General Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 15,364                     Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
General Fund Hospital Authority 515,364                   Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
General Gov Sales Tax General Fund 27,667                     Capital Outlay Subsidy
General Gov Sales Tax G.O.Debt Services 3,084                       Capital Outlay Subsidy
Street and Alley Fund Water Fund 38,907                     Capital Outlay Subsidy
Technology Fund Emergency Operations Fund 50,354                     Contract Cost Allocation
Police Fund General Fund 10,485,539              Ordinance Obligation
Police Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 56,472                     Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Police Fund Hospital Authority 56,471                     Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Juvenile Fund General Fund 37,000                     Operating Subsidy
Fire Fund Grants Fund 8,398,232                Ordinance Obligation
Fire Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 85,005                     Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Fire Fund Hospital Authority 85,005                     Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Emergency Management Fund Grants Fund 11,250                     Grant Subsidy
Community Development Block Grant General Fund 157,247                   City Match of CDBG Program 
Community Development Block Grant Downtown Redevelopment Authority 1,797                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Community Development Block Grant Hospital Authority 1,797                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Grants Fund Police Impound Fee 4,469                       Grant Subsidy
Downtown Redevelopment Hospital Authority 359                          Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Hospital Authority Downtown Redevelopment Authority 325,357                   Return on owners investment
Capital Improvement Fund Grants Fund 28,000                     Grant Subsidy
Capital Improvement Fund Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 251,688                   Capital Outlay Subsidy
Public Works Administration Downtown Redevelopment Authority 1,364                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Public Works Administration Hospital Authority 1,364                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Interservice fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 2,745                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Interservice fund Hospital Authority 2,745                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Risk Management General Gov Sales Tax 599                          Reimbursement of cost
Risk Management Downtown Redevelopment Authority 598                          Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Risk Management Hospital Authority 597                          Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
L&H Benefit Downtown Redevelopment Authority 125,312                   Operating Subsidy
L&H Benefit Hospital Authority 312                          Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
29th & Douglas Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 69,166                     Debt Service Subsidy
Utility Services Downtown Redevelopment Authority 527                          Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Utility Services Hospital Authority 526                          Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Sanitation Downtown Redevelopment Authority 1,891                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Sanitation Hospital Authority 1,891                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Water Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 4,215                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Water Fund Hospital Authority 4,214                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Sewer Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 3,993                       Retired Employee Insur  
Sewer Fund Hospital Authority 3,993                       Retired Employee Insurance Subsidy
Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 5,355,101                Debt Service Subsidy
Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund General Fund 8,275,056                Debt Service Subsidy

45,685,096$            

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
 Transfers From 

Other Funds 
Transfers To 
Other Funds Net Transfers

Governmental Funds 31,828,887$            (34,706,916)$      (2,878,029)$       
Proprietary Funds 13,720,573              (11,065,366)        2,655,207          
Internal Service Funds 135,636                   -                      135,636             
  Total 45,685,096$            (45,772,282)$      (87,186)$            

Reconciliation to Statement of Activities:
Net Transfers 2,655,207$        
Capital Contributions to Enterprise Fund 89,914               

Transfers - Internal Activity 2,745,121$        
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6.   Long-Term Liabilities and Obligations 
 

The City’s long term obligations consist of general obligation bonds, notes payable, revenue bonds 
payable accrued compensated absences, total OPEB liability and net pension liabilities.   For the year 
ended June 30, 2018, the City’s long-term debt balances changed as follows: 
 
Primary Government:   
 

Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt July 1, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018 One Year

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds 1,300,000$          -$                      325,000$          975,000$                   325,000$        

    Notes Payable 21,336,110          -                        683,969            20,652,141                723,100
    Revenue Bonds Payable -                           68,405,000       -                       68,405,000                795,000

Accrued Compensated Absences 5,517,182            2,953,028         2,905,387         5,564,823                  1,836,913
Refundable Deposits 70,333                 218,818            236,921            52,230                       52,230            

Total Governmental Activities 28,223,625$        71,576,846$     4,151,277$       95,649,194                3,732,243       

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Plus: Total OPEB Liability 16,734,479                -                     
        Net Pension Liability 32,280,170                -                     

144,663,843$            3,732,243$     

Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bonds Payable 53,675,000$        -$                      4,325,000$       49,350,000$              4,495,000$     
Revenue Bonds Premium 2,087,133            -                        265,891            1,821,242                  -                     
Refundable Deposits 1,481,856            499,349            459,582            1,521,623                  202,387
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,491,608            747,970            764,208            1,475,370                  520,933

Total Business-Type Activities 58,735,597$        1,247,319$       5,814,681$       54,168,235$              5,218,320$     

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Plus: Total OPEB Liability 6,331,652                  -                     

60,499,887$              5,218,320$     

 
 
Accrued compensated absences liability of the governmental activities is liquidated by the General Fund, 
Police Fund, the Fire Fund, Juvenile Fund, Grant Fund, Welcome Center Fund, Convention and Visitors 
Bureau Fund, Technology Fund, Park and Recreation Fund, Downtown Redevelopment Fund, Hospital 
Authority, and the Emergency Operations Fund. Net pension liability and total OPEB liability are paid 
from the General Fund, Police Fund and Fire Fund. 
 
Governmental activities long-term debt payable from property tax levies or other governmental revenues 
includes the following: 
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General Obligation Bonds:

$4,500,000 general obligation bonds dated May 1, 2006 for public safety, payable in 
annual installments of $275,000 the first year and $325,000, thereafter, with interest 
rates of 3.75% to 3.95%, repaid by property tax levies.  Final maturity in May 2021.  975,000$        

 
Total general obligation bonds 975,000$        

Current 325,000$        
Non-current 650,000          

Total 975,000$        

Notes Payable:
$25,000,000 construction loan for hospital addition, payable in monthly installments 
beginning December 2010 of $154,710; final payment due November 2019 of 
$19,773,124; interest rate equal to the variable rate equal to the "Prime Rate," as 
quoted in the Money Rates Section of The Wall Street Journal, adjusted daily, with a 
minimum interest rate of five and one-half percent (5.50%) per annum and a 
maximum interest rate of eleven percent (11%) per annum with payments adjusted 
annually; current rate is 5.5%; construction interest rate of 5.5%.  Secured by a first 
mortgage lien on the property. 20,652,141$    

Total notes payable 20,652,141$    

Current 723,100$        
Non-current 19,929,041      

Total 20,652,141$    

Revenue Bonds Payable:

$49,155,000 Economic Development Revenue Bonds due in annual principal 
installments of $795,000 to $4,265,000 through Feburary 1, 2048; interest rate ranges 
from 2.40% to 4.70%. Secured by mortgage lien on the property. 49,155,000$    

Total Revenue Bonds, Net 49,155,000$    

Current 795,000$        
Non-current 48,360,000      

Total 49,155,000$    

$19,250,000 Tax Apportionment Refunding Bonds due in annual principal installments 
of $795,000 to $1,810,000 starting July 1, 2021 through July 1, 2037; interest rate 
ranges from 3.45% to 4.75%. Repaid by property tax levies and sales/use tax 
apportioned. 19,250,000$    

Total Revenue Bonds, Net 19,250,000$    

Current -$               
Non-current 19,250,000      

Total 19,250,000$    
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Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated and taxes pledged to the 
City’s business-type activities include the following: 
 

Revenue Bonds Payable:

$26,630,000 Series 2011 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, due in annual 
principal installments of $855,000 to $1,740,000 through September 1, 2033; interest 
rate from 0.4% to 5.0%. 21,205,000$    

Unamortized Revenue Bond Premium 86,773            
Total Revenue Bonds, Net 21,291,773$    

Current 985,000$        
Non-current 20,220,000      

Total 21,205,000$    

$46,550,000 Series 2011A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, due in annual 
principal installments of $2,605,000 to $4,530,000 through June 30, 2025; interest 
rate from 0.5% to 5.0%. 28,145,000$    

Unamortized Revenue Bond Premium  1,734,466       
Total Revenue Bonds, Net 29,879,466$    

Current 3,510,000$      
Non-current 24,635,000      

Total 28,145,000$    

 
 
Long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

 

Revenue Bonds Payable
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019  $        325,000  $           38,513  $          723,100  $    1,133,429  $            795,000  $                2,768,805 
2020            325,000               25,675         19,929,041           462,927 910,000              2,900,430                  
2021            325,000               12,837                        -                       -   1,730,000           2,876,315                  
2022                      -                        -                          -                       -   1,790,000           2,822,240                  
2023                      -                        -                          -                       -   1,850,000           2,762,555                  

2024-2028                      -                        -                          -                       -   10,290,000         12,764,060                
2029-2033                      -                        -                          -                       -   12,555,000         10,488,830                
2034-2038                      -                        -                          -                       -   14,235,000         7,422,700                  
2039-2043                      -                        -                          -                       -   10,105,000         4,728,750                  
2044-2048                      -                        -                          -                       -   14,145,000         2,190,200                  

975,000$        77,025$           20,652,141$      1,596,356$     68,405,000$       51,724,885$              

Notes PayableG.O. Bonds Payable

Governmental-Type Activities
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Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2019 4,495,000$           2,000,538$         
2020 4,715,000             1,774,662           
2021 4,925,000             1,575,288           
2022 5,130,000             1,366,350           
2023 5,365,000             1,132,338           

2024-2028 15,280,000           3,068,313           
2029-2033 7,700,000             1,178,306           

2034 1,740,000             35,888                
49,350,000$         12,131,683$       

Revenue Bonds Payable

 
 

Short-term Debt 
The Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority issued the $16,475,000 Bond Anticipation Note, Series 
2017 in July 2017 and paid off the note on June 29, 2018. The note provided funds for project cost related to 
the Sooner Rose Project and to fund capitalized interest on the note. 
 

Balance Balance
Type of Debt July 1, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018

Governmental Activities:
Bond Anticipation Note -$                     16,475,000$     16,475,000$     -$                           

 
 
Pledge of Future Revenues 
 
Sales Tax Pledge  - The City has pledged one-fourth of one percent (or .25%) of future sales tax revenues to 
repay the 2011 Revenue Bonds which are payable through 2033.  Proceeds from the bond provided 
financing to advance refund the 2003 Revenue Bonds which were originally used for construction and 
equipping the Sheraton Hotel and the Reed Conference Center.   The total principal and interest payable for 
the remainder of the life of the bond is $28,516,594.  Pledged sales taxes transferred in the current year was 
$13,630,157.  Debt service payments on 2011 Revenue Bonds of $1,803,425 for the current fiscal year were 
13.2% of pledged sales tax.  Other sources of revenues such as water and sewer are also pledged.    Total net 
revenues including utilities and sales tax pledged was $18,993,249. 
 
Sales Tax Pledge  - The City has pledged one-fourth of one percent (or .25%) of future sales tax revenues to 
repay the 2011A Revenue Bonds which are payable through 2025.  Proceeds from the bond provided 
financing for construction and improvements to the wastewater treatment plant.   The total principal and 
interest payable for the remainder of the life of the bond is $32,965,088.  Pledged sales taxes transferred in 
the current year was $13,630,157.  Debt service payments on the bonds were $4,707,363 for the current 
fiscal year or 34.5% of pledged sales tax.  Other sources of revenues such as water and sewer are also 
pledged. Total net revenues including utilities and sales tax pledged was $18,993,249. 
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7.    Net Position and Fund Balances   
 
The following table shows the net position that is  restricted: 
 

Fund Restricted By Amount

Hospital Authority Enabling legislation  94,580,194$               
Technology Fund Enabling legislation 260,312                      
Police Impound Fund Enabling legislation 208,040                      
Urban Renewal Authority Enabling legislation 3,804                          
Capital Outlay Reserve Fund Enabling legislation 746,651                      
Street Lighting Fund Enabling legislation 1,113,954                   
Economic Development Authority Enabling legislation 1,214,770                   

98,127,725                 

Street and Alley Fund Statutory requirements 1,227,464                   
Juvenile Fund Statutory requirements 59,656                        
Police Special Projects Statutory requirements 210,166                      
Police Lab Fee Statutory requirements 17,864                        

1,515,150                   

Grant Fund External contracts 152,600                      
General Fund External contracts 1,595,346                   
Police Fund External contracts 5,247,982                   
Fire Fund External contracts 3,067,947                   
Park and Recreation Fund External contracts 602,464                      
Emergency Operation Fund External contracts 684,098                      
Welcome Center External contracts 356,499                      
Convention and Visitors Bureau External contracts 193,492                      
GO Debt Service Fund External contracts 149,038                      
2002 GO Street Bond External contracts 457,727                      
Downtown Redevelopment External contracts 1,818,804                   
Dedicated Tax Fund External contracts 1,294,801                   
Capital Improvement Fund External contracts 2,409,501                   
General Government Sales Tax Fund External contracts 2,554,502                   
Sooner Rose TIF External contracts 8,194,801                   

28,779,602                 

Total Restricted Net Position 128,422,477$             

Restricted for:
Debt service 149,038$                    
Hospital 94,580,194                 
Capital improvements 6,987,796                   
Public Safety 10,319,736                 
Street operations 2,341,418                   
Culture and recreation 1,319,154                   
Economic Development 10,043,482                 
Other 2,681,659                   

128,422,477$             
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The following table shows the fund balance classifications as shown on the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet: 
 

Other
General Police Fire Hospital Sooner Rose Economic Development Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Authority TIF Authority Fund Total
Fund Balance:

Nonspendable:
Inventory -$                     -$                -$                -$                 -$                 -$                                  60,000$           60,000$         
Deposits held by others 885,203                 -                  -                 5,684,054         -                  -                                    5,566              6,574,823       
Advance from other funds -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    49,530             49,530           
Prepaid expenses 4,612                    -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 4,612             

889,815                 -                  -                 5,684,054         -                  -                                    115,096           6,688,965       

Restricted:
Public safety 823,983                 5,247,982         3,067,947        -                  -                  -                                    1,179,824        10,319,736     
Hospital -                       -                  -                 95,501,195        -                  -                                    -                 95,501,195     
General obligation debt service -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    131,132           131,132         
Capital improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    6,220,227        6,220,227       
Street improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    457,727           457,727         
Street operations -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    2,341,418        2,341,418       
Technology improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    260,312           260,312         
Culture and rec programs 360,191                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    958,963           1,319,154       
Economic development 284,015                 -                  -                 -                  8,194,801         6,755,196                           369,360           15,603,372     
Public works 82,751                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 82,751           
Health and welfare programs 32,406                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 32,406           
General government 12,000                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    2,554,502        2,566,502       

Sub-total restricted 1,595,346              5,247,982         3,067,947        95,501,195        8,194,801         6,755,196                           14,473,465       134,835,932   

Committed to:
Economic development -                       -                  -                 1,424,055         -                  -                                    -                 1,424,055       

Assigned to:
Culture and rec programs 41,846                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 41,846           
Health and welfare programs 47,373                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 47,373           
Capital improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    1,108,944        1,108,944       
Public safety  426,522                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 426,522         
Economic development  -                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    51,030             51,030           
General government 14,254                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 14,254           
Public works   94,219                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 94,219           
General government - encumbrances 34,063                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 34,063           
Public safety - encumbrances 435                       -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 435               
Public works - encumbrances 68,920                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 68,920           
Culture and rec - encumbrances 5,895                    -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 5,895             
Economic development - encumbrances 86,776                  -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 86,776           
Health and welfare - encumbrances 279,725                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 279,725         

Sub-total assigned 1,100,028              -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    1,159,974        2,260,002       

Unassigned: 2,445,261              -                  -                 -                  -                  -                                    -                 2,445,261       

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 6,030,450$            5,247,982$       3,067,947$       102,609,304$    8,194,801$        6,755,196$                         15,748,535$     147,654,215$ 

Major Special Revenue Funds
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The following is a breakdown of encumbrances at June 30, 2018: 
 

Fund Balance
Major Funds:
General Fund 300,802$                            
Police Fund 44,695                                
Fire Fund 13,211                                
Hospital Authority 679,001                              
Sooner Rose TIF 4,889,466                           

5,927,175$                         
Non Major Fund:
General Govt Sales Tax 148,057$                            
Street and Alley Fund 160,096                              
Technology Fund 12,585                                
Street Lighting 3,275                                  
Police Lab Fund 432                                     
Welcome Center Fund 150                                     
Convention and Visitor Bureau 12,836                                
Street Tax Fund 80,756                                
Emergency Operations Fund 8,959                                  
Park and Recreation Fund 12,460                                
Grant Fund 55,658                                
Capital Improvement Fund 89,270                                
Downtown Redevelopment Fund 308,071                              
Urban Renewal Authority 16,000                                

908,605$                            

 
 

Per resolution, the City Council has established a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund 
equal to ten percent (10%) of the fund’s budgetary operating expenditures each fiscal year.  In addition, a 
reserve equal to five percent (5%) of the budgetary operating expenditures for each fund has been 
established for the following funds: Police Fund, Fire Fund, Welcome Center Fund, Convention and 
Visitors Bureau Fund and the Juvenile Fund.  The reserves are to ensure the fiscal solvency of the City as 
a safeguard and all or a portion of the reserves may be appropriated by the city council as necessary in the 
event of a natural disaster or other catastrophic circumstances, or in the event of significant accounting 
errors. 

 
The City restated beginning net position of the governmental activities , business-type activities, the 
major enterprise fund and internal service funds as follows: 

 
Governmental Business Type Major Enterprise Internal

Activities Activities Fund Service Funds

Beginning net position, as previously reported 400,575,924$                                  118,872,593$                   120,245,170$                   3,418,929$                       

Change in accounting principal related to implementation of GASB 75
Total OPEB liability (18,050,928)                                     (6,829,744)                        (6,342,083)                        (1,253,986)                        
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 625,918                                           236,822                            219,912                            43,481                              

    Removal of  net OPEB obligation 7,031,225                                        2,761,336                         2,592,347                         505,796                            
Beginning net position, restated 390,182,139$                                  115,041,007$                   116,715,346$                   2,714,220$                       
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The net position was restated due to adoption of a new accounting principle related to the 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other than Pension.  This restatement decreased beginning total net positon by $14,225,371.  
 

8.   Risk Management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City 
manages these various risks of loss as follows: 

 
 General Liability – Covered through self-insurance with stop-loss for individual claims in 

excess of $250,000 and aggregate stop loss of $1,000,000. 
 
 Physical Property – Covered through purchased insurance with deductibles, by coverage as 

follows: 
 

Wind/hail $100,000 
All other losses 25,000 
EDP 1,000 
Inland marine 5,000 
Fine arts deductible 1,000 
Automobile physical damage 2,500 

 
 

 Workers’ Compensation – Workers’ compensation is covered through self-insurance with the  
a third party administering the claims process.  The City carry’s stop-loss insurance for 
individual claims in excess of $450,000 for non-uniform employees and $500,000 for uniform 
employees with an aggregate stop loss of $1,000,000.  

 
 Employee’s Group Medical –Covered through self-insurance using a third party administrator  

to process medical claims.  The City uses the third party processor’s estimates to record group 
insurance claims payable.  The City also has a stop-loss policy which covers individual claims 
in excess of $150,000 during any year with aggregate stop loss of $7,591,989. 
 

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any significant 
uninsured losses to the City.  Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
Claims Liability Analysis 
 
The claims liabilities related to the above noted risks of loss that are retained are determined in 
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be 
reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated.   For the internal service self-insurance funds, changes in the claims liability for the 
City from June 30, 2015, to June 30, 2018, are as follows: 
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Workers Comp Health Care Total

Claims liability, June 30, 2015 2,205,000              539,571          2,744,571          
Claims and changes in estimates 597,468                 5,761,091       6,358,559          
Claims payments (998,468)               (5,751,574)      (6,750,042)         

Claims liability, June 30, 2016 1,804,000              549,088          2,353,088          
Claims and changes in estimates 1,307,827              4,848,703       6,156,530          
Claims payments (1,213,827)            (5,019,395)      (6,233,222)         

Claims liability, June 30, 2017 1,898,000              378,396          2,276,396          
Claims and changes in estimates 1,498,024              5,069,940       6,567,964          
Claims payments (1,354,024)            (5,179,933)      (6,533,957)         

Claims liability, June 30, 2018 2,042,000$            268,403$        2,310,403$        

 
 
 

9.   Retirement Plan Participation 
 
The City of Midwest City participates in three pension or retirement plans: 
 

1. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) - a statewide cost-sharing plan 
 

2. Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) – a statewide cost-sharing plan 
 

3. Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF-DCP) – an agent multiple-employer defined 
contribution plan 

 
Summary Defined Benefit Plans Balances: 
 

Governmental
Activities

Net Pension Liability
Police Pension System 155,991$        
Firefighter's Pension System 32,124,179      

Total Net Pension Liability 32,280,170$    

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Police Pension System 2,081,780$      
Firefighter's Pension System 6,999,189       

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,080,969$      

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Police Pension System 1,028,983$      
Firefighter's Pension System 1,623,769       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,652,752$      
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Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Systems 
 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Oklahoma Police Pension & Retirement System (OPPRS) and additions 
to/deductions from OPPRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by OPPRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Plan description -  The City of Midwest City, as the employer, participates in the Oklahoma Police 
Pension and Retirement Plan—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS). Title 11 of the 
Oklahoma State Statutes, through the Oklahoma Legislature, grants the authority to establish and 
amend the benefit terms to the OPPRS. OPPRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be 
obtained at www.ok.gov/OPPRS. 
 
Benefits provided - OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.  
The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes 20 years of 
credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing 10 years of credited 
service as a contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior to completing 10 years of 
credited service. Participants’ contributions are refundable, without interest, upon termination prior to 
normal retirement. Participants who have completed 10 years of credited service may elect a vested 
benefit in lieu of having their accumulated contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the 
participant is entitled to a monthly retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 
years of age or the date the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment 
continued uninterrupted, whichever is later. 
 
Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined as the average 
paid base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of credited 
service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30 years of credited service 
considered.  
 
Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5% of the 
participants’ final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated 
percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After 10 years of credited 
service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are eligible for a monthly 
benefit based on 2.5% of their final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This disability 
benefit is also reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of 
impairment. Effective July 1, 1998, once a disability benefit is granted to a participant, that participant 
is no longer allowed to apply for an increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.  
 
Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired 
participant. The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension 
benefit.  
 
Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determine by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 8% 
of their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 13% of the employees’ annual pay. 
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Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $813,621.  The State of Oklahoma also made on-
behalf contributions to OPPRS in the amount of $691,229 that is reported as both revenue and 
expenditure in the Police Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.  In 
the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s on-behalf 
contributions on an accrual basis of $695,246.   These on-behalf payments do not meet the criteria of a 
special funding situation. 
 
The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 3% and employer 
contributions will be 18%. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2018, the City reported a liability of $155,991 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by 
pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2017.  Based upon this information, the 
City’s proportion was 2.028% at June 30, 2018, which was a decrease of .251% compared to its 
proportion at June 3017. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $967,720.  At June 30, 2018, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 7,834$                    943,078$                
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 1,161,861                -                        
Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 15,296                    59,626                    
City Contributions during measurement 
date 83,168                    26,279                    
City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 813,621                  -                        
Total 2,081,780$              1,028,983$              

 
 

The $813,621 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions are being amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 
service lives of all employees as of the beginning of the measurement period. The net deferred 
outflows related to the difference between expected and actual investment earnings and is being 
amortized over a closed 5-year period as of the beginning of each measurement period. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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Year ended June 30:

2019 (22,315)$                 
2020 588,458                  
2021 272,838                  
2022 (485,444)                 
2023 (114,361)                 

Thereafter -                         
239,176$                 

 
 

Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 
30, 2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Inflation:    3% 
 
Salary increases:   4.5% to 17% average, including inflation 
 
Investment rate of return:        7.5% net of pension plan investment expense 
 
Mortality rates:   Active employees (pre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar 

Healthy Combined table with age set back 4 years with fully generational 
improvement using Scale AA. 

Active employees (post-retirement) and nondisabled pensioners: RP-
2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined table with fully generational 
improvement using scale AA. 

Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined 
table with age set forward 4 years with fully generational 
improvement using Scale AA. 

 
Cost-of-living Adjustment:  Police officers eligible to receive increased benefits according to repealed 

Section 50-150 of Title 11 of the Oklahoma Statutes pursuant to a court 
order receive and adjustment of 1/3 to ½ of the increase or decrease of any 
adjustment to the base salary of a regular police officer, based on an 
increase in base salary. 

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2012.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
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estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class  Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 4.51%
Domestic equity 6.62%
International equity 9.70%
Real estate 6.96%
Private equity/debt 9.86%
Commodities 5.18%

 
 

The current allocation policy is that approximately 60% of assets in equity instruments, including 
public equity, long-short hedge, venture capital, and private equity strategies; approximately 25% of 
assets in fixed income to include investment grade bonds, high yield and non-dollar denominated 
bonds, convertible bonds, and low volatility hedge fund strategies; and 15% of assets in real assets to 
include real estate, commodities, and other strategies. 
 
Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
contractually required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of 
Oklahoma will continue contributing 14% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on 
these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the 
net pension liability (asset) of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what 
the Plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)

Employers' net pension liability (asset) 5,272,074$              155,991$                (4,165,313)$         

 
 

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued financial report of the OPPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/OPPRS . 
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Oklahoma Fire Pension and Retirement Systems 
 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (FPRS) and additions 
to/deductions from FPRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by FPRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Plan description -  The City of Midwest City, as the employer, participates in the Firefighters Pension 
& retirement—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (FPRS). Title 11 of the Oklahoma State Statutes 
grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the FPRS. FPRS issues a publicly 
available financial report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/fprs. 
 
Benefits provided - FPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.  
Benefits for members hired prior to November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s 
final average compensation times the employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or 
have complete 20 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension 
benefit for normal retirement is $150.60 per month. Benefits vest with 10 years or more of service 
 
Benefits for members hired after November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s 
final average compensation times the employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or 
have complete 22 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension 
benefit for normal retirement is $165.66 per month. Benefits vest with 11 years or more of service 
 
All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the disability in-the-
line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal to 50% of final average 
monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of service. For firefighters with over 20 
years of service, a disability in-the-line-of-duty is calculated based on 2.5% of final average monthly 
compensation, based on the most recent 30 months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years 
of service. For disabilities not-in-the-line-of-duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 
years of service and is 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-
month salary as opposed to 30 months. For volunteer firefighters, the not-in-line-of-duty disability is 
also limited to only those with less than 20 years of service and is $7.53 per year of service. For 
volunteer firefighters, the in-line-of-duty pension is $150.60 with less than 20 years of service, or 
$7.53 per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years. 
 
A $5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient upon the 
participant's death. The $5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the vested benefit. 
 
Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determine by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 
9% percent of their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 14% of the employees’ 
annual pay. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $1,164,029.  The State of Oklahoma 
also made on-behalf contributions to FPRS in the amount of $2,257,611 that is reported as both a 
revenue and an expenditure in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
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Fund Balance. In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s 
on-behalf contributions on an accrual basis of $2,251,068.   These on-behalf payments did not meet 
the criteria of a special funding situation. 
 
The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 5% and employer 
contributions will be 18%. 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2017, the City reported a liability of $32,124,179 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by 
pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2017.  Based upon this information, the 
City’s proportion was 2.554%, at June 30, 2018, which was a decrease of .073% compared to its 
proportion at June 30, 2017. 
  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $3,857,672.  At 
June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 4,291,237$        -$                          
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments -                   895,191                     
Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 1,447,622          677,674                     
City contributions during the measurement 
period 96,301              50,904                       
City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 1,164,029          -                            
Total 6,999,189$        1,623,769$                 

 
 

The $1,164,029 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are 
being amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected service lives of all 
employees as of the beginning of the measurement period. The net deferred outflows of resources 
related to the difference between expected and actual investment earnings and is being amortized over 
a closed 5-year period as of the beginning of each measurement period. Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 
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Year ended June 30:
2019 557,529$          
2020 1,551,501          
2021 1,237,816          
2022 117,179            
2023 612,131            

Thereafter 135,235            
4,211,391$        

 
 

Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 
30, 2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Inflation:    3% 
Salary increases:   3.5% to 9.0% average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return:    7.5% net of pension plan investment expense 
Mortality rates:   Active employees (pre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar 

Healthy Combined table with generational mortality improvement using 
scale AA. 

Active employees (post-retirement) and nondisabled pensioners: RP-
2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined table with generational 
improvement using scale AA. 

Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined 
table. 

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2012.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation  Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 20% 4.38%
Domestic equity 47% 7.72%
International equity 15% 9.70%
Real estate 10% 6.96%
Other assets 8% 5.75%
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Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
contractually required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of 
Oklahoma will continue contributing 36% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based 
on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the 
net pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the 
Plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)

Employers' net pension liability 42,142,224$      32,124,179$               23,634,119$           
 

 
Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued financial report of the FPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/fprs . 
 
 

OMRF Defined Contribution Plan: 
 
The City has provided a defined contribution plan and trust known as the City of Midwest City Plan and 
Trust (the “Plan”) in the form of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System Master Defined 
Contribution Plan an agent multiple employer defined contribution plan.  OMRF operations are 
supervised by a nine-member Council of Trustees elected by the participating municipalities.  The Plan is 
administered by JPMorgan Chase of Oklahoma City.  The defined contribution plan is available to all 
full-time employees on a voluntary basis who are not participating in a state sponsored plan.  According 
to City Ordinance, the employee and employer are required to contribute amounts equal to 0.0% and 
14%, respectively, of the employee’s salary each month.  The employer’s contributions for each 
employee are 50% vested after five years, with 10% vesting for each subsequent year thereafter.   If an 
employee terminates before becoming fully vested, the employer’s contributions that are forfeited are 
allocated to the remaining fund participants based on percentage of contribution.  The authority to 
establish and amend the provisions of the plan rests with the City Council. For the year ended June 30, 
2018, the City contributed $2,101,868 to the plan, while the employee contributions totaled $9,302. 
 
OMRF issues separate plan financial statements which may be obtained by contacting the Oklahoma 
Municipal Retirement Fund, 525 Central Park Drive, Suite 320, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, 73105, by 
calling (405) 606-7880, or at www.okmrf.org.  
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10.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan 
 
Plan Description. The City offers post-employment benefit (OPEB) options Medical, Rx, and Dental 
insurance to qualifying retirees and their dependents.  Coverage is provided through self-insurance that 
collectively operates as a substantive single-employer defined benefit plan. A substantive plan is one in 
which the plan terms are understood by the employer and the plan members. This understanding is based 
on communications between the employer and plan member and the historical pattern of practice with 
regard to the sharing of benefit costs. Qualifying retirees are those employees who are eligible for 
immediate disability or retirement benefits under the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 
Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System, or the City of Midwest City Retirement Plan.  
Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the determined rate.  Coverage is available for 
each of the lifetimes of retirees and their spouses. Authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rest 
with the City Council.  Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying 50% of the premium rate.  
Benefits are paid from general operating assets of the City as assessed by the self-insurance fund.   No 
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. The plan does not 
issue separate financial statements. 
 
Benefits provided - The Plan covers all current retirees of the City who elected postretirement medical 
coverage through the City Health Plan and future retired employees of the City fully self-insured health 
plan. In accordance with administrative policy, the benefit levels are the same as those afforded to active 
employees; this creates an implicit rate subsidy. The benefits offered by the City to retirees include 
health, RX, and dental benefits.  The retiree retains coverage with the City, by making an election within 
30 days of termination of service and have 10+ years of creditable service in with the City and are at least 
55 years old at the time of termination.  
 
The amount of benefit payments during fiscal year June 30, 2018 were $862,742. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
  Active Employees    463 
  Inactive not yet receiving benefits  147 
  Inactive or beneficiaries receiving benefits 112 
       Total      722  
 
Total OPEB Liability – The total OPEB liability was determined based on actuarial valuation performed 
as of June 30, 2017 which is also the measurement date. 
 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018                  

              

71 
 

Actuarial Assumptions- The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 valuation, was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions:  
 

 Actuarial Cost Method - Entry Age  
 Discount Rate – 3.58% based on the 20 year municipal bond yield 
 Retirement Age – Civilians - 55 with 10 years of service, Police and Fire 20 years of service 
 Medical Trend Rates 

 
Year Rate 
2017 6.09% 
2018 6.05% 
2019 6.02% 
2020 5.99% 
2030 5.99% 
2035 5.87% 
2040 5.33% 
2045 
2050 
2060 

5.15% 
5.03% 
4.87% 

 
Changes in Total OPEB Liability – 
 

Total OPEB Liability

Balances at Beginning of Year 24,880,674$                     

Changes for the Year:

  Service cost 948,827                            
  Interest expense 671,955                            
  Change in assumptions (2,572,581)                        
  Benefits paid (862,742)                           
   Net Changes (1,814,541)                        

Balances End of Year 23,066,133$                     

 
 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to OPEB - For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized a negative OPEB 
expense of ($857).  At June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Changes of assumptions -$                                             2,118,061$                   
City Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 869,661                                       -                               
     Total 869,661$                                     2,118,061$                   
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The $869,661 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from City benefit 
payments subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in 
the year ended June 30, 2019.  Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows or resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30:
2019 (454,520)$                    
2020 (454,520)                      
2021 (454,520)                      
2022 (454,520)                      
2023 (299,981)                      

(2,118,061)$                 

 
 
Sensitivity of the City’s total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate- The following presents the 
City’s total net OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s total  OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.58 percent) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (4.58 percent) than the current discount rate:  
 

1% Decrease ( 2.58%) Current Discount Rate ( 3.58%) 1% Increae ( 4.58%) 

Employers' total OPEB liability 28,385,251$                               23,066,133$                                                19,071,491$                     
 

 
Sensitivity of the City’s total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following 
presents the City’s total OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.09 percent decreasing to 
3.876 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.09 percent decreasing to 5.87 percent) than the current 
healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

1% Decrease (5.09 % 
decreasing to 3.87%) 

Current Discount Rate (6.09 % 
decreasing to 4.87%) 

1% Increae ( 7.09% 
decreasing to5.87%) 

Employers' total OPEB liability 19,191,295$                               23,066,133$                                                28,087,783$                      
 
 
11.   Commitments and Contingencies 

 
Litigation 

 
The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental 
operations.  The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that 
may result from these proceedings.  State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a 
three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered 
against the City.  While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the 
insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that 
any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the 
financial condition of the City. 
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Grant Programs 
 
The City of Midwest City participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year.  
The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning 
agency, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan.  
The City has not been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. Any 
liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably determined 
at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material. 
 

12.   Subsequent Events 
 

In August 2018, the citizens approved the issuance of General Obligation Bonds.  The bonds will fund 
the following projects:  $15,965,000 for streets, $5,560,000 for a water booster station, $21,635,000 
park and recreation improvements, and $10,490,000 public safety improvements.  The bonds will be 
issued in 2019. 
 
 

13.   Future Accounting Pronouncements 
 
The GASB has issued several new accounting pronouncements, which will be effective in subsequent 
years.  A description of the new accounting pronouncements, the fiscal year in which they are effective, 
and the City’s consideration of the impact of these pronouncements are described below: 
 
 
GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, issued December 2016, will be 
effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.  Under Statement No. 83, a 
government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible 
capital assets is required to recognize a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources. The 
Statement identifies the circumstances that trigger the recognition of these transactions.  The Statement 
also requires the measurement of an asset retirement obligation to be based on the best estimate of the 
current value of outlays expected to be incurred while the deferred outflow of resources associated with 
the asset retirement obligation will be measured at the amount of the corresponding liability upon initial 
measurement and generally recognized as an expense during the reporting periods that the asset 
provides service. The Statement requires disclosures including a general description of the asset 
retirement obligation and associated tangible capital assets; the source of the obligation to retire the 
assets; the methods and assumptions used to measure the liability; and other relevant information. The 
City has not yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB 83 will have on its net position.  
 
GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities, issued January 2017, will be effective for the City for the 
City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. This Statement establishes criteria for 
identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is 
on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries 
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component 
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The City has not yet 
determined the impact that implementation of GASB 84 will have on its net position.  
 
GASB Statement 87, Leases, issued June 2017, will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2021. The primary objective of this Statement is to increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for 
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leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or 
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for 
lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an 
underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a  
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about 
governments’ leasing activities. The City has not yet determined the impact that implementation of 
GASB 87 will have on its net position. 
 
GASB Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt - GASB No. 87 was issued April 2018, the 
primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in the notes to 
government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements.  It 
also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. 
It defines debt for purposes of disclosure in the notes to financial statements as a liability that arises 
from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash)  in one or 
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date of the contractual obligation is established.  
This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to 
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms 
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, 
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration 
clauses.  This Statement also requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct 
borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.   
 
GASB Statement 90, Majority Equity Interests (An amendment of GASB Statement 14 and 61) –issued 
August 2018, will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The 
primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a 
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 
financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and 
specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 
investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A 
majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity 
method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a 
fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. 
Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. The City has 
not yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB 90 will have on its net position. 
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 Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

GENERAL FUND
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: 1,882,037$               1,882,037$               4,284,487$               2,402,450$               
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 22,985,448               22,985,448               23,493,172 507,724                    
Charges for services 468,669                    683,246                    669,038 (14,208)                     
Fines and forfeitures 1,364,728                 1,386,801                 1,230,313 (156,488)                   
Licenses and permits 360,851                    360,851                    452,607 91,756                      
Investment income 88,470                      126,679                    124,997 (1,682)                       
Intergovernmental 461,937                    808,808                    811,737 2,929                        
Miscellaneous 202,046                    409,472                    540,225 130,753                    
   Total Resources (Inflows) 25,932,149               26,761,305               27,322,089               560,784                    

   Amounts available for appropriation 27,814,186               28,643,342               31,606,576               2,963,234                 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

City Manager 477,202                    478,243                    461,445                    16,798                      
City Clerk 94,014                      94,015                      90,829                      3,186                        
Human Resources 443,787                    443,787                    424,813                    18,974                      
City Attorney 54,201                      54,201                      51,160                      3,041                        
Community Development 1,906,877                 2,190,662                 2,241,091                 (50,429)                     
Park & Recreation 845,350                    937,579                    786,346                    151,233                    
Finance 677,772                    680,847                    647,937                    32,910                      
Animal Welfare 459,241                    510,334                    423,822                    86,512                      
Municipal Court 493,402                    493,922                    438,251                    55,671                      
Streets 2,948,686                 3,057,667                 2,755,698                 301,969                    
General Government 1,230,035                 1,262,834                 1,000,845                 261,989                    
Neighborhood Services 1,543,080                 1,612,900                 1,306,560                 306,340                    
Information Technology 553,497                    565,802                    533,202                    32,600                      
Emergency Response 994,479                    1,193,061                 1,055,023                 138,038                    
Swimming Pools 292,598                    294,998                    240,453                    54,545                      
   Total Charges to Appropriations 13,014,221               13,870,852               12,457,475               1,413,377                 

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 11,574,312               11,869,999               11,731,728 (138,271)                   
Transfers to other funds (25,793,324)              (26,283,324)              (26,303,052)              (19,728)                     
   Total other financing sources (uses) (14,219,012)              (14,413,325)              (14,571,324)              (157,999)                   

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 580,953$                  359,165$                  4,577,777$               4,218,612$               
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POLICE FUND
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: 1,045,203$               1,045,203$               1,917,030$               871,827$                              
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 2,835,087                 2,835,087                 3,822,365 987,278                                
Intergovernmental -                                -                                4,205 4,205                                    
Charges for services 45,705                      45,705                      98,790 53,085                                  
License and permits -                                2,717                        2,900 183                                       
Investment income 40,904                      40,903                      40,505 (398)                                      
Fines and forfeitures 122,277                    122,277                    68,716 (53,561)                                 
Miscellaneous 2,717                        24,000                      38,707 14,707                                  
   Total Resources (Inflows) 3,046,690                 3,070,689                 4,076,188                 1,005,499                             

   Amounts available for appropriation 4,091,893                 4,115,892                 5,993,218                 1,877,326                             

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

Public Safety 13,486,028               13,977,302               13,347,447 629,855                                
   Total Charges to Appropriations 13,486,028               13,977,302               13,347,447               629,855                                

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 9,814,127                 9,939,127                 10,013,743 74,616                                  
   Total other financing sources (uses) 9,814,127                 9,939,127                 10,013,743               74,616                                  

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 419,992$                  77,717$                    2,659,514$               2,581,797$                           

  
 

FIRE FUND
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: 867,211$                  867,211$                  1,542,193$               674,982$                              
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 2,533,769                 2,533,769                 3,216,367 682,598                                
Charges for services 22,304                      22,304                      5,408                        (16,896)                                 
Investment income 31,037                      31,037                      28,787 (2,250)                                   
Licenses and permits 10,001                      10,001                      8,300 (1,701)                                   
Miscellaneous 11,857                      16,530                      13,392 (3,138)                                   
   Total Resources (Inflows) 2,608,968                 2,613,641                 3,272,254                 658,613                                

   Amounts available for appropriation 3,476,179                 3,480,852                 4,814,447                 1,333,595                             

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

Public Safety 10,716,922               11,220,204               10,597,683 622,521                                
   Total Charges to Appropriations 10,716,922               11,220,204               10,597,683               622,521                                

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 934,063                    8,034,063                 8,095,459 61,396                                  
Transfers to other funds (166,000)                   (166,000)                   (166,000)                   -                                            
   Total other financing sources (uses) 768,063                    7,868,063                 7,929,459                 61,396                                  

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance (6,472,680)$              128,711$                  2,146,223$               2,017,512$                           

 
 
Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule: 
 

1.  The budgetary comparison schedules and budgetary fund balance amounts are reported on the 
modified cash basis of accounting. In addition, obligations that are required to be funded from ending 
budgetary fund balances are subtracted from total ending budgetary fund balances to arrive at the 
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unreserved budgetary fund balance. This presentation of unreserved fund balances on a budgetary basis 
is used to demonstrate compliance with Article 10, § 26 of the Oklahoma State Constitution. 

 
2.  The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of 
appropriation between departments and object categories require the approval of the City Manager.  All 
supplemental appropriations require the approval of the City Council.   Supplemental appropriations 
must be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector. 
 
3.  The Hospital Authority does not present a budget to actual comparison because it is a Title 60 Public 
Trust.   Title 60 Trust are only required to prepare a budget and submit to the beneficiary, but there are 
no requirements related to form, content or monitoring. 
 
4.   The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual (GAAP) basis as shown in the schedules 
below: 
 
GENERAL FUND Fund Balance Net Change in Fund Balance

June 30, 2017 Fund Balance June 30, 2018
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 6,346,911$                (316,461)$                  6,030,450$              

Increases (Decreases):
  Revenues:
    Receivable (3,948,692)                (377,904)                    (4,326,596)               
    Change in fair value of investments (2,640)                       7,104                         4,464                       
    Other misc items 72,066                       (282,425)                    (210,359)                  

  Expenditures:
    Payables 4,231,526                  1,253,398                  5,484,924                
    Encumbrances (104,795)                   (91,241)                      (196,036)                  

  Impact of combining accounts:
    Reimbursed Projects Account (660,304)                   6,586                         (653,718)                  
    Employee Activity Account (19,606)                     (796)                           (20,402)                    
    Activity Account (333,476)                   (3,584)                        (337,060)                  
    Animals Best Friend Account (100,227)                   22,553                       (77,674)                    
    Disaster Relief Account (1,196,270)                76,054                       (1,120,216)               
Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 4,284,493$                293,284$                   4,577,777$              
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POLICE FUND Fund Balance Net Change in Fund Balance
June 30, 2017 Fund Balance June 30, 2018

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 3,664,988$                1,582,994$                5,247,982$              

Increases (Decreases):
  Revenues:
    Receivable (2,089,011)                (959,666)                    (3,048,677)               
    Change in fair value of investments (1,036)                       3,800                         2,764                       
    Other misc items (309,161)                   76,890                       (232,271)                  

  Expenditures:
    Payables 651,250                     38,466                       689,716                   

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 1,917,030$                742,484$                   2,659,514$              

 
 

FIRE FUND Fund Balance Net Change in Fund Balance
June 30, 2017 Fund Balance June 30, 2018

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 1,604,511$                1,463,436$                3,067,947$              

Increases (Decreases):
  Revenues:
    Receivable (1,598,768)                (734,936)                    (2,333,704)               
    Change in fair value of investments -                            1,710                         1,710                       
    Other misc items -                            69,913                       69,913                     

  Expenditures:
    Payables 1,536,450                  (196,093)                    1,340,357                

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 1,542,193$                604,030$                   2,146,223$               
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Required Supplementary Information – Pensions 
 

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability 2.392% 2.613% 2.627% 2.554%

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 24,598,661$      27,733,504$  32,089,584$  32,124,179$    

City's covered payroll 6,734,825$        7,151,904$    6,922,999$    7,259,523$     

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as a percentage of its 
covered payroll 365% 388% 464% 443%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension liability 68.12% 68.27% 64.87% 66.61%

Notes to Schedule:

Only four previous  fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.  
 

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 2.2929% 2.3249% 2.2789% 2.0280%

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) (772,001)$      94,795$        3,490,072$         155,991$           

City's covered payroll 6,171,257$    6,571,604$   6,720,857$         6,047,423$        

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered payroll 12.51% 1.44% 51.93% 2.58%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension liability 
(asset) 101.53% 99.82% 93.50% 99.68%

Notes to Schedule:

Only four previous  fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017

Statutorily required contribution 1,001,267$  969,220$    1,016,333$  1,164,029$     

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 1,064,424     969,270       1,016,378    1,164,029       

Contribution deficiency (excess) (63,157)$      (50)$            (45)$            -$              

City's covered payroll 7,151,904$   6,922,999$   7,259,523$   7,458,084$     

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 14.88% 14.00% 14.00% 15.61%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:
Only four previous  fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 5% 
and employer contributions will be 18%.

 
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018

Statutorily required contribution 854,309$        873,711$     786,165$      813,621$        

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 1,021,780       873,705       786,167        813,621          

Contribution deficiency (excess) (167,471)$      6$               (2)$               -$               

City's covered payroll 6,571,604$    6,720,857$  6,047,423$   6,230,526$      

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 15.55% 13.00% 13.00% 13.06%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only four previous  fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 3% 
and employer contributions will be 18%.

There were no changes in the trends that  affected the amounts reported in the schedules.
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Required Supplementary Information –Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) 
 
 
 
 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Postemployment Health Insurance Implcit Rate Subsidy Plan

2018

Total OPEB Liability 
  Service cost 948,827$                            
  Interest 671,955                              
  Changes in assumptions (2,572,581)                          
  Experience Gan/(Loss) (862,742)                             
   Net increase (decrease) in total OPEB liability (1,814,541)                          

Balances at Beginning of Year 24,880,674                         
Balances End of Year 23,066,133$                       

Covered payroll 27,950,000$                       

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-
 payroll 82.53%

Notes to Schedule:
Only the current fiscal year is presented because 10-year data is not yet available
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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Combining Balance Sheet – General Fund Accounts – June 30, 2018 
 
 

General Fund Accounts

General Fund
Reimbursed 

Projects Account
Employee Activity 

Account Activity Account
Animals Best 

Friend Account
Disaster Relief 

Account Totals
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,089,359$               173,606$                  20,717$                    81,445$                    73,944$                    231,539$                  1,670,610$               
Investments 3,005,143                 588,261                    -                                275,977                    -                                864,455                    4,733,836                 
Accounts receivable 1,148,033                 2,361                        -                                -                               12,041                      180,813                    1,343,248                 
Accrued interest receivable 7,117                        -                                -                                -                               -                                2,047                        9,164                        
Other receivable 14,511                      -                                -                                4,430                        -                                -                                18,941                      
Due from other governments 3,048,535                 -                                -                                -                               -                                438                           3,048,973                 
Due from other funds 103,791                    -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                103,791                    
Prepaid items 4,612                        -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                4,612                        
Advance from other funds 885,203                    -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                885,203                    

Total assets 9,306,304$               764,228$                  20,717$                    361,852$                  85,985$                    1,279,292$               11,818,378$             

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 203,690$                  60,980$                    315$                         24,228$                    -$                              12,425$                    301,638$                  
Wages payable 424,565                    -                                -                                564                           -                                7,165                        432,294                    
Due to other governments 8,569                        -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                8,569                        
Refundable deposits 52,230                      -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                52,230                      
Due to other funds 3,881,783                 -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                3,881,783                 
Advance to other funds -                                49,530                      -                                -                               -                                -                                49,530                      

Total liabilities 4,570,837                 110,510                    315                           24,792                      -                                19,590                      4,726,044                 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable  revenue 914,087                    -                                -                                -                               8,311                        139,486                    1,061,884                 

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 889,815                    -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                889,815                    
Restricted 10,490                      545,245                    -                                315,616                    30,301                      693,694                    1,595,346                 
Assigned 475,814                    108,473                    20,402                      21,444                      47,373                      426,522                    1,100,028                 
Unassigned 2,445,261                 -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                2,445,261                 

Total fund balances 3,821,380                 653,718                    20,402                      337,060                    77,674                      1,120,216                 6,030,450                 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows  and fund balances 9,306,304$               764,228$                  20,717$                    361,852$                  85,985$                    1,279,292$               11,818,378$             
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – General Fund 
Accounts  – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 
 

General Fund Accounts

General Fund

Reimbursed 
Projects 
Account

Employee Activity 
Account Activity Account

Animals Best 
Friend Account

Disaster Relief 
Account Totals

REVENUES
Taxes 23,630,293$        -$                      -$                            -$                          -$                              -$                          23,630,293$         
Intergovernmental 494,009               204,250            -                              -                            -                                -                            698,259                
Charges for services 2,115,345            81,891              -                              53,990                  -                                55,280                  2,306,506             
Investment income (2,212)                  12,046              321                          5,620                    1,134                         987                       17,896                  
Fines & forfeitures 1,222,662            -                        -                              -                            25,365                       -                            1,248,027             
Licenses & permits 452,608               -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            452,608                
Miscellaneous 344,367               113,669            2,619                       101,926                3,519                         91,789                  657,889                

Total revenues 28,257,072          411,856            2,940                       161,536                30,018                       148,056                29,011,478           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 5,133,524            29,168              9,644                       -                            -                                224,110                5,396,446             
Public Safety 985,567               12,805              -                              -                            -                                -                            998,372                
Streets 2,753,935            -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            2,753,935             
Culture and recreation 819,786               10,000              -                              113,166                -                                -                            942,952                
Health & welfare 361,655               -                        -                              -                            4,684                         -                            366,339                
Economic development 2,754,035            158,938            -                              -                            -                                -                            2,912,973             

Capital outlay -                           202,933            -                              44,786                  47,887                       -                            295,606                
Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges -                           3,762                -                              -                            -                                -                            3,762                    

Total expenditures 12,808,502          417,606            9,644                       157,952                52,571                       224,110                13,670,385           

Revenues over (under) expenditures 15,448,570          (5,750)               (6,704)                     3,584                    (22,553)                     (76,054)                 15,341,093           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 11,723,187          -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            11,723,187           
Transfers out (27,379,905)         (836)                  -                              -                            -                                -                            (27,380,741)          
Transfers in - interaccount -                           -                        7,500                       -                            -                                -                            7,500                    
Transfers out - interaccount (7,500)                  -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            (7,500)                   
Total other financing sources (uses) (15,664,218)         (836)                  7,500                       -                            -                                -                            (15,657,554)          

Net change in fund balances (215,648)              (6,586)               796                          3,584                    (22,553)                     (76,054)                 (316,461)               

Fund balances - beginning of year 4,037,028            660,304            19,606                     333,476                100,227                     1,196,270             6,346,911             

Fund balances - end of year 3,821,380$          653,718$          20,402$                   337,060$              77,674$                     1,120,216$           6,030,450$           
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Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018 
 

Grant Fund
Juvenile 

Fund
Park & 

Recreation Fund
Emergency 

Operations Fund
Technology 

Fund
Welcome Center 

Fund
Police Impound 

Fund
Street & Alley 

Fund
Police Special 
Projects Fund

Police Lab Fee 
Fund

Convention/Visitors 
Bureau Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 160,572$               55,803$          127,315$                 151,268$                   58,579$              78,672$                    47,498$                    249,717$                  211,007$                  16,064$              38,931$                         
Investments -                            -                     431,406                   512,569                     198,496              266,577                    160,945                    932,320                    -                                -                          131,916                         
Accrued interest receivable -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                2,208                        -                                -                          -                                     
Deposits held by others -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                     
Other receivable 48,141                   66,645            2,600                       2,271                         195,900              -                                -                                -                                -                                6,899                  -                                     
Due from other governments 152,771                 -                     65,664                     57,265                       -                          19,556                      -                                44,479                      -                                -                          36,505                           
Due from other funds 1,625                     780                 -                               287                            -                          350                           -                                -                                -                                -                          148                                
Inventory 60,000                   -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                     
Advance from other funds -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                     

Total assets 423,109                 123,228          626,985                   723,660                     452,975              365,155                    208,443                    1,228,724                 211,007                    22,963                207,500                         

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 42,155                   -                     22,106                     20,962                       30,178                1,253                        -                                1,260                        841                           319                     3,954                             
Wages payable 21,215                   3,494              2,415                       18,600                       7,402                  7,403                        -                                -                                -                                -                          10,054                           
Due to other funds 103,791                 -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                403                           -                                -                                -                          -                                     

Total liabilities 167,161                 3,494              24,521                     39,562                       37,580                8,656                        403                           1,260                        841                           319                     14,008                           

Deferred inflows:
Unavailable revenue 23,884                   60,078            -                               -                                 155,083              -                                -                                -                                -                                4,780                  -                                     

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 60,000                   -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                     
Restricted 172,064                 59,656            602,464                   684,098                     260,312              356,499                    208,040                    1,227,464                 210,166                    17,864                193,492                         
Assigned -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                     

Total fund balances 232,064                 59,656            602,464                   684,098                     260,312              356,499                    208,040                    1,227,464                 210,166                    17,864                193,492                         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 423,109$               123,228$        626,985$                 723,660$                   452,975$            365,155$                  208,443$                  1,228,724$               211,007$                  22,963$              207,500$                       
(continued)

Special Revenue Funds
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Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018 
 

Debt Service Fund

Urban Renewal 
Authority

General 
Government Sales 

Tax Fund Street Light Fee

Downtown 
Development 

Authority
2002 Street 
Project Fund

Dedicated Tax 
2012 Fund

Sales Tax 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund
Capital Outlay 
Reserve Fund

G.O. Debt Services 
Fund Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 57,066$                    477,264$                  218,105$                  556,081$                  104,302$                  263,362$                  -$                        510,453$               210,765$           124,438$                  3,717,262$           
Investments -                                1,781,868                 814,298                    2,076,133                 353,425                    983,265                    -                          1,905,781              714,174             -                                11,263,173           
Accrued interest receivable -                                4,220                        1,928                        4,917                        -                                2,329                        -                          4,513                     -                        -                                20,115                  
Deposits held by others -                                -                                -                                500                           300                           -                                -                          4,766                     -                        -                                5,566                    
Other receivable -                                -                                79,623                      23,088                      -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                425,167                
Due from other governments -                                297,844                    -                                -                                -                                55,973                      724,417              12,277                   -                        353,708                    1,820,459             
Due from other funds -                                60,581                      -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          28,616                   -                        -                                92,387                  
Inventory -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                60,000                  
Advance from other funds -                                -                                -                                49,530                      -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                49,530                  

Total assets 57,066                      2,621,777                 1,113,954                 2,710,249                 458,027                    1,304,929                 724,417              2,466,406              924,939             478,146                    17,453,659           

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,232                        67,275                      -                                9,306                        -                                10,128                      -                          -                             -                        -                                211,969                
Wages payable -                                -                                -                                3,122                        -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                73,705                  
Due to other funds -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                724,417              -                             -                        -                                828,611                

Total liabilities 2,232                        67,275                      -                                12,428                      -                                10,128                      724,417              -                             -                        -                                1,114,285             

Deferred inflows:
Unavailable revenue -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        347,014                    590,839                

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                                -                                -                                50,030                      300                           -                                -                          4,766                     -                        -                                115,096                
Restricted 3,804                        2,554,502                 1,113,954                 1,769,274                 457,727                    1,294,801                 -                          2,409,501              746,651             131,132                    14,473,465           
Assigned 51,030                      -                                -                                878,517                    -                                -                                -                          52,139                   178,288             -                                1,159,974             

Total fund balances 54,834                      2,554,502                 1,113,954                 2,697,821                 458,027                    1,294,801                 -                          2,466,406              924,939             131,132                    15,748,535           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 57,066$                    2,621,777$               1,113,954$               2,710,249$               458,027$                  1,304,929$               724,417$            2,466,406$            924,939$           478,146$                  17,453,659$         

Capital Project FundsSpecial Revenue Funds
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

 

Grant Fund
Juvenile 

Fund
Park & 

Recreation Fund
Emergency 

Operations Fund
Technology 

Fund
Welcome 

Center Fund
Police Impound 

Fund
Street & Alley 

Fund

Police 
Special 

Projects Fund
Police Lab Fee 

Fund

Convention/
Visitors 
Bureau 

Fund
REVENUES

Taxes -$                           -$                   522,572$             526,001$                -$                  179,546$           -$                          -$                      -$                    -$                         335,152$      
Intergovernmental 655,476                 -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            503,666            -                      -                           -                    
Charges for services -                             -                     700                      27,250                    237,806        -                        64,350                  -                        -                      -                           -                    
Investment income 20                          528                 10,184                 9,465                      4,422            5,472                 3,227                    (36,377)             2,867              288                      2,634            
Fines & forfeitures -                             76,484            -                           -                              14,260          -                        -                            -                        10,889            10,397                 -                    
Licenses & permits -                             -                     -                           -                              19,200          -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Miscellaneous 25,586                   -                     38,735                 750                         -                    23,027               -                            -                        12,350            3,195                   5,300            

Total revenues 681,082                 77,012            572,191               563,466                  275,688        208,045             67,577                  467,289            26,106            13,880                 343,086        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government -                             -                     -                           -                              451,334        -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Public safety 109,206                 71,478            -                           404,310                  -                    -                        11,844                  -                        18,551            14,510                 -                    
Streets -                             -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            38,448              -                      -                           -                    
Culture and recreation -                             -                     437,792               -                              -                    183,624             -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Economic development 604,797                 -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           327,589        

Capital outlay 89,714                   596                 111,834               57,320                    -                    27,896               33,215                  131,357            998                 -                           555               
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                             -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Interest and fiscal charges -                             -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    

Total expenditures 803,717                 72,074            549,626               461,630                  451,334        211,520             45,059                  169,805            19,549            14,510                 328,144        

Revenues over (under) expenditures (122,635)                4,938              22,565                 101,836                  (175,646)       (3,475)               22,518                  297,484            6,557              (630)                     14,942          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 165,310                 37,000            -                           11,250                    50,354          -                        -                            38,907              -                      -                           -                    
Transfers out (39,250)                  -                     (81,000)                (50,354)                   -                    -                        (4,469)                   -                        -                      -                           -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) 126,060                 37,000            (81,000)                (39,104)                   50,354          -                        (4,469)                   38,907              -                      -                           -                    

Net change in fund balances 3,425                     41,938            (58,435)                62,732                    (125,292)       (3,475)               18,049                  336,391            6,557              (630)                     14,942          

Fund balances - beginning of year 228,639                 17,718            660,899               621,366                  385,604        359,974             189,991                891,073            203,609          18,494                 178,550        

Fund balances - end of year 232,064$               59,656$          602,464$             684,098$                260,312$      356,499$           208,040$              1,227,464$       210,166$        17,864$               193,492$      
(continued)

Special Revenue Funds
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Debt Service Fund

Urban Renewal 
Authority

General 
Government 

Sales Tax 
Fund

Street Light 
Fee

Downtown 
Development 

Authority
2002 Street Project 

Fund
Dedicated Tax 

2012 Fund

Sales Tax 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund
Capital Outlay 
Reserve Fund

G.O. Debt Services 
Fund Totals

REVENUES
Taxes -$                       1,296,608$      -$                    -$                        -$                               434,396$              5,604,120$         113,235$               -$                         316,361$                  9,327,991$           
Intergovernmental -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           1,652                        1,160,794             
Charges for services -                         -                      568,008           599,925               -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           -                                1,498,039             
Investment income 975                    (26,864)           (33,392)           17,724                 8,004                          (2,087)                  2,669                  (12,926)                 14,608                  3,085                        (25,474)                 
Fines & forfeitures -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           -                                112,030                
Licenses & permits -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          106,256                 -                           -                                125,456                
Miscellaneous -                         100,517           -                      50                        -                                 -                           -                          52,260                   -                           -                                261,770                

Total revenues 975                    1,370,261        534,616           617,699               8,004                          432,309                5,606,789           258,825                 14,608                  321,098                    12,460,606           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government -                         75,649             -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           -                                526,983                
Public safety -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           -                                629,899                
Streets -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 89,626                  -                          3,496                     -                           -                                131,570                
Culture and recreation -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           -                                621,416                
Economic development 4,137                 -                      -                      272,392               -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           -                                1,208,915             

Capital outlay 5,264                 443,221           -                      940,767               96,924                        310,670                -                          341,644                 -                           -                                2,591,975             
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           325,000                    325,000                
Interest and fiscal charges -                         -                      -                      -                          -                                 -                           -                          -                            -                           51,750                      51,750                  

Total expenditures 9,401                 518,870           -                      1,213,159            96,924                        400,296                -                          345,140                 -                           376,750                    6,087,508             

Revenues over (under) expenditures (8,426)                851,391           534,616           (595,460)             (88,920)                      32,013                  5,606,789           (86,315)                 14,608                  (55,652)                     6,373,098             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                         30,751             -                      359                      -                                 -                           -                          279,688                 -                           -                                613,619                
Transfers out -                         (6,785)             -                      (943,806)             -                                 -                           (5,606,789)          -                            -                           (3,084)                       (6,735,537)            

Total other financing sources (uses) -                         23,966             -                      (943,447)             -                                 -                           (5,606,789)          279,688                 -                           (3,084)                       (6,121,918)            

Net change in fund balances (8,426)                875,357           534,616           (1,538,907)          (88,920)                      32,013                  -                          193,373                 14,608                  (58,736)                     251,180                

Fund balances - beginning of year 63,260               1,679,145        579,338           4,236,728            546,947                      1,262,788             -                          2,273,033              910,331                189,868                    15,497,355           

Fund balances - end of year 54,834$             2,554,502$      1,113,954$      2,697,821$          458,027$                    1,294,801$           -$                        2,466,406$            924,939$              131,132$                  15,748,535$         

Capital Project FundsSpecial Revenue Funds
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Combining Schedule of Net Position – Midwest City Municipal Authority Accounts – June 30, 2018 
 

Water Account Sewer Account
Sanitation 
Account

Conference 
Center/Hotel 

Account
Drainage 
Account

Debt Service 
Account Utility Services

Utilities Capital 
Fund

Customer 
Deposit Fund

Golf Courses 
Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 824,876$                 1,288,561$               462,139$               725,566$             121,013$                -$                        81,952$               465,357$             -$                        120,348$             4,089,812$             
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             2,694,960            -                          -                          295,053               -                          2,990,013               
Investments 3,020,209                4,337,286                 1,725,402              502,550               360,340                  -                          277,693               1,737,414            -                          -                          11,960,894             
Accounts receivable, net 1,104,047                1,104,763                 856,669                 134,859               63,152                    -                          69,644                 -                          2,130                   -                          3,335,264               
Other receivable -                               -                                -                             74,543                 -                             -                          -                          11,572                 -                          5,023                   91,138                    
Accrued interest receivable 5,769                       6,254                        4,086                     -                          -                             -                          -                          4,115                   2,609                   -                          22,833                    
Prepaid items -                               -                                -                             6,278                   -                             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          6,278                      
Inventory 180,946                   93,734                      -                             -                          -                             -                          -                          -                          -                          1,663                   276,343                  
Due from other funds - interaccount -                               7,923                        -                             -                          -                             -                          -                          -                          64,445                 -                          72,368                    
Due from other funds 17,760                     13,267                      72,398                   12,680                 -                             695,801               -                          -                          -                          2,514                   814,420                  

Total current assets 5,153,607                6,851,788                 3,120,694              1,456,476            544,505                  3,390,761            429,289               2,218,458            364,237               129,548               23,659,363             

Non-current assets:
  Investments, restricted -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          -                          -                          1,101,582            -                          1,101,582               
  Due from other funds - interaccount 1,085,994                -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          1,085,994               
  Land, construction in progress, and water rights 5,958,036                915,046                    700,000                 -                          1,250                      -                          -                          -                          -                          232,057               7,806,389               
  Other capital assets, net 17,641,973              75,566,913               3,765,213              20,881,465          13,675,581             -                          13,776                 6,024,140            -                          1,434,621            139,003,682           

Total non-current assets 24,686,003              76,481,959               4,465,213              20,881,465          13,676,831             -                          13,776                 6,024,140            1,101,582            1,666,678            148,997,647           

Total assets 29,839,610              83,333,747               7,585,907              22,337,941          14,221,336             3,390,761            443,065               8,242,598            1,465,819            1,796,226            172,657,010           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding -                           -                            -                         -                      -                         819,874               -                      -                      -                      -                      819,874                  
Deferred amount related to OPEB 61,311                     84,009                      32,438                   -                      5,740                      -                      23,568                 -                      -                      14,610                 221,676                  

Total deferred inflows 61,311                     84,009                      32,438                   -                      5,740                      819,874               23,568                 -                      -                      14,610                 1,041,550               

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 352,215 249,380 159,089 352,686 3,195 -                          2,949                   104,535               -                          12,524                 1,236,573               
Wages payable 101,373                   141,868                    54,183                   44,402                 11,760                    -                          36,428                 -                          -                          34,614                 424,628                  
Due to other funds - interaccount 64,445                     -                                -                             -                          -                             7,923                   -                          -                          -                          -                          72,368                    
Accrued interest payable -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             675,054               -                          -                          -                          -                          675,054                  
Accrued compensated absences 125,154                   146,309                    43,536                   48,821                 14,101                    -                          40,104                 -                          -                          45,725                 463,750                  
Refundable deposits -                               -                                -                             55,805                 -                             -                          -                          -                          146,582               -                          202,387                  
Revenue bonds payable -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             4,495,000            -                          -                          -                          -                          4,495,000               

Total current liabilities 643,187                   537,557                    256,808                 501,714               29,056                    5,177,977            79,481                 104,535               146,582               92,863                 7,569,760               

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 250,309                   292,617                    87,073                   10,211                 28,202                    -                          80,209                 -                          -                          91,450                 840,071                  
Total OPEB liability 1,626,162                2,228,188                 860,367                 -                          152,236                  -                          625,092               -                          -                          387,511               5,879,556               
Due to other funds - interaccount -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          -                          1,085,994            -                          -                          1,085,994               
Refundable deposits -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          -                          -                          1,319,237            -                          1,319,237               
Revenue bonds payable, net -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             46,676,240          -                          -                          -                          -                          46,676,240             

Total non-current liabilities 1,876,471                2,520,805                 947,440                 10,211                 180,438                  46,676,240          705,301               1,085,994            1,319,237            478,961               55,801,098             

Total liabilities 2,519,658                3,058,362                 1,204,248              511,925               209,494                  51,854,217          784,782               1,190,529            1,465,819            571,824               63,370,858             

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount related to OPEB 149,323                   204,605                    79,004                   -                          13,979                    -                          57,399                 -                          -                          35,583                 539,893                  

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 23,600,009              76,481,959               4,465,213              20,881,465          13,676,831             (50,351,366)        13,776                 6,024,140            -                          1,666,678            96,458,705             
Restricted for debt service -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             2,019,906            -                          -                          -                          -                          2,019,906               
Restricted for other purposes -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          47,813                 -                          -                          53,070                 100,883                  
Unrestricted (deficit) 3,631,931                3,672,830                 1,869,880              944,551               326,772                  687,878               (437,137)             1,027,929            -                          (516,319)             11,208,315             

Total net position 27,231,940$            80,154,789$             6,335,093$            21,826,016$        14,003,603$           (47,643,582)$      (375,548)$           7,052,069$          -$                        1,203,429$          109,787,809$         

Midwest City Municipal Authority
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Midwest City Municipal Authority Accounts – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Water Account Sewer Account Sanitation Account

Conference 
Center/Hotel 

Account Drainage Account
Debt Service 

Account Utility Services
Utilities 

Capital Fund
Customer 

Deposit Fund
Golf Courses 

Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 7,222,501$               7,883,032$               6,071,073$               5,163,899$               451,208$                  -$                              1,091,770$        -$                   -$                     1,045,444$            28,928,927$             
Fees, licenses and permits 16,950                      20,860                      -                                -                                -                                -                                50,610               -                     -                       -                             88,420                      
Miscellaneous 11,854                      3,054                        109,766                    -                                867                           -                                -                         14,460            -                       -                             140,001                    

Total operating revenues 7,251,305                 7,906,946                 6,180,839                 5,163,899                 452,075                    -                                1,142,380          14,460            -                       1,045,444              29,157,348               

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services 2,071,268                 3,259,935                 1,254,251                 2,070,205                 286,404                    -                                792,305             -                     -                       717,157                 10,451,525               
  Materials and supplies 679,155                    628,797                    779,574                    1,354,134                 65,567                      -                                30,562               -                     -                       210,617                 3,748,406                 
  Other services and charges 1,781,992                 1,376,428                 2,087,263                 1,507,323                 38,624                      -                                149,644             -                     -                       123,589                 7,064,863                 
  Depreciation and amortization 703,876                    2,916,708                 495,141                    909,561                    278,351                    -                                4,333                 434,066          -                       116,380                 5,858,416                 

Total operating expenses 5,236,291                 8,181,868                 4,616,229                 5,841,223                 668,946                    -                                976,844             434,066          -                       1,167,743              27,123,210               

Operating income (loss) 2,015,014                 (274,922)                   1,564,610                 (677,324)                   (216,871)                   -                                165,536             (419,606)        -                       (122,299)                2,034,138                 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income (65,858)                     68,274                      (15,985)                     -                                7,415                        18,180                      5,397                 62,215            (2,838)              1,862                     78,662                      
Interest expense and fiscal charges -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                (1,923,987)                -                         (43,274)          -                       -                             (1,967,261)                
Gain (loss) on asset retirement 3,051                        (834)                          2,414                        315                           -                                -                                -                         (15,261)          -                       26,911                   16,596                      

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (62,807)                     67,440                      (13,571)                     315                           7,415                        (1,905,807)                5,397                 3,680              (2,838)              28,773                   (1,872,003)                

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 1,952,207                 (207,482)                   1,551,039                 (677,009)                   (209,456)                   (1,905,807)                170,933             (415,926)        (2,838)              (93,526)                  162,135                    
                      

Capital contributions 8,266                        -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                         -                     -                       81,000                   89,266                      
Transfers in - interaccount 22,777                      -                                -                                -                                -                                1,201,964                 -                         738,576          25,615              -                             1,988,932                 
Transfers out - interaccount (25,615)                     (1,201,964)                (457,000)                   -                                -                                -                                (281,576)            -                     (22,777)            -                             (1,988,932)                
Transfers in 8,429                        7,986                        3,782                        -                                -                                13,630,157               1,053                 -                     -                       -                             13,651,407               
Transfers out (887,367)                   (989,007)                   (913,936)                   -                                -                                (8,275,056)                -                         -                     -                       -                             (11,065,366)              

Change in net position 1,078,697                 (2,390,467)                183,885                    (677,009)                   (209,456)                   4,651,258                 (109,590)            322,650          -                       (12,526)                  2,837,442                 

Total net position - beginning, restated 26,153,243               82,545,256               6,151,208                 22,503,025               14,213,059               (52,294,840)              (265,958)            6,729,419       -                       1,215,955              106,950,367             

Total net position - ending 27,231,940$             80,154,789$             6,335,093$               21,826,016$             14,003,603$             (47,643,582)$            (375,548)$          7,052,069$     -$                     1,203,429$            109,787,809$           

Midwest City Municipal Authority
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Combining Schedule of Cash Flows – Midwest City Municipal Authority Accounts – June 30, 2018 
 

Water Account Sewer Account Sanitation Account

Conference 
Center/Hotel 

Account Drainage Account
Debt Service 

Account Utility Services Utilities Capital Fund
Customer Deposit 

Fund Golf Courses Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 7,341,410$               7,917,398$               6,155,452$               5,379,431$               451,796$                  -$                              1,205,236$              2,888$                                427$                            1,045,264$                29,499,302$                       
Payments to suppliers (2,493,468)                (2,001,940)                (2,846,807)                (2,978,344)                (101,016)                   -                                (190,718)                 36,914                                -                                   (336,150)                    (10,911,529)                        
Payments to employees (2,049,112)                (3,214,906)                (1,204,044)                (2,168,981)                (283,943)                   -                                (772,670)                 -                                          -                                   (727,613)                    (10,421,269)                        
Receipts (payments) from interfund loans 24,190                      (7,919)                       (2,413)                       (315)                          -                                (32,078)                     58,958                     (58,958)                               (27,241)                        (1,911)                        (47,687)                               
Receipt of customer deposits -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                              -                                          499,379                       -                                 499,379                              
Return of customer deposits -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                              -                                          (466,176)                      -                                 (466,176)                             

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,823,020                 2,692,633                 2,102,188                 231,791                    66,837                      (32,078)                     300,806                   (19,156)                               6,389                           (20,410)                      8,152,020                           

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds - interaccount 22,777                      -                                -                                -                                -                                1,201,964                 -                              738,576                              25,615                         -                                 1,988,932                           
Transfers to other funds - interaccount (25,615)                     (1,201,964)                (457,000)                   -                                -                                -                                (281,576)                 -                                          (22,777)                        -                                 (1,988,932)                          
Transfers from other funds 8,429                        7,986                        3,782                        -                                -                                13,630,157               1,053                       -                                          -                                   -                                 13,651,407                         
Transfers to other funds (887,367)                   (989,007)                   (913,936)                   -                                -                                (8,275,056)                -                              -                                          -                                   -                                 (11,065,366)                        

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (881,776)                   (2,182,985)                (1,367,154)                -                                -                                6,557,065                 (280,523)                 738,576                              2,838                           -                                 2,586,041                           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (357,435)                   (201,342)                   (442,601)                   (131,640)                   (63,545)                     -                                -                              (125,000)                             -                                   (3,200)                        (1,324,763)                          
Principal paid on capital debt -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                (4,325,000)                -                              -                                          -                                   -                                 (4,325,000)                          
Payments of interfund loan for capital purchases 124,687                    -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                              (124,687)                             -                                   -                                 -                                      
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                (2,191,788)                -                              (43,274)                               -                                   -                                 (2,235,062)                          
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3,051                        1,918                        2,414                        315                           -                                -                                -                              -                                          -                                   26,911                       34,609                                

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (229,697)                   (199,424)                   (440,187)                   (131,325)                   (63,545)                     (6,516,788)                -                              (292,961)                             -                                   23,711                       (7,850,216)                          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (purchase) of investments (1,469,457)                (433,877)                   (268,290)                   46,787                      (46,956)                     -                                (22,011)                   (429,800)                             (30,335)                        -                                 (2,653,939)                          
Interest and dividends 66,465                      145,525                    35,855                      -                                7,415                        18,180                      5,397                       115,918                              25,084                         1,862                         421,701                              

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,402,992)                (288,352)                   (232,435)                   46,787                      (39,541)                     18,180                      (16,614)                   (313,882)                             (5,251)                          1,862                         (2,232,238)                          

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 308,555                    21,872                      62,412                      147,253                    (36,249)                     26,379                      3,669                       112,577                              3,976                           5,163                         655,607                              

Balances - beginning of year 516,321                    1,266,689                 399,727                    578,313                    157,262                    2,668,581                 78,283                     352,780                              291,077                       115,185                     6,424,218                           

Balances - end of year 824,876$                  1,288,561$               462,139$                  725,566$                  121,013$                  2,694,960$               81,952$                   465,357$                            295,053$                     120,348$                   7,079,825$                         

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 824,876$                  1,288,561$               462,139$                  725,566$                  121,013$                  -$                          81,952$                   465,357$                            -$                             120,348$                   4,089,812$                         
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            2,694,960                 -                          -                                      295,053                       -                             2,990,013                           

Total cash and cash equivalents 824,876$                  1,288,561$               462,139$                  725,566$                  121,013$                  2,694,960$               81,952$                   465,357$                            295,053$                     120,348$                   7,079,825$                         

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 2,015,014$               (274,922)$                 1,564,610$               (677,324)$                 (216,871)$                 -$                          165,536$                 (419,606)$                           -$                             (122,299)$                  2,034,138$                         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 703,876                    2,916,708                 495,141                    909,561                    278,351                    -                            4,333                       434,066                              -                               116,380                     5,858,416                           
Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net 90,105                      10,452                      (25,387)                     143,370                    (279)                          -                            62,856                     -                                      427                              (180)                           281,364                              
Other receivable -                            -                            -                            65,598                      -                            -                            -                          (11,572)                               -                               -                             54,026                                
Due from other funds (3,051)                       (7,919)                       (2,413)                       (315)                          -                            (38,078)                     58,958                     -                                      (27,241)                        (1,911)                        (21,970)                               
Prepaid items -                            -                            -                            (6,278)                       -                            -                            -                          -                                      -                               -                             (6,278)                                 
Inventory (15,634)                     107                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                          -                                      -                               399                            (15,128)                               
Accounts payable (16,687)                     3,178                        20,030                      (110,609)                   3,175                        -                            (10,512)                   36,914                                -                               (2,343)                        (76,854)                               
Deferred outflows OPEB (488)                          (668)                          (258)                          -                            (46)                            -                            188                          -                                      -                               (116)                           (1,388)                                 
Due to other funds 27,241                      -                            -                            -                            -                            6,000                        -                          (58,958)                               -                               -                             (25,717)                               
Due to employees 4,055                        4,416                        5,495                        (35,164)                     189                           -                            (548)                        -                                      -                               (3,283)                        (24,840)                               
Refundable deposits -                            -                            -                            6,564                        -                            -                            -                          -                                      33,203                         -                             39,767                                
Total OPEB liability (127,926)                   (175,285)                   (67,682)                     -                            (11,976)                     -                            (49,174)                   -                                      -                               (30,484)                      (462,527)                             
Accrued compensated absences (2,808)                       11,961                      33,648                      (63,612)                     315                           -                            11,770                     -                                      -                               (12,156)                      (20,882)                               
Deferred inflows OPEB 149,323                    204,605                    79,004                      -                            13,979                      -                            57,399                     -                                      35,583                       539,893                              

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,823,020$               2,692,633$               2,102,188$               231,791$                  66,837$                    (32,078)$                   300,806$                 (19,156)$                             6,389$                         (20,410)$                    8,152,020$                         

Noncash activities:
  Contributed capital assets - from governmental funds 8,266$                      -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                        -$                                    -$                             81,000$                     89,266$                              

Midwest City Municipal Authority
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Combining Statement of Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – June 30, 2018 
 

 

Utilities Authority
29th & Douglas 

Fund Total
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 208,823$                 144$                    208,967$            
Investments 707,594                   -                           707,594              

Total current assets 916,417                   144                      916,561              

Non-current assets:
  Land, construction in progress, and water rights 677,029                   5,500,000            6,177,029           
  Other capital assets, net 2,693,997                -                           2,693,997           

Total non-current assets 3,371,026                5,500,000            8,871,026           

Total assets 4,287,443                5,500,144            9,787,587           

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -                               -                           -                          
Total current liabilities -                               -                           -                          

Non-current liabilities:
Advance to other funds -                               -                           -                          

Total non-current liabilities -                               -                           -                          

Total liabilities -                               -                           -                          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,371,026                5,500,000            8,871,026           
Restricted for other purposes 216,134                   -                           216,134              
Unrestricted 700,283                   144                      700,427              

Total net position 4,287,443$              5,500,144$          9,787,587$         
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Utilities Authority
29th & Douglas 

Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues -$                              145$                         145$                         

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Other services and charges -                                4,104                        4,104                        
  Depreciation and amortization 57,073                      -                                57,073                      

Total operating expenses 57,073                      4,104                        61,177                      

Operating income (loss) (57,073)                     (3,959)                       (61,032)                     

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 14,474                      -                                14,474                      

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 14,474                      -                                14,474                      

Income (loss)  before transfers (42,599)                     (3,959)                       (46,558)                     
                      

Transfers in -                                69,166                      69,166                      

Change in net position (42,599)                     65,207                      22,608                      

Total net position - beginning, restated 4,330,042                 5,434,937                 9,764,979                 

Total net position - ending 4,287,443$               5,500,144$               9,787,587$               
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – June 30, 2018 
 

Utilities Authority
29th & Douglas 

Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers -$                              145$                          145$                          
Payments to suppliers (17,594)                     (4,104)                       (21,698)                     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (17,594)                     (3,959)                       (21,553)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds -                                69,166                       69,166                       

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities -                                69,166                       69,166                       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased -                                -                                -                                
Payments of interfund loan for capital purchases -                                (65,063)                     (65,063)                     

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities -                                (65,063)                     (65,063)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale  (purchase) of investments (3,359)                       -                                (3,359)                       
Interest and dividends 14,474                      -                                14,474                       

Net cash provided by investing activities 11,115                      -                                11,115                       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6,479)                       144                            (6,335)                       

Balances - beginning of year 215,302                    -                                215,302                     

Balances - end of year 208,823$                  144$                          208,967$                   

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 208,823$                  144$                          208,967$                   
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                                -                                -                                

Total cash and cash equivalents 208,823$                  144$                          208,967$                   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (57,073)$                   (3,959)$                     (61,032)$                   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 57,073                      -                                57,073                       
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts payable (17,594)                     -                                (17,594)                     
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (17,594)$                   (3,959)$                     (21,553)$                   
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Combining Statement of Net Position– Internal Service Funds – June 30, 2018 
 

Public Works 
Administration

Fleet Services 
Fund

Surplus Property 
Fund

Risk 
Management 

Fund
L & H Benefits 

Fund
Worker's Comp 

Fund Totals
ASSETS

Current assets:  
Cash and cash equivalents 73,646$                       67,992$                    78,890$                 342,699$               396,743$             517,507$             1,477,477$         
Investments 249,549                       230,390                    260,990                 1,279,468              1,481,244            1,932,118            5,433,759           
Receivables:
Accounts receivable -                                   -                                3,661                     30,981                   39,518                 -                           74,160                
Accrued interest receivable -                                   -                                -                             3,030                     3,508                   4,576                   11,114                
 Due from other funds 3                                  199                           -                             -                             -                           -                           202                     
Inventories -                                   60,152                      -                             -                             -                           -                           60,152                

Total current assets 323,198                       358,733                    343,541                 1,656,178              1,921,013            2,454,201            7,056,864           

Non-current assets:
Capital Assets:

Non-depreciable -                                   -                                -                             -                             -                           -                           -                          
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 128,811                       765,275                    94,541                   -                             -                           -                           988,627              
Total non-current assets 128,811                       765,275                    94,541                   -                             -                           -                           988,627              

Total assets 452,009                       1,124,008                 438,082                 1,656,178              1,921,013            2,454,201            8,045,491           

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount related to OPEB 17,046                         22,176                      1,044                     3,566                     -                       -                       43,832                

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -                                   68,388 566 16,046 152,210 27,493 264,703              
Claims liability -                                   -                                -                             152,000                 268,403               364,000               784,403              
Wages payable 38,292 36,129 1,110 9,319 1,851 -                           86,701                
Due to other funds -                                   -                                267,449                 -                             -                           -                           267,449              
Accrued compensated absences 57,183                         37,095                      1,389                     13,529                   241                      -                           109,437              

Total current liabilities 95,475                         141,612                    270,514                 190,894                 422,705               391,493               1,512,693           

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 114,367                       74,191                      2,779                     27,059                   483                      -                           218,879              
Total OPEB liability 452,096                       588,186                    27,679                   94,571                   -                           -                           1,162,532           
Claims liability -                                   -                                -                             230,000                 -                           1,296,000            1,526,000           

Total non-current liabilities 566,463                       662,377                    30,458                   351,630                 483                      1,296,000            2,907,411           
Total liabilities 661,938                       803,989                    300,972                 542,524                 423,188               1,687,493            4,420,104           

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount related to OPEB 41,514                         54,011                      2,542                     8,684                     -                       -                       106,751              

 
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 128,811                       765,275                    94,541                   -                             -                           -                           988,627              
Unrestricted (deficit) (363,208)                      (477,091)                   41,071                   1,108,536              1,497,825            766,708               2,573,841           

Total net position (234,397)$                    288,184$                  135,612$               1,108,536$            1,497,825$          766,708$             3,562,468$         
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Internal Service Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Public Works 
Administration

Fleet Services 
Fund

Surplus Property 
Fund

Risk Management 
Fund

L & H Benefits 
Fund

Worker's Comp 
Fund Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 968,686$                  2,348,110$               43,286$                    908,407$                  5,370,221$               1,113,000$            10,751,710$             
Miscellaneous 3                               199                           100                           13,625                      168,072                    -                             181,999                    
Total operating revenues 968,689                    2,348,309                 43,386                      922,032                    5,538,293                 1,113,000              10,933,709               

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services 813,433                    794,503                    31,262                      184,500                    33,098                      -                             1,856,796                 
  Materials and supplies 4,401                        1,380,339                 759                           3,671                        -                                -                             1,389,170                 
  Other services and charges 134,357                    89,181                      7,218                        690,417                    29,987                      -                             951,160                    
  Insurance claims and expenses -                                -                                -                                -                                5,179,933                 735,762                 5,915,695                 
  Depreciation and amortization 13,923                      62,793                      6,449                        -                                -                                -                             83,165                      

Total operating expenses 966,114                    2,326,816                 45,688                      878,588                    5,243,018                 735,762                 10,195,986               

Operating income (loss) 2,575                        21,493                      (2,302)                       43,444                      295,275                    377,238                 737,723                    

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 4,921                        4,343                        5,512                        76,674                      (10,335)                     (106,226)                (25,111)                     

Total non-operating revenue 4,921                        4,343                        5,512                        76,674                      (10,335)                     (106,226)                (25,111)                     

Income before transfsers 7,496                        25,836                      3,210                        120,118                    284,940                    271,012                 712,612                    
                      

Transfers in 2,728                        5,490                        -                                1,794                        125,624                    -                             135,636                    
Transfers out -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                

Change in net position 10,224                      31,326                      3,210                        121,912                    410,564                    271,012                 848,248                    

Total net position (deficit) - beginning, restated (244,621)                   256,858                    132,402                    986,624                    1,087,261                 495,696                 2,714,220                 

Total net position - ending (234,397)$                 288,184$                  135,612$                  1,108,536$               1,497,825$               766,708$               3,562,468$               
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Public Works 
Administration

Fleet Services 
Fund

Surplus Property 
Fund

Risk 
Management 

Fund
L & H Benefits 

Fund
Worker's Comp 

Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 968,689$                  2,348,309$               40,825$                     891,173$            5,534,153$                1,113,000$                10,896,149$              
Payments to suppliers (142,522)                   (1,493,056)                (8,124)                        10,303                (29,987)                     -                                (1,663,386)                
Payments to employees (801,775)                   (797,322)                   (30,774)                      (182,534)            (32,721)                     -                                (1,845,126)                
Claims and benefits paid -                                -                                -                                 (798,417)            (5,242,755)                (458,255)                   (6,499,427)                
Payment from (to) other funds 3                               (199)                          (16,701)                      -                         -                                -                                (16,897)                     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 24,395                      57,732                      (14,774)                      (79,475)              228,690                     654,745                     871,313                     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfers in 2,728                        5,490                        -                                 1,794                  125,624                     -                                135,636                     

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,728                        5,490                        -                                 1,794                  125,624                     -                                135,636                     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased -                                (15,591)                     -                                 -                         -                                -                                (15,591)                     

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities -                                (15,591)                     -                                 -                         -                                -                                (15,591)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (purchase) of investments (26,570)                     (41,677)                     2,984                         (383,733)            (316,235)                   (2,044,510)                (2,809,741)                
Interest and dividends 4,921                        4,344                        5,512                         66,012                36,620                       1,590                         118,999                     

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (21,649)                     (37,333)                     8,496                         (317,721)            (279,615)                   (2,042,920)                (2,690,742)                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,474                        10,298                      (6,278)                        (395,402)            74,699                       (1,388,175)                (1,699,384)                

Balances - beginning of year 68,172                      57,694                      85,168                       738,101              322,044                     1,905,682                  3,176,861                  

Balances - end of year 73,646$                    67,992$                    78,890$                     342,699$            396,743$                   517,507$                   1,477,477$                

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 73,646$                    67,992$                    78,890$                     342,699$            396,743$                   517,507$                   1,477,477$                

Total cash and cash equivalents 73,646$                    67,992$                    78,890$                     342,699$            396,743$                   517,507$                   1,477,477$                

-                     
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 2,575$                      21,493$                    (2,302)$                      43,444$              295,275$                   377,238$                   737,723$                   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 13,923                      62,793                      6,449                         -                         -                                -                                83,165                       
Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net -                                -                            (2,561)                        (30,859)              (4,140)                       -                                (37,560)                     
Due from other funds 3                               (199)                          -                                 -                         -                                -                                (196)                          
Inventory -                                (9,855)                       -                                 -                         -                                -                                (9,855)                       
Deferred inflows OPEB (136)                          (176)                          (9)                               29                       -                                -                                (292)                          
Accounts payable (3,764)                       (13,681)                     (147)                           13,974                47,171                       25,507                       69,060                       
Claims liability -                                -                                -                                 (108,000)            (109,993)                   252,000                     34,007                       
Due to employees 1,200                        (3,076)                       35                              959                     58                              -                                (824)                          
Due to other funds -                                -                                (16,701)                      -                     -                                -                                (16,701)                     
Total OPEB liability (35,565)                     (46,271)                     (2,178)                        (7,440)                -                                -                                (91,454)                     
Accrued compensated absences 4,645                        (7,307)                       98                              (266)                   319                            -                                (2,511)                       
Deferred outflows OPEB 41,514                      54,011                      2,542                         8,684                  -                            -                                106,751                     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 24,395$                    57,732$                    (14,774)$                    (79,475)$            228,690$                   654,745$                   871,313$                   
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Debt Service Coverage Schedule - Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

2011 and 2011A
Revenue Bonds

GROSS REVENUE AVAILABLE:
Water revenue 7,251,305$                  
Wastewater revenue 7,906,946                    
Pledged sales tax 13,630,157                  
Investment income 2,416                           

           Total Gross Revenue Available 28,790,824                  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
          Total Operating Expenses 9,797,575                    

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service 18,993,249$                

Average Annual Debt Service
  2011 Revenue Bonds 1,808,379$                  
  2011A Revenue Bonds 4,709,500

6,517,879$                  

Computed Coverage   291%
 
Coverage Requirement 125%
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General Government Expenditures by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
 

Fiscal Year
General 

Government Public Safety Streets
Health and 

Welfare
Culture & 
Recreation

Economic 
Development Debt Services Total

2008-09 4,731,952$        28,025,096$            5,832,627$            23,077,926$         1,720,807$          4,523,604$           2,241,289$           70,153,301$            
2009-10 4,341,709          25,474,931              14,974,806            1,491,596             1,657,029            4,648,669             2,811,624             55,400,364              
2010-11 6,459,976          25,157,469              6,006,443              160,983                1,120,863            4,915,834             3,679,296             47,500,864              
2011-12 5,423,037          27,570,275              3,702,871              629                       1,989,113            4,813,173             3,745,698             47,244,796              
2012-13 5,216,187          27,388,784              3,460,381              110,935                2,841,490            4,704,086             3,856,073             47,577,936              
2013-14 6,972,885          27,386,699              4,382,912              463,886                2,112,589            5,028,554             3,753,029             50,100,554              
2014-15 6,704,404          28,657,862              5,138,517              410,969                1,746,966            3,792,050             3,650,604             50,101,372              
2015-16 7,714,835          27,494,864              4,865,569              755,691                2,037,909            4,644,064             3,505,294             51,018,226              
2016-17 8,009,505          27,757,453              7,336,480              387,911                1,647,320            6,686,814             3,426,604             55,252,087              
2017-18 8,766,825          28,544,968              3,800,063              441,065                1,797,029            58,846,663           19,166,464           121,363,077            
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Governmental Revenues By Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

Fiscal Year Taxes
Intergov-
ernmental

Licenses & 
Permits

Charges for 
Services

Fines & 
Forfeitures

Investment 
Income

Misc 
Revenues Total

2008-09 32,399,044$       4,903,868$      420,663$     2,127,414$     2,104,237$    (9,252,051)$      775,469$         33,478,644$       
2009-10 33,166,047         4,906,373        385,949       2,066,991       1,878,424      6,582,036         2,445,317        51,431,137         
2010-11 33,566,216         6,440,504        395,511       2,193,602       2,001,322      14,546,261       552,201           59,695,617         
2011-12 36,586,145         * 5,462,968        330,553       2,636,087       2,170,041      2,749,217         742,978           50,677,989         
2012-13 39,796,809         5,205,283        392,512       2,249,961       1,960,694      10,846,574       1,492,193        61,944,026         
2013-14 40,546,435         5,668,145        304,395       2,545,726       1,976,580      15,736,403       2,367,115        69,144,799         
2014-15 39,781,445         5,543,732        349,439       3,662,747       2,045,294      8,377,665         2,381,400        62,141,722         
2015-16 40,296,979         5,367,958        567,942       4,259,051       1,971,146      3,546,362         1,938,936        57,948,374         
2016-17 37,327,650         5,011,809        504,832       4,564,074       1,581,638      13,120,184       2,856,002        64,966,189         
2017-18 41,659,607         ** 4,812,098        589,264       5,412,604       1,428,723      13,120,759       2,177,963        69,201,018         

* A new sales/use Tax became effective January 1, 2012 changing the rate from 3.3 to 3.85
** A new sales/use Tax became effective January 1, 2018 changing the rate from 3.85 to 4.60
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Assessed Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

Fiscal Year Real Property
Personal 
Property

Public Service 
Property

Veteran and 
Homestead 
Exemption Assessed Value

Estimated Actual 
Value

2009 244,609,641         29,359,839        12,004,561        14,504,429          271,469,612         (1) 2,467,905,563           11%
2010 252,013,094         27,856,671        13,374,321        10,453,302          278,216,075         (1) 2,529,237,045           11%
2011 258,517,927         27,728,562        13,697,571        10,398,494          284,605,074         (1) 2,587,318,855           11%
2012 259,775,001         27,954,136        13,431,063        10,164,671          285,884,862         (1) 2,598,953,291           11%
2013 263,908,805         28,917,523        11,834,175        15,286,274          289,374,229         (1) 2,630,674,809           11%
2014 267,452,466         28,135,094        11,407,389        15,250,420          291,744,529         (1) 2,652,222,991           11%
2015 272,926,268         26,469,753        11,878,425        9,320,146            296,030,326         (1) 2,691,184,782           11%
2016 283,028,134         25,089,341        11,544,013        9,165,223            304,059,153         (1) 2,764,174,118           11%
2017 296,756,210         35,937,171        13,524,628        9,022,864            330,156,570         (1) 3,001,423,364           11%
2018 309,104,061         35,772,442        13,613,786        8,855,111            341,997,736         (1) 3,109,070,327           11%

(1) New established exemption for veterans

Total Actual
Ratio of Total 

Assessed Value  
to Total 

Estimated 
Actual Value
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Property Tax Rates – All Overlapping Governments 
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Value) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

Fiscal Year

City 
Sinking 
Fund

MWC 
Schools

Rose State 
College

Oklahoma 
County

Total 
Midwest 

City 
Resident

Choctaw 
Schools

Total 
Midwest 

City 
Resident

OKC 
Schools

Total 
Midwest 

City 
Resident

2009 7.24 65.83 17.40 24.79 115.26 68.50 117.93 58.43 107.86
2010 6.81 65.60 17.32 24.27 114.00 69.41 117.81 58.70 107.10
2011 6.62 64.64 17.18 24.06 112.50 70.22 118.08 62.09 109.95
2012 6.09 66.55 17.10 23.97 113.71 72.49 119.65 59.29 106.45
2013 5.78 64.98 17.02 23.87 111.65 76.19 122.86 60.39 107.06
2014 5.44 70.32 20.33 23.58 119.67 76.18 125.53 59.36 108.71
2015 5.18 71.03 19.88 23.72 119.81 76.17 124.95 59.71 108.49
2016 0.96 70.64 19.65 23.81 115.06 76.17 120.59 59.36 103.78
2017 0.92 65.54 19.21 23.28 108.95 76.16 119.57 59.36 102.77
2018 0.94 66.72 18.92 23.64 110.22 76.15 119.65 58.84 102.34
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Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

Net assessed valuation $341,997,736

Debt limit (a) $34,199,774

Applicable bonds outstanding $975,000

Legal debt margin $33,224,774

(a) Article 10, Section 26 of the Constitution of the State of Oklahoma limits municipal debt to 10% of net assessed 
valuation for certain types of general obligation bonds.
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Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Total General Governmental Expenditures 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest (1)
Total   Debt 

Service

Total General 
Governmental 
Expenditures 

Ratio of Debt    
Service to 

Government 
Expenditures

2007-08 1,350,000$      1,102,596$      2,452,596$      50,037,088$           4.90%
2008-09 1,400,000        635,560           2,035,560        70,153,301             2.90%
2009-10 1,400,000        569,623           1,969,623        55,400,364             3.56%
2010-11 1,400,000        503,685           1,903,685        47,500,864             4.01%
2011-12 1,400,000        437,342           1,837,342        47,244,796             3.89%
2012-13 1,400,000        370,754           1,770,754        47,577,936             3.72%
2013-14 1,400,000        304,167           1,704,167        50,100,554             3.40%
2014-15 1,400,000        259,975           1,659,975        50,101,372             3.31%
2015-16 1,400,000        190,700           1,590,700        51,018,226             3.12%
2016-17 1,400,000        121,425           1,521,425        57,389,574             2.65%
2017-18 325,000           51,750             376,750           121,363,077           0.31%

(1) Excludes bond issuance and other costs
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Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year Population Assessed Value 
Gross Bonded 

Debt

Less Debt 
Service 
Money 

Available 
Net Bonded 

Debt

Ratio of    Net 
Bonded Debt 
to Assessed 

Value

Net 
Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita

2008-09 54,088 271,469,612$       12,500,000$      1,513,528$   10,986,472$      4.05% 203
2009-10 54,088 278,216,075 11,100,000 1,500,619 9,599,381 3.45% 177
2010-11 54,371 284,605,074 9,700,000 1,504,457 8,195,543 2.88% 151
2011-12 54,371 285,884,862 8,300,000 1,551,565 6,748,435 2.36% 124
2012-13 54,371 289,374,229 6,900,000 1,428,884 5,471,116 1.89% 101
2013-14 54,371 291,744,529 5,500,000 1,373,216 4,126,784 1.41% 76
2014-15 54,371 296,030,326 4,100,000 1,364,980 2,735,020 0.92% 50
2015-16 54,371 304,059,153 2,700,000 1,392,720 1,307,280 0.43% 24
2016-17 54,371 330,156,570 1,300,000 189,868 1,110,132 0.34% 20
2017-18 54,371               341,997,736         975,000             131,132        843,868             0.25% 16
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Revenue Bond and Note Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

Fiscal Year
Gross 

Revenues

Direct 
Operating 
Expenses

Net Revenue 
Available for 
Debt Service

Maximum 
Annual     

Debt Service

Debt 
Service 

Coverage

2008-09 14,535,584$      8,191,452$      6,344,132$      2,000,344$      3.17
2009-10 14,822,864        7,867,225        6,955,639        2,000,344        3.48
2010-11 15,207,582        8,004,126        7,203,456        2,000,344        3.60
2011-12 17,702,453        8,669,659        9,032,794        6,517,879        1.39
2012-13 27,258,461        9,443,537        17,814,924      6,517,879        2.73
2013-14 28,567,824        9,583,902        18,983,922      6,517,879        2.91
2014-15 28,465,993        9,581,604        18,884,389      6,517,879        2.70
2015-16 28,685,573        11,425,998      17,259,575      6,517,879        2.65
2016-17 28,580,650        9,823,029        18,757,621      6,517,879        2.88
2017-18 28,790,824        9,797,575        18,993,249      6,517,879        2.91
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Demographic Statistics 

 
 

Year Population

Population 
Percent 
Change

1950 10,166         0.00%
1960 36,058         254.69%
1970 48,212         33.71%
1980 49,559         2.79%
1990 52,267         5.46%
2000 54,088         3.48%
2010 54,371         0.50%

Population is taken from US Census conducted every 10 years.
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New Construction 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year
Number   of 

Units Value
Number   
of Units Value

Total 
Construction

2008-09 264 28,032,074$         504            29,169,569$      57,201,643$      
2009-10 184 11,614,006           457            18,846,251        30,460,257        
2010-11 98 14,052,174           203            23,937,338        37,989,512        
2011-12 28 97,003,650           237            20,332,200        117,335,850      
2012-13 27 54,561,650           120            19,020,411        73,582,061        
2013-14 8 6,398,000             69              11,878,466        18,276,466        
2014-15 15 6,748,210             103            16,365,722        23,113,932        
2015-16 26 69,362,500           126            23,727,017        93,089,517        
2016-17 14 22,360,831           94              14,092,784        36,453,615        
2017-18 195 26,137,283           19              28,127,450        54,264,733        

Commercial Construction Residential Construction
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Miscellaneous Statistics 
June 30, 2018 

 
Date of Incorporation 1943
Form of government Council-manager
Square miles in city limits 24.37
Miles of streets 794.38 Lane miles

Education
Number of primary schools 8
Number of secondary schools 3
Number of High schools 2
Number of colleges 1

Police Protection
Number of officers 95

Fire Protection
Number of stations 6
Number of headquarters 1
Number of personnel per shift 25

Public Works
Water storage capacity (millions of gallons) 9.5
Miles of water lines 302.8
Miles of sanitary sewer lines 286.8
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Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

Fiscal Year
Full Time 

Government

Full Time 
Hotel/Conference 

Center

2007-08 499 -                         
2008-09 499 -                         
2009-10 502 60
2010-11 494 62
2011-12 493 62
2012-13 491 -                  
2013-14 489 -                  
2014-15 477 -                  
2015-16 472 -                  
2016-17 470 -                  
2017-18 471 -                  

City Employees

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

113 
 

 
Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued 

June 30, 2018 
City Water Usage (Gallons) 

 

Fiscal Year Annual Usage
Average 

Daily Usage

2007-08 1,863,117,000       5,104,430      
2008-09 1,931,741,887       5,292,444      
2009-10 1,910,755,000       5,234,945      
2010-11 1,953,204,878       5,351,246      
2011-12 2,025,176,197       5,548,428      
2012-13 1,902,831,000       5,213,236      
2013-14 1,699,549,985       4,656,301      
2014-15 1,604,378,570       4,395,558      
2015-16 1,778,171,000       4,871,701      
2016-17 2,193,795,000       6,010,397      
2017-18 1,993,392,000       5,461,348      
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 December 21, 2018 

City Council and Management 
City of Midwest City, Oklahoma 

This letter is to inform the City Council of the City of Midwest City about significant matters related to the 
conduct of our audit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, so that it can appropriately discharge its 
oversight responsibility and we comply with our professional responsibilities. 

The following summarizes various matters that must be communicated to you under auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Respective Responsibilities of the Auditor and Management 
Our responsibility under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States have been 
described to you in our arrangement letter dated July 10, 2018. The audit of the financial statements does 
not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities, which are also 
described in that letter. 

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit 
We have issued a separate communication dated June 30, 2018 regarding the planned scope and timing 
of our audit and have discussed with you our identification of, and planned audit response to, significant 
risks of material misstatement. 

Significant Accounting Practices, Including Policies, Estimates and Disclosures 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain circumstances, management may select 
among alternative accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances, management has selected 
the preferable accounting practice. Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used by the City. The City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. As a result of the implementation, the City added disclosures in Note 10 of the basic financial 
statements and restated beginning net position. The City also adopted GASB Statement No. 89, 
Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period.  As a result of the 
implementation, the City has ceased capitalizing interest on construction in progress for proprietary funds. 

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or significant accounting policies in 
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  

The following is a list of the significant estimates which you may wish to monitor for your oversight 
responsibilities of the financial reporting process: 

 Allowance for doubtful accounts
 Depreciable life of capital assets
 Net pension liability (NPL) assumptions
 Fair value of investments
 Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability
 Worker’s compensation, healthcare and other risk ,management liabilities
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Audit Adjustments 
There were no audit adjustments proposed by us and recorded by the City. 

Uncorrected Misstatements 
We identified the following uncorrected misstatements that management has concluded are not, 
individually or in the aggregate, material to the financial statements. We agree with management’s 
conclusion in that regard. 

Opinion Unit: Governmental Type Activities

Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Revenue Expense
To adjust OPEB liability for errors in 
actuarial assumptions

-$            610,259  $        (863,877)  $        253,618  $ -$                

-$            610,259  $        (863,877)            253,618  $ -$                
Current year effect on net position 253,618              

Total (610,259)  $        

Effect - Debit (Credit)

Opinion Unit: Business Type Activities and Midwest City Municipal Authority

Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Revenue Expense
To adjust OPEB liability for errors in 
actuarial assumptions

-$            223,981  $        (317,066)  $        -$ 93,085  $        

-$            223,981  $        (317,066)            -$ 93,085  $        
Current year effect on net position 93,085                

Total (223,981)  $        

Effect - Debit (Credit)

Opinion Unit: General Fund

Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Revenue Expense

Double entry for Hospital Authority Mowing 
Fee, booked PY revenue in FY18.

-$            -$  (16,122)  $          16,122  $ -$                

Expenses incurred in FY18 but not 
recorded in FY18 

(29,878)             29,878            

-$            (29,878)  $         (16,122)              16,122  $ 29,878  $        
Current year effect on net position 29,878                

Total 13,756  $            

Effect - Debit (Credit)

Opinion Unit: Internal Service Funds

Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Revenue Expense
To adjust OPEB liability for errors in 
actuarial assumptions

-$            44,287  $          (62,692)  $          -$ 18,405  $        

-$            44,287  $          (62,692)              -$ 18,405  $        

Current year effect on net position 18,405                

Total (44,287)  $          

Effect - Debit (Credit)
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Internal Control Matters  
We have issued our report dated December 21, 2018, on internal controls over financial reporting and 
compliance and other matters, as required by Government Auditing Standards. That report is attached to 
this letter, and will also be filed with the Oklahoma State Auditor & Inspector’s office upon acceptance by 
the City Council. 

Disagreements with Management  
We encountered no significant difficulties with management over the application of significant accounting 
principles, the basis of management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit or 
significant disclosures to be included in the financial statements. 

Consultation With Other Accountants 
We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or 
auditing matters, other than those services provided by Crawford and Associates to prepare the year end 
financial statements. 

Significant Issues Discussed with Management  
No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or were the subject of correspondence with 
management.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit. 

Management Representations 
Attached are copies of the management representation letters for the financial statement audit and the 
Single Audit. 

Other Communications with Management 
Attached is a letter describing deficiencies in internal controls that we determined were not material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and other recommendations to management to improve 
processes and efficiencies. 

Closing 
We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the 
opportunity to continue to be of service to the City of Midwest City. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 



Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Midwest City, Oklahoma 
Midwest City, Oklahoma 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2018.  Our report on our audit of the City’s basic 
financial statements contains an emphasis of matter paragraph describing a restatement due to the 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other than Pensions.  Our opinion was not modified with respect to this matter. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be a material weakness.  The 
material weakness is identified as Finding 2018-001. 



Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

City of Midwest City’s Response to Findings 
The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings over the financial statements. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
December 21, 2018 



City of Midwest City, Oklahoma 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
June 30, 2018 

Findings Related to the Financial Statements: 

A. Internal Control

Finding 2018-001

Audit finding: In 2018, the City’s did not submit accurate census data to its actuarial specialist to
determine the net other post-employment benefit obligation and the related deferred outflows,
deferred inflows, and benefit expense under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 75.

Criteria:  GASB Statement No. 75 requires that assumptions be based on the actual experience of the
covered group, to the extent that credible experience data are available, but should emphasize
expected long-term future trends rather than give undue weight to recent past experience.  These
include the expected point in time at which benefit payments will begin to be made and marital and
dependency status.

Condition and context: The City had several instances of employees covered under the health plan
having incorrect hire dates, incorrect plan elections, and errors in marital status when testing the
census data submitted to the plan actuary for valuation under GASB Statement No. 75.

Cause: The City’s human resources director did not adequately review the census data prior to its
submission to the actuarial specialist.

Effect: The City’s actuary calculated an estimate using inaccurate census data.  The error in the
calculation was deemed to be immaterial.  However, future errors in census data could result in
material misstatements in the City’s financial report.

Recommendation:  We recommend that the City review the census data in full prior to its submission
to actuaries and confirm that the data represents accurate information prior to the estimates
calculation.

Management response and corrective action plan:  Concur.  We will perform a comprehensive review
of  the census data in Spring 2018/Summer 2018.  After open enrollment, we will update the census
data for any changes that occur.

B. Compliance Findings

No matters to report.
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December 21, 2018 

To Management and the City Council 
City of Midwest City 
Midwest City, Oklahoma 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Midwest City (the City) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists when (a) a control 
necessary to meet the control objective is missing, or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so 
that, even if the control operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A deficiency in 
operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as designed or when the person 
performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or competence to perform the control 
effectively. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

We communicated the significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified during our audit in a 
separate communication dated December 21, 2018. 

Certain deficiencies in internal control that have been previously communicated to you, in writing, by us or 
by others within your organization are not repeated herein. 

Following are descriptions of other identified deficiencies in internal control that we determined did not 
constitute significant deficiencies or material weaknesses: 
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Consideration of Removal of 29th and Douglas Fund 
The 29th and Douglas Fund was formerly an active enterprise fund with fees collected from residents of a 
trailer park.  This trailer park is no longer active and the land has remained in the 29th and Douglas Fund.  
We recommend that the City have an appraisal done of the land and make a determination as to an 
effective use of the land and account for it accordingly.   
 
The following deficiencies were communicated to management in the prior year and are being included in 
this letter. We believe that management should consider implementing controls and procedures to 
address these deficiencies. 
 
Review of SOC1 Reports by Management 
During our review of the transaction cycles related to health insurance and workers compensation, RSM 
noted that the SOC 1 reports, which outline the results of the audits over internal controls of the City’s 
third party administrators related to the self-insured plans, were not being reviewed by management prior 
to providing them to the auditors.  Management should review these reports as they are available to 
ensure that all user controls are appropriately implemented and that the controls for the third party 
administrators are operating effectively.   
 
Recording of Government Wide Entries 
The City engages Crawford & Associates to record their GASB 34 entries as part of the preparation of the 
year-end financial statements.  Crawford & Associates record these transactions in the financial 
statements, but the City does not record them in their general ledger. This has caused some issues in 
reconciling the capital asset balances and ensuring all assets have been recorded.  We recommend that 
the City record these entries as part of the year-end close process each year and update these balances 
prior to sending the general ledger to Crawford & Associates.   
 
Capitalization Threshold for Capital Assets 
The City has a capitalization threshold of $1,000 for its capital assets.  In February 2006, the 
Governmental Financial Officers Association (GFOA) recommended that state and local governments not 
establish a capitalization threshold of less than $5,000 for any individual items in any case.  We 
recommend that the City adopt a capitalization threshold of at least $5,000 for individual capital assets 
and consider whether a higher threshold, such as $10,000, might be appropriate.  Note that if the City 
adopts a policy greater than $5,000, it would need to modify that policy for assets acquired with Federal 
funds.   
 
This letter is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, and others 
within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. We appreciate serving the City of Midwest City and would be happy to assist you in 
addressing and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter. 
 

 



 
 

 
  

Memorandum 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Council  

 

FROM:  Catherine Wilson, Human Resources Director 

 

DATE: January 8, 2019 

 

RE:  Discussion and consideration of accepting the monthly report on the City of 

Midwest City Employees’ Health Benefits Plan by the City Manager and action as 

deemed necessary by the Council to maintain the plan. 

 

This item is placed on the agenda at the request of the Council. Attached to this memo is 

information regarding the current financial condition of the City Employees’ Health Benefits 

Plan for the month of November 2018 which is the fifth (5) period of the FY 2018/2019. 

 

This is a staff update 

 

 

 

 

Catherine Wilson, Human Resources Director 



12/17/2018 WILSOCA

FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 Jul -18 Aug - 18 Sep - 18 Oct - 18 Nov - 18 Dec - 18 Jan - 19 Feb - 19 Mar - 19 Apr - 19 May - 19 Jun - 19

PLAN INCOME

Budgeted (MTD) 590,806 886,209 590,806 590,806 590,806 590,806 590,806 590,806 886,209 590,806 590,806 590,806

Actual (MTD) 580,003 778,717 869,305 675,077 605,701

Budgeted (YTD) 590,806 1,477,015 2,067,821 2,658,627 3,249,433

Actual (YTD) 580,003 1,358,720 2,228,025 2,903,102 3,508,803

PLAN CLAIMS/ADMIN COSTS Jul -18 Aug - 18 Sep - 18 Oct - 18 Nov - 18 Dec - 18 Jan - 19 Feb - 19 Mar - 19 Apr - 19 May - 19 Jun - 19

Budgeted (MTD 569,824 854,736 569,824 569,824 569,824 569,824 569,824 569,824 854,736 569,824 569,824 569,824

Actual (MTD) 697,154 533,729 955,290 867,993 682,361

Budgeted (YTD) 569,824 1,424,560 1,994,384 2,564,208 3,134,032

Actual (YTD) 697,154 1,230,883 2,186,173 3,054,166 3,736,527

EXCESS INCOME vs. EXPENDITURES Jul -18 Aug - 18 Sep - 18 Oct - 18 Nov - 18 Dec - 18 Jan - 19 Feb - 19 Mar - 19 Apr - 19 May - 19 Jun - 19

Budgeted (MTD) 20,982 31,473 20,982 20,982 20,982 20,982 20,982 20,982 31,473 20,982 20,982 20,982

Actual (MTD) -117,151 244,988 -85,985 -192,916 -76,660

Budgeted (YTD) 20,982 52,455 73,437 94,419 115,401

Actual (YTD) -117,151 127,837 41,852 -151,064 -227,724

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 **Jul -17** Aug - 17 Sep - 17** **Oct - 17** Nov - 17 Dec - 17 **Jan - 18** Feb - 18 Mar - 18** Apr - 18 **May - 18** Jun - 18

PLAN INCOME

Budgeted (MTD) 583,812 583,812 875,718 583,812 583,812 583,812 583,812 583,812 875,718 583,812 583,812 583,812

Actual (MTD) 549,884 581809 762314 573509 575591 584948 639,389 575734 780330 582,690 593056 585557

Budgeted (YTD) 583,812 1,167,624 2,043,342 2,627,154 3,210,966 3,794,778 4,378,590 4,962,402 5,838,120 6,421,932 7,005,744 7,589,556

Actual (YTD) 549,884 1,131,693 1,894,007 2,467,516 3,043,107 3,628,055 4,267,444 4,843,178 5,623,508 6,206,198 6,799,254 7,384,811

PLAN CLAIMS/ADMIN COSTS **Jul -17** Aug - 17 Sep - 17 **Oct - 17** Nov - 17 Dec - 17 **Jan - 18** Feb - 18 Mar - 18 Apr - 18 **May - 18** Jun - 18

Budgeted (MTD 583,489 583,489 875,235 583,489 583,489 583,489 583,489 583,489 875,235 583,489 583,489 583,489

Actual (MTD) 570,148 531,432 564,791 564,182 535,313 709,157 594992 427,810 594,358 566,711 655,998 551,006

Budgeted (YTD) 583,489 1,166,978 1,731,769 2,295,951 2,831,264 3,540,421 4,135,413 4,563,223 5,157,581 5,724,292 6,380,290 6,931,296

Actual (YTD) 570,148 1,101,580 1,666,371 2,230,553 2,765,866 3,475,023 4,070,015 4,497,825 5,092,183 5,658,894 6,314,892 6,865,898

EXCESS INCOME vs. EXPENDITURES **Jul -17** Aug - 17 Sep - 17 **Oct - 17** Nov - 17 Dec - 17 **Jan - 18** Feb - 18 Mar - 18 Apr - 18 **May - 18** Jun - 18

Budgeted (MTD) 323 323 483 323 323 323 323 323 483 323 323 323

Actual (MTD -20,264 50,377 197,523 9,327 40,278 -124,209 44,397 147,924 185,972 15,979 -62,942 34,551

Budgeted (YTD) 323 646 311,573 331,203 379,702 254,357 243,177 399,179 680,539 697,640 625,454 658,260

Actual (YTD) -20,264 30,113 227,636 236,963 277,241 153,032 197,429 345,353 531,325 547,304 484,362 518,913

AUGUST AND MARCH HAVE 3 PAYROLLS

Nov. 5/FY 2019: $1,978,052

Nov. 5/FY 2018: $2,080962

Nov. 5/FY 2017: $1,574,165

Nov. 5/FY 2016: $1,830,873

** HAD FIVE MONDAYS WITH REPORTED MEDICAL

CLAIMS PAID***



                    
 

City Manager 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK  73110 

ghenson@midwestcityok.org 

Office: 405.739.1204/Fax: 405.739.1208 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 

FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
 

DATE: January 8, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: Consider and adopt a resolution fixing the amount of bonds to mature each year, fixing 

the time and place the bonds are to be sold, authorizing the Clerk to give notice of said 

sale as required by law, and declaring an emergency. 

 

 

 

Per our legal counsel, the attached resolution is needed for the issuance of the Series 2019 General 

Obligation Bonds.  

 

Staff recommends approval.  
 
 

 

J. GUY HENSON, AICP, City Manager 



THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA,
MET IN REGULAR SESSION IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT THE CITY HALL, 100
NORTH MIDWEST BOULEVARD, IN SAID CITY ON THE 8TH DAY OF JANUARY,
2019, AT 6:00 O'CLOCK P.M.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

Notice of the regular meetings of the City Council for calendar year 2019 having been given
in writing to the City Clerk of Midwest City, Oklahoma prior to December 15, 2018, and public
notice having been posted in prominent public view at the City Hall, 100 North Midwest Boulevard,
Midwest City, Oklahoma, twenty-four (24) hours prior to this meeting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays
and legal holidays, all in compliance with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act.

(OTHER PROCEEDINGS)

Thereupon there was introduced a resolution which was read in full by the Clerk and
considered by sections. Upon motion by                             , seconded by                                    , the
resolution was adopted by the following vote:

AYE:

NAY:

THEREUPON, the resolution was signed by the Mayor, attested by the Clerk, sealed with the
seal of said municipality and is as follows:
  

1041003.10



RESOLUTION NO.  2019-01 

A RESOLUTION FIXING THE AMOUNT OF BONDS TO MATURE EACH YEAR,
FIXING THE TIME AND PLACE THE BONDS ARE TO BE SOLD AND AUTHORIZING
THE CLERK TO GIVE NOTICE OF SAID SALE AS REQUIRED BY LAW AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the issuance of $53,650,000,000.00 of General Obligation Bonds by the City of
Midwest City, Oklahoma, described as follows: $15,965,000.00 bonds for the purpose of
constructing, reconstructing, improving,  and repairing streets within said City; $21,635,000.00 
bonds for the purpose of purchasing, constructing, equipping,  improving, extending, renovating,
repairing and beautifying public parks and parklands, cultural and recreational facilities, all to be
owned exclusively by said City; and $10,490,000.00 bonds for the purpose of  acquiring,
constructing, reconstructing, improving, remodeling, and repairing public safety buildings and
facilities and acquiring necessary lands therefor and purchasing and installing public safety
equipment all to be owned exclusively by said City, has been duly authorized at an election held on
August 28, 2018; and

WHEREAS, The Council of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, pursuant to Title 62,
Oklahoma Statutes 2011, Section 354, desires to sell at this time $20,000,000.00 in General
Obligation Bonds consisting of a combined issue of $7,945,000.00 bonds for the purpose of
constructing, reconstructing, improving,  and repairing streets within said City; $4,345,000.00  bonds
for the purpose of purchasing, constructing, equipping,  improving, extending, renovating, repairing
and beautifying public parks and parklands, cultural and recreational facilities, all to be owned
exclusively by said City; and $7,710,000.00 bonds for the purpose of  acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, remodeling, and repairing public safety buildings and facilities and
acquiring necessary lands therefor and purchasing and installing public safety equipment all to be
owned exclusively by said City as authorized in the 2018 election. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY,
OKLAHOMA:

Section 1.  That $20,000,000.00 of General Obligation Bonds of the City of Midwest City,
Oklahoma, voted on the 28  day of August, 2018, shall be offered for sale at City Hall, 100 Northth

Midwest Boulevard, in said municipality on the 12th day of February, 2019, at 10:30 o'clock A .M.
Central Standard Time, by receipt of sealed bids and electronic bids as set forth in the Notice of Sale
and Instructions to Bidders to be used in connection with the sale of the Bonds and that said Bonds
shall become due $795,000.00 in two years from their date and $835,000.00 annually each year
thereafter until paid.

Section 2.  That the Clerk of said City is hereby ordered and directed to cause notice of the sale of
said Bonds to be given as required by law.
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ADOPTED AND APPROVED  this 8th day of January, 2019.

                                                                
Mayor

ATTEST:

                                                      
SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk

(SEAL)

APPROVED as to form and legality this 8th day of January, 2019.

                                                                 
HEATHER POOLE, City Attorney             
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I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution calling for the sale of
Bonds adopted by the governing body of said municipality and transcript of proceedings of said
governing body at a regular meeting thereof held on the date therein set out, insofar as the same
relates to the introduction, reading and adoption thereof as the same appears of record in my office.

 I hereby certify that a true and complete copy of the Public Notice, attached
hereto as Exhibit "A", was posted in prominent public view at the city Hall, 100 North Midwest
Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma, twenty-four (24) hours prior to the date of the meeting therein
described, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays.  I further certify that a true, correct and
complete copy of the schedule of regularly scheduled meetings of the City Council of the City for
calendar year 2019 was filed in the office of the City Clerk of Midwest City, Oklahoma, as
proscribed by law and in accordance with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act.

WITNESS my hand and seal this 8th day of January, 2019.

                                                                
City Clerk
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City Manager 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 

 

DATE: January 8, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of appointing the Mayor's nominee of Aaron Budd as the 

Midwest City representative to the newly formed Regional Transportation Authority of 

Central Oklahoma. 

 

 

 

As you may recall, on November 27, 2018, the Council approved Resolution 2018-31 authorizing 

Midwest City’s involvement in the execution of the Trust Agreement and Indenture of the Regional 

Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (Attached for your reference).  

 

As a member of the Trust Agreement and Indenture, the Council appoints a citizen from Midwest City 

to represent the financial and logistic interests of the City as the newly formed Authority proceeds as 

established “for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, maintaining, and operating 

transportation projects located within the boundaries of the regional transportation district.” (Res. 2018-

31) 

 

The Mayor has nominated Mr. Aaron Budd, PLLC as the Midwest City Citizen to sit on the Authority.  

  

 

 
J. GUY HENSON, AICP, City Manager 





Midwest City Emergency Management 

100 N. Midwest Blvd. 

Midwest City, OK 73110 

Office 405.739.1386 

 

 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Midwest City Emergency Management 
We exist to reduce risk, provide emergency assistance, and add value to our community. 

www.midwestcityok.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Mike Bower, Emergency Management Manager 

 

DATE: January 8, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of accepting a State and Local Assistance 

Performance Grant from and entering into an Agreement for the Sub-Grant of 

Emergency Management Performance Grant Program Funds with The State of 

Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management (OEM) in the amount of 

$20,000 effective October 1, 2018 to encourage the development of 

comprehensive disaster preparedness and assistance plans, programs, capabilities, 

and organizations by Tribal, State and Political Subdivisions. 

 

 

For 2019 we have received a $5,000 increase over previous years. This sub-grant will provide 

the basis for dealing effectively with disasters and emergencies.  Payments to the local 

jurisdiction will be made on a quarterly basis according to the schedule provided in this 

performance grant. 

 

This award is designed to assist our community in meeting the cost of our emergency 

management program.  Future grant eligibility is contingent upon completion of the scope of 

work contained in the attached performance grant agreement. 

 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

 
MIKE BOWER 

Emergency Management Manager 

 

 

Attachment:  Proposed Performance Grant Agreement 
 

















































Grants Management  

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK   73110 

405.739.1216 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Terri L. Craft, Grants Manager 
 
DATE:  January 8, 2019 
 
RE: Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into an 

agreement for professional services with Freese and Nichols, Inc. in the 
lump sum amount of $36,000 and an additional not to exceed fee of 
$5,000 (special services, if needed) for the engineering and design of 
the concrete trail along N.E. 23rd St. and improvements under the 
Crutcho Creek Bridge being part of Phase II of the SCIP Recreational 
Trail Project. (Grants Management – T. Craft) 

 
 
 
The following agreement for professional services will produce engineered construction plans 
for the first segment of Phase II of the SCIP Recreational Trail.  The 2018 Recreational Trail 
Grant Agreement was approved at the December 11, 2018 council meeting.  
 
Staff recommends approval.  

 
 

 
 
Terri L. Craft 
Grants Manager 





























 

Information Technology 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK 73110 

Office 405.739.1374 

Fax 405.869.8602  

www.MidwestCityOK.org 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Ryan Rushing, Information Technology Director 

 

DATE:  January 8, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into an IBM Maintenance 

Services Agreement from February 1, 2019 to April 30, 2019 with SPS VAR, LLC in 

the amount of $1,895.00 for hardware and software maintenance. 

 

Midwest City has been utilizing CentralSquare’s ERP Software System since 1999.  As you may 

recall, this system runs mainly on an IBM iSeries and our current hardware warranty ends on January 

31, 2019.  This agreement will maintain continuous support with IBM on this equipment.  

 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

Ryan Rushing, Information Technology Director 







Remarketed IBM Maintenance Agreement 

Extending Contract AN0PHT to 4/30/19
Maintenance Services Description 

Contract Term :  10/22/18 - 10/21/19 Customer Address:100 North Midwest Blvd

Customer Name: Midwest City Midwest City,  OK  73110

Description Type Mod/Feat Serial Number
Charge Start 

Date

Charge Stop 

Date

Type of 

Service
Charges       

HWMA  9407 515 19DBA 2/1/2019 4/30/2019 24x7 $645.00 

SWMA Subscription with Supportline 9407 515 19DBA 2/1/2019 4/30/2019 24x7 $625.00 

Service Extension for V7R1 Support 9407 515 19DBA 2/1/2019 4/30/2019 24x7 $625.00 

Total Charges 1,895.00$          

12/14/2018 SPS VAR, LLC 1 of  1



                  The City Of Midwest City          

          Neighborhood Services Department 
             Neighborhoods In Action • Code Enforcement • Neighborhood Initiative  

 

MEMO 
 

 

To:  Tim Lyon, Assistant City Manager 

 

From:  Mike S. Stroh, Neighborhood Services Director 

 

Date:  January 8, 2019 

 

Subject: Monthly Neighborhood Services report for November 2018 
 

 

In November 2018, the Code Enforcement Division had 6 officers for the month. City Clerk’s, 

Code Officer was also included in these numbers. Together they opened 330 new cases, cleared 

487 cases, contracted 24 properties, and wrote 37 new citations. This makes 8,005 cases for the 

year and we currently have 388 open cases. 
 

Here is a breakdown of all the violations worked for the month. 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This shows a comparison between 2017 and 2018 of the total cases worked by each ward. 

 

   

 

 November 

2017 

Total 2017 November 

2018 

Total 2018 

     

Ward 1 71 1,675 91 2,496 

Ward 2 39 1,021 22 804 

Ward 3 43 978 98 1,432 

Ward 4 9 641 36 697 

Ward 5 81 1,113 34 1,512 

Ward 6 14 411 49 966 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 November 

2017 

Total 2017 November 

2018 

Total 2018 

     

Tall Grass &Weeds 16 1,408 27 2,518 

Rubbish 25 607 24 715 

Trash & Debris 70 1,283 93 1,621 

Other Nuisance 65 1,529 108 1,409 

Structures 18 675 33 841 

Vehicles 62 375 40 526 



  

 

 

    For the total in the Tall Grass & Weeds we only count the one notice type. 

 

  For the total in the Rubbish we only count the one notice type. 

 

  For the total in the Trash & Debris we only count the one notice type. 

 

  For the total in the Other Nuisance we count thirty-three notice types; 

  Alcoholic Beverages, Assistance to Another Officer, Beer License, Coin Amusement Devices, 

Collection/Donation Boxes-Debris, Collection/Donation Boxes-Maintenance, 

Collection/Donation Boxes-Registered, Computer Work, Courtesy Notice, Family Amusement 

License, Garage Sale-Permit Required, Graffiti, Health License, Litter, Misc. Violation, 

Nuisance Yard, Personal Storage Units (Commercial), Personal Storage Units (Residential), PM-

Sewer, PM-Utilities Required-Water, Polycarts, Pool and Billiard Halls, Sight Triangle, 

Solicitor-Permit Required, Sports Equipment, Temporary Signs, Thank You Cards, Trim Trees, 

Utilities Required-Sanitation, Zoning-Group Residential, Zoning-Merchandise For Sale, and 

Zoning-C-3.  

 

  For the total in the Structures we count thirteen notice types; 

  Address Numbers, PM-Accessory Structure, PM-Blighting Influence, PM-Boarded Dwellings, 

PM-Condemned Structure, PM-Exterior Paint, PM-Garage Doors, PM-General Exterior, PM-

Open and Unsecure, PM-Roofs & Drainage, PM-Stairways and Porches, PM-Swimming Pools, 

Spas & Hot Tubs, PM-Vacant (Dilapidated) Structures, and PM-Windows and Glazing. 

 

  For the total in the Vehicle we count six notice types; 

  Commercial Soft Surface, Handicap Parking Violation, Inoperative Vehicle, Parking in Fire 

Lane, Parking or Storing Commercial Vehicles, and Soft Surface Parking. 

 

 

 

 

   

  Mike S. Stroh, Neighborhood Services Director 

 



Public Works Administration  

Vaughn Sullivan, Director 

vsullivan@midwestcityok.org 

R. Paul Streets, Assistant Director 

                                              rstreets@midwestcityok.org 

      www.midwestcityok.org                                                8730 S.E. 15
th

 Street, 
                                                                   Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 

                                                              O: 405-739-1060 /Fax: 405-739-1090 

 

 
Memorandum 

 

To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

 

From: Vaughn K. Sullivan, Public Works Director 

 

Date: January 8, 2019 

 

Subject: Discussion and consideration of appointing Mr. Thomas Galbraith to fill the remaining term of 

Mr. Jeremy Griffin, ending March 26, 2019, on the Midwest City Park and Recreation Board, as 

Mr. Griffin has resigned, and to fill a full three-year term ending March 22, 2022. 

 

As you may know, the Park and Recreation Board was created by an act of the council in 1972. The 

purpose of the Park and Recreation Board is to foster and promote the maintenance and operation of city 

parks and recreation facilities. The board is comprised of residents of the City appointed by the Council, 

assisted by representatives of the Parks and Recreation Department. Members are appointed by the 

Mayor, approved by the City Council, and serve 3-year terms. They meet the third Wednesday of each 

month at 5:00 PM at the Community Center. 

 

On December 15, 2018, Mr. Griffin resigned from the Board due to work conflicts. Mr. Griffin 

represented Ward 3 on the Board and Councilmember Bowen has recommended to Mayor Dukes a 

replacement nominee, Mr. Galbraith. Mayor Dukes wishes to make this recommendation.  

 

Action on this item is at the discretion of the Council. 

 

 

 
Vaughn K. Sullivan 

Public Works Director 



                    
 

City Manager 
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MEMORANDUM 

 
 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 

FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
 

DATE: January 8, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of accepting a proposal from Managing Results, LLC in the 

amount of $28,934 to prepare a City Strategic Plan.  

 

 

The current Strategic Plan was prepared in 2015. Because strategic plans typically have a two to five 

year horizon, the Mayor requested staff to look into developing a new strategic plan.  

 

Coincident with this, Councilmember Byrne introduced staff to a program that has been in place in 

Oklahoma City for just over ten years. The program is commonly referred to as Managing for Results, 

although it goes by Leading for Results in Oklahoma City. The program is an integrated government 

performance management system. This program integrates planning, budgeting, employee performance, 

management and performance reporting into a single process focused on efficiently and effectively 

achieving high value results for customers.  

 

Managing for Results typically begins with the development of a Strategic Plan created by the Mayor, 

City Council, and City Manager’s office. The Strategic Plan sets the strategic direction for the city and 

provides the direction for departments in how they align their operations to help contribute to the 

priorities and goals of the elected body. 

 

The Strategic Plan is then followed by the preparation of Department Strategic Business Plans. When 

appropriate, these Department Plans align to the City’s Strategic Plan. In addition, these Department 

Plans identify City and/or Departmental issues, strategies for addressing these issues, assessing results, 

lines of business/programs and performance measures. Typically, the development of Department 

Strategic Business Plans is a multi-year process.  

 

Attached is a proposal for the development of a City Strategic Plan submitted by Managing Results, 

LLC (MR), “A Weidner Company.” The estimated cost is $28,934 as shown on page 13 of the attached 

document. Staff has also received favorable comments from Oklahoma City officials, who were familiar 

with this company’s work. Funds for this project were not included in this year’s budget. If approved, a 

supplement to the General Government Sales Tax (009) Fund will be submitted at the next Council 

meeting to fund this project.   
         

 

 

J. GUY HENSON, AICP, City Manager 































                    
 

City Manager 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK  73110 

ghenson@midwestcityok.org 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 

FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
 

DATE: January 8, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of approving a list of candidates for Municipal Judges 

consisting of Adam Bush, Gary Bachman, David Howell, and Joel Porter. 

 

 

 

Pursuant to Article V, Municipal Court, of the City Charter municipal judges are appointed by the 

Mayor from a list of candidates submitted by the Council. The Mayoral appointments are subsequently 

approved by the City Council. 

If these names are approved, they will be submitted to the Mayor, who will formally appoint them, 

subject to approval by the City Council. 

 

Action on this item is at the Council’s discretion. 
 
 

 

J. GUY HENSON, AICP, City Manager 



 

 

      

 DISCUSSION ITEMS 



ENGINEERING DIVISION 

 Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

CURRENT PLANNING DIVISION 

Kellie Gilles, Manager 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING  

Comprehensive Planner 

BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 

Christine Brakefield, Building Official 

GIS DIVISION 

Greg Hakman, GIS Coordinator 

The City of        

MIDWEST CITY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
 

Billy Harless, Community Development Director 

 

 

 

To:         Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:     Billy Harless, Community Development Director 

 

Date:      January 8, 2019 

 

Subject:  (MP-13)  Discussion and consideration of approval of the Nash’s Addition 

Minor Plat located in the SE/4 of Section 12, T-11-N, R-2-W of the Indian Meridian, 

Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 

 

Executive Summary: This minor plat is being requested to combine an existing 

subdivided lot with an unplatted lot located directly behind. The applicant would like to 

combine the two to create a larger backyard to have a large accessory building. 

Combining the two parcels would alleviate the issue of a land-locked parcel. This request 

conforms to the requirements for minor platting and staff recommends approval.  

        

Dates of Hearing:  Planning 

Commission – January 2, 2019 

City Council – January 8, 2019 
 

Ward: Ward 6, Councilmember Jeff 

Moore 

 

Owner/Applicant:  Lowell & 

Marcella Nash 

 

Land Use:  Single-family detached 

residential  
 

Size:  
The area of request has frontage 

along Rail Road of approximately 

39.44 feet and a depth of approximately 200 feet, containing an area of approximately 

0.85 acres, more or less. 
 

Zoning Districts: 

Area of Request – R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential 

North, South, East and West – R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential 
 

Municipal Code Citation: 

Subdivision Regulations 

Sec. 38-20.1.  Purpose 

The purpose of a minor plat is to provide a limited means for simple land division under 

certain  circumstances, which result in minimal lot creation. 
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In circumstances where adequate infrastructure, easements, and right-of-way already 

exist and the extension of any City facilities to serve any lot within the subdivision is not 

required, then a minor plat may be suitable as an instrument to subdivide one lot into 

three or fewer lots. 

 

In agreement with the intent of this subdivision ordinance, minor plats are intended to 

ensure that public facilities are available and will have sufficient capacity to serve the 

proposed subdivision.  Additionally, minor plats are intended to ensure the future growth 

and development of the entire city by ensuring new development does not hinder the 

provision of public facilities and services to neighborhood and nearby properties. 

 

History:   

1. The parcel on the east was subdivided as part of the Santa Fe Crossing Section Two 

Addition in 1984.  

2. This area has been zoned residential since the adoption of the 1985 zoning map. 

3. The Planning Commission recommended approval of this Minor Plat January 2, 2019. 

 

Engineer’s Comments: 

This application is a request to create two lots in an unplatted residential development.  It 

does meet current engineering requirements.  No new engineering improvements are 

required with this application. 

 

Water Supply and Distribution 

A six (6) inch public water main is located on the east side of Spur Drive in the street 

right-of-way adjacent to the east side of the area of request. 

 

Extension of the water supply to serve this property is not required as outlined in 

Municipal Code 43-32. 

           

Connection to the public water supply system for domestic service is a building permit 

requirement per Municipal Code 43-32 for any new building applications. 

 

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 

An eight (8) inch public sewer main is located on the west side of Spur Drive in the street 

right-of-way adjacent to the west side of the area of request. 

 

Public sanitary sewer line improvements are not required with this application. 

 

Connection to the public sanitary sewer system for service is a building permit 

requirement per Municipal Code 43-109 for any new building applications. 
 

Streets and Sidewalks 

Access to the area of request is available from Spur Drive, exclusively.   

 

Spur Drive is classified as a local street in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan.  Spur Drive is a 

two (2) lane, 26-foot wide asphalt concrete roadway.  Current code requires a total street 

right-of-way width of fifty feet (50) adjacent to the area of request and presently, Spur  
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Drive has fifty (50) feet of right-of-way adjacent to and parallel to the east side of the 

area of request. 

 

Right of way grants are not required with this application. 

 

Street improvements are not required with this application. 

   

Sidewalk is not required with this application. 

 

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 

Drainage across the area of request is via surface flow from the north to the south.  

Currently, the area of request is developed with a residential development.  None of the 

area of request is affected by flood zone AE (the 100-year floodplain) as shown on the 

effective Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) number 40109C0330H, dated December 12, 

2009. 

 

Drainage improvements are not required with this application. 

 

Detention improvements are not required with this application. 

 

No identified wetlands are located on or abutting the area of request as shown on the 

Choctaw quadrangle of the 1989 National Wetlands Inventory map as prepared by the 

United States Department of the Interior Fish and Wildlife Service. 

 

All future development on the proposed tracts must conform to the applicable 

requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 13, "Drainage and Flood Control." 

 

Resolution 84-20 requires that developers install and maintain sediment and/or erosion 

controls in conjunction with their construction activities.  Any proposed development 

must conform to the applicable requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 43, "Erosion 

Control."  Sediment control plans must be submitted to and approved by the city before 

any land disturbance is done on-site. The developer is responsible for the cleanup of 

sediment and other debris from drainage pipes, ditches, streets and abutting properties as 

a result of his activities. 

 

Easements and Right-of-Way 

All proposed side lot and rear lot utility easements, as well as previously dedicated utility 

and drainage easements are required to be illustrated on the minor plat.   

 

All easements and right of way dedications are to comply with Code Sections 38-41 and 

38-44. 

 

Fire Marshal’s Comments:      
The fire department has reviewed the application for MP-13. The property is required to 

meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15.  
 

Staff Comments: 

The applicant is requesting to combine an existing subdivided lot with an unplatted lot 

located directly behind. The applicant would like to combine the two to create a larger 

backyard to have a large accessory building.  
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Although the parcel would be an irregular shape, combining the two parcels would 

alleviate the issue the western parcel being landlocked. The parcel will still meet the 

street frontage requirement of 50’ at the front building line. 

 

Code requires a 17’ perimeter easement in new subdivisions. Because the lot abutting the 

west property line already has a 15’ easement, staff recommends approval of a 10’ 

perimeter easement along the west property line of Nash’s Addition. 

 

This request conforms to the requirements for minor platting and staff recommends 

approval subject to the comments within the MP-13 file. 

 

Action Required:   Approve or reject the Nash’s Addition Minor Plat for the property 

located as noted herein, subject to the staff comments and found in the January 8, 2019 

agenda packet and made a part of MP-13 file. 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Billy Harless, AICP 

Community Development Director 

 

LG 
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11 ofSheet:

DODSON - THOMPSON - MANSFIELD, PLLC

Surveying - Engineering - Earthwork

MINOR PLAT

A REPLAT OF LOT 25, BLOCK 5 IN SANTA FE CROSSING SECTION TWO

AND AN UNPLATTED TRACT OF LAND ALL IN THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST OF THE I.M.

CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

NASH'S ADDITION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lot Twenty-Five (25), in Block Five (5), of Santa Fe Crossing Section Two to Midwest City,

Oklahoma County, Oklahoma according to the plat recorded in Book 51 of Plats, Page 2

AND

A tract of land lying in the East Half (E/2) of Section Twelve (12), Township Eleven (11) North,

Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma being more particularly

described as follows:

BEGINNING at the northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter (SE/4) of said Section 12;

THENCE North 00°54'34" West, along the east line of Block 1, THE ORCHARD 2ND ADDITION

PHASE II recorded in Book 63 of Plats, Page 50 and the west line of the Northeast Quarter (NE/4)

of said Section 12, a distance of 185.94 feet to the southwest corner of Lot 1, in Block 15, of

RHAPSODY HEIGHTS ADDITION SECTION 3 according to the plat recorded in Book 36 of Plats,

Page 20;

THENCE South 84°13'30" East, along the south line of said Block 15, a distance of 89.84 feet to

the northwest corner of Lot 25, in Block 5 of SANTA FE CROSSING, SECTION TWO recorded in

Book 51 of Plats, Page 2;

THENCE South 00°39'00" East, along the west line of said Block 15, a distance of 266.67 feet to

the southwest corner of Lot 27 in said Block 5, said point also being a point on the north line of

Block 1, VILLAGE OAKS ADDITION recorded in Book 43 of Plats, Page 62;

THENCE North 84°13'30" West, along north line of said Block 1, a distance of 89.84 feet to a point

on the east line of Block 1, THE ORCHARD 2ND ADDITION PHASE II recorded in Book 63 of

Plats, Page 50;

THENCE North 00°03'09" West, along the east line of said Block 1, a distance of 80.74 feet to the

POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said described tract of land contains an area of 37,754 square feet or 0.8667 acres, more or less

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE AND DEDICATION

Know All Men By These Presents:

That the undersigned, Lowell Mark Nash and Marcella Nash, Trustees of the Nash Revocable

Trust dated August 22, 2006, hereby certify they are the owners of, and the only persons having

any right, title or interest in, and to the land shown on the annexed plat of NASH'S ADDITION and

have caused the same to be surveyed and platted, and does hereby dedicate all the streets and

easements shown hereon to the public for streets, utilities and drainage, for themselves, their

heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns forever and have caused the same to be

released from all encumbrances so that title is clear, except telephone, cable, and gas lines, any

duplicate lines, including transformers and pedestals, must be installed completely underground.

In witness whereof, the undersigned having caused this instrument to be executed this

_________ day of________________________20_____.

Nash Revocable Trust dated August 22, 2006

_______________________________

Lowell Mark Nash, Trustee

_______________________________

Marcella Nash, Trustee

STATE OF OKLAHOMA)

) SS

COUNTY OF ___________________)

Before me, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said County and State on the

_____________ day of _________________ , 20____, personally appeared

_______________________________, and ____________________________, Trustees of the

Nash Revocable Trust dated August 22, 2006 to me known to be the identical person who

executed the within and foregoing instrument and duly acknowledged to me that he executed the

same as his free and voluntary act and deed for the uses and purposes therein set forth.  Given

under my hand and seal the day and year last above written.

________________________________

My Commission Expires

________________________________

Notary Public

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK

I, __________________________, City Clerk of the City of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma,

hereby certify that I have examined the records of said City and find that all deferred payments on

unmatured installments have been paid in full and that there are no special assessment procedure

now pending against the land on the annexed plat of NASH'S ADDITION, to the City of Midwest

City, Oklahoma.

Signed by the City Clerk this _______________day of _________________, 20______.

_______________________________

City Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF PLANNING COMMISSION

I, ___________________________, Chair of the City Planning Commission, of the City of Midwest

City, Oklahoma, hereby certify that the said Planning Commission duly approved the Minor Plat of

NASH'S ADDITION, an addition to the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma,

Signed this _________ day of ________________________, 20______.

_______________________________

Chairman

COUNTY TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE

I, ____________________________, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County

Treasurer of Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, that the tax records of said county show all taxes are paid

for the year 20____, and prior years on the land shown on the annexed plat of NASH'S ADDITION to

the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, that the required statutory security has been deposited in the

offices of the County Treasurer guaranteeing payment of the current year's taxes.

In witness whereof, said County Treasurer has caused this instrument to be executed this

__________ day of _____________________, 20_____.

_______________________________

County Treasurer

ACCEPTANCE OF DEDICATION BY CITY COUNCIL

Be it resolved by the Council of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, that the dedications shown on the

annexed plat of NASH'S ADDITION to the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma are hereby accepted.

Adopted by the Council of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma,

this ___________day of ________________________ 20______.

_________________________________

City Clerk

_________________________________

Mayor

BONDED ABSTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, a duly qualified and lawfully bonded abstractor of titles in and for Oklahoma County,

State of Oklahoma, hereby certify that the records of said county show that the Title to the land shown

on the annexed plat of NASH'S ADDITION  to the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma is vested in Lowell

Mark Nash and Marcella Nash, Trustees of the Nash Revocable Trust dated August 22, 2006, on the

_________ day of __________________, 20______, and that there are no actions pending or

judgments of any nature in any court or on file with the clerk of any court in said county and state

against said land or owners thereof, that the taxes are paid for the year of 20____, and prior years, that

there are no outstanding tax sales certificates against said land and no tax deeds are issued to any

person, that there are no liens, or other encumbrances of any kind against the land included in the

Minor Plat; except, mortgages, rights-of-way, easements, and mineral conveyances of record.

In witness whereof, said Bonded Abstractor has caused this instrument to be executed this

____________ day of _____________________, 20_____.

First American Title Insurance Company

__________________________________

Authorized Officer

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Christopher L. Tripp, do hereby certify that I am a Licensed Professional Land Surveyor in the State

of Oklahoma, and that the Minor Plat of NASH'S ADDITION to the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma,

Oklahoma, consisting of one (1) sheet, represents a careful survey made under my supervision on the

__________ day of ________________________, 20______, and that monuments shown thereon exist

and their positions are correctly shown, that this survey meets the Oklahoma Minimum Standards for

the Practice of Land Surveyors as adopted by the Oklahoma State Board of Registration for

Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors.

_____________________________________

Christopher L. Tripp, PLS 1685

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )

)SS

COUNTY OF ___________________)

Before me, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said county and state on the _____________

day of ______________________ , 20_______, personally appeared ______________________ to me

known to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument, and duly acknowledged to me

that he executed the same as his free and voluntary act and deed for the uses and purposes therein set

forth.  Given under my hand and seal the day and year last above written.

________________________________

My Commission Expires

________________________________

Notary Public

NOTES

1. Easements shown hereon by specific recording information are shown hereon for

information purposes only and are not dedicated as a part of this plat.

2. The bearing of South 00°39'00" East along the west line of Block 5 in SANTA FE

CROSSING SECTION 2 according to the plat recorded in Book 51 of Plats, Page 2 and as

shown hereon was used as the basis of bearings for this survey.
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ENGINEERING DIVISION 

 Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

CURRENT PLANNING DIVISION 

Kellie Gilles, Manager 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING  

Comprehensive Planner 

BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 

 Christine Brakefield, Building Official 

GIS DIVISION 

Greg Hakman, GIS Coordinator 

The City of        

MIDWEST CITY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
 

Billy Harless, Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

To:         Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:     Billy Harless, Community Development Director 

 

Date:      January 8, 2019 

 

Subject:  (PC – 1983) Public hearing with discussion and consideration of approval of an 

ordinance redistricting from R-6, Single Family Detached Residential to a Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) governed by the R-6, Single Family Detached Residential District, 

for the property described as a part of the NE/4 of Section 1, T-11-N, R-2-W, located in 

the 500 block of St. Paul Avenue. 

 

Executive Summary: This PUD is being requested in order to create a single family 

residential subdivision. The PUD is governed by the R-6, Single Family Detached 

Residential zoning district. The applicant and engineer brought a preliminary plat before 

the Planning Commission and City Council in the Fall of 2018, however, that application 

was withdrawn by the applicant due to concerns regarding drainage, water quality, 

density and the street length. This PUD shows thirty-five (35) single family residential 

lots. The original plat submitted in 2018 included thirty-eight (38) lots. While the Zoning 

Ordinance does not place restrictions on the lengths of residential cul-de-sac streets, the 

Subdivision Ordinance requires that any cul-de-sacs over 1,000 feet in length be zoned as 

a PUD. The applicant is not requesting any variances to any of the requirements of the 

Zoning Ordinance. Due to concerns brought up during the preliminary plat hearing in 

2018, the applicant has submitted information regarding drainage and environmental 

concerns that were brought up with the preliminary plat hearing. That information is 

highlighted in the engineering 

portion of the staff report. Staff 

recommends approval of the request 

to rezone to a PUD. 

 

Dates of Hearing:  Planning 

Commission – January 2, 2019 

City Council – January 8, 2019 

 

Council Ward: Ward 2, 

Councilmember Pat Byrne                                                 

 

Owner:  Walter and Sara Ballew 

 

Applicant: Frank McLendon, MLB 

Homes 

 

Engineer: Derek Jackson 
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PC-1983 

 

Proposed Use:  35 single family residential lots 

 

Size:  
The area of request has a frontage along Saint Paul Avenue of approximately 100 ft. and 

contains an area of approximately 8.25 acres. 

 

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 

Area of Request – LDR, Low Density Residential 

North, South, East and West – LDR, Low Density Residential 

 

Zoning Districts: 

Area of Request – R-6, Single Family Detached Residential  

North, South, East and West – R-6, Single Family Detached Residential 

 

Land Use:   

Area of Request – vacant 

North, South and East – single family residences 

 

Comprehensive Plan Citation: 

 Single-Family Detached (SFD) Land Use 

This use is representative of traditional, single-family detached dwelling units. Of the 

residential categories, it is recommended that single-family detached land use continues 

to account for the largest percentage. The areas designated for single-family detached 

residential land use are generally not adjacent to incompatible land uses, and are in 

proximity to existing single-family residential land use. The City should strive for a range 

of lot sizes to develop, and should reinforce this by providing a choice of several single-

family zoning districts with various lot sizes in the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Municipal Code Citation: 

2.25 PUD, Planned Unit Development 

2.25.1 General Provisions 

The planned unit development, herein referred to as PUD, is a special zoning district 

category that provides an alternate approach to conventional land use controls to produce 

unique, creative, progressive, or quality land developments.  

The PUD may be used for particular tracts or parcels of land that are under common 

ownership and are to be developed as one unit according to a master development plan.  

The PUD is subject to special review procedures within the PUD application and review 

and once approved by the City Council it becomes a special zoning classification for the 

property it represents.  

 

2.25.2 Intent and Purpose 

The intent and purpose of the PUD provisions are as follows: 

(A) Innovative land development 

Encourage innovative land development while maintaining appropriate 

limitations on the character and intensity of use, assuring compatibility with 

adjoining and proximate properties, and following the guidelines of the 

comprehensive plan.  

(B) Flexibility within developments 

Permit flexibility within the development to maximize the unique physical 

features of the particular site. 
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(C) Efficient use of land 

Encourage efficient use of land, facilitate economic arrangements of buildings 

and circulation  

systems, and encourage diversified living environments and land uses.  

(D) Function, design and diversity 

Achieve a continuity of function and design within the development and 

encourage diversified living environments and land uses.  

(E) Modifications to development requirements 

Provide a vehicle for negotiating modifications in standard development 

requirements in order to both encourage innovative development and protect 

the health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 

History:   

1.  This property has been zoned residentially since the adoption of the 1985 Zoning 

Map and has never been platted. 

2. (PC-1960) A preliminary plat for the area of request was withdrawn at the 

September 11, 2018 City Council meeting. 

3. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Windsor Meadows PUD 

January 2, 2019. 

 

Staff Comments: 

Engineer’s Report: 

Water Supply and Distribution   

A six (6) inch public water main is located on the west side of Saint Paul Avenue in the 

street right-of-way extending along the east side of the area of request. 

 

The applicant proposes to construct a public water line extension along the north side of 

the area of request in the proposed S.E. 5th Street right of way. 

 

Improvement plans for the water line extension must be prepared by a registered 

professional engineer and be submitted to staff for plan review and approval. 

 

Extension of the water supply to serve this property is required as outlined in Municipal 

Code 43-32. 

           

Connection to the public water supply system for domestic service is a building permit 

requirement per Municipal Code 43-32 for all new buildings. 

 

Sanitary Sewer Collection and Disposal   

Section 38-18 in the Subdivision Regulations requires all existing and proposed public 

sanitary sewer mains be reflected on the preliminary plat.   

 

An eight (8) inch public sewer main is located in a dedicated utility easement along the 

west side of the area of request. 

 

The applicant proposes to construct a public sewer line extension along the south side of 

the area of request in the proposed S.E. 5th Street right of way. 

 

Improvement plans for the sewer line extension must be prepared by a registered 

professional engineer and be submitted to staff for plan review and approval. 
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Connection to the public sanitary sewer system for domestic service is a building permit 

requirement per Municipal Code Chapter 43-109 for all lots. 

 

Streets and Sidewalks   

Section 38-18 in the Subdivision Regulations requires all existing and proposed public 

streets and sidewalks be reflected on the preliminary plat.   

 

Access to the area of request is available from Saint Paul Avenue.  Saint Paul Avenue is 

classified as a collector street in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan.  Saint Paul Avenue is a 

two (2) lane, 32-foot wide, curbed, asphalt concrete roadways.  Current code requires a 

total street right-of-way width of sixty (60) feet for collector roads and presently, Saint 

Paul Avenue has sixty (60) feet of right-of-way adjacent to and parallel to the east side of 

the area of request. 

 

The applicant proposes to construct a public local street, S.E. 5th Street, with sidewalks 

to service the area of request.  The proposed street will include at least two roundabouts 

that will serve as traffic calming features as well as landscaping improvements for the 

roadway. 

 

Improvement plans for the street and sidewalks must be prepared by a registered 

professional engineer and be submitted to staff for plan review and approval. 

 

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, ODEQ Water Sampling, and Sediment Control 

Drainage across the area of request is from the east to the west to the south via overland 

flow.  Currently, the area of request is undeveloped.  Drainage from the site continues 

west, joining an unimproved channel that drains southwest, eventually draining into 

Soldier Creek, Tributary 6. 

 

The applicant proposes multiple on-site detention ponds to service the area of request.  

The applicant, in lieu of building just one pond at the bottom of the hill serving the whole 

subdivision, is proposing multiple drainage features that will slow water throughout the 

site, slowing water flow down along the cul de sac east to the west.  The proposed 

roundabouts will have detention built into them, serving as both traffic calming devices 

and water collection systems.  

 

The drainage proposal will not cause backwater onto the properties uphill from the area 

and it will not increase water discharge downhill from the area.  

 

The initial drainage report is attached to this packet and has been reviewed by both the 

City’s third party consultant and the city engineer.  This initial submittal meets with the 

city’s current code requirements for detention. 

 

Improvement plans for the detention ponds and any accompanying drainage structures 

must be prepared by a registered professional engineer and be submitted to staff for plan 

review and approval.  

 

As noted, during the previous meeting concerning the area of request, an identified 

wetland is located on the area of request as shown on the Choctaw quadrangle of the 

National Wetlands Inventory map as prepared by the United States Department of the 

Interior Fish and Wildlife Service.  The pond is a provisional wetland, therefore when it  
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is holding water, it is identified on the accompanying map.  The applicant was tasked 

with getting clearance from the Oklahoma Department of Wildlife Conservation to 

eliminate the pond and providing that documentation to city staff prior to the issuance of 

any permits.  The accompanying report shows that this review has been completed and 

the demolition of the pond is allowed as per the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and 

Department of Wildlife Conservation statutes. 

 

Also noted during the previous Planning Commission meeting, residents adjacent to the 

area of request voiced concerns about the cleanliness of the pond water, asking for it to 

be tested for toxicity.  The water was tested for pathogens.  O.D.E.Q., who has 

jurisdiction over testing this type of body of water, issued no pond reclamation orders 

mandating any treatments to the pond. 

 

The area of request is not affected by flood zone AE (the 100-year floodplain) as shown 

on the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) number 40109C0330H, dated 

December 12, 2009. 

 

All future development on the proposed tracts must conform to the applicable 

requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 13, "Drainage and Flood Control." 

 

Resolution 84-20 requires that developers install and maintain sediment and/or erosion 

controls in conjunction with their construction activities.  Any proposed development 

must conform to the applicable requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 43, "Erosion 

Control."  Sediment control plans must be submitted to and approved by the city before 

any land disturbance is done on-site. The developer is responsible for the cleanup of 

sediment and other debris from drainage pipes, ditches, streets and abutting properties as 

a result of his activities. 

 

Easements and Right-of-Way.  

The required easements and existing and proposed right of way for the area of request 

must be illustrated on the preliminary plat and will be dedicated to the city when the final 

plat is filed. 

 

All easements and right of way dedications are to comply with Code Sections 38-41 and 

38-44. 

 

Fire Marshal’s Report: 

The Fire Department has reviewed this request. The property is required to meet and 

maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances, Section 15. The cul-de-sac for 

this development shall be a minimum of 96’-0” diameter with a street clear width 

minimum of 26’-0”.  

 
Plan Review Comments: 

The intention of the proposed Windsor Meadows PUD is to create a thirty-four (34) 

home, single family residential subdivision.  There is one (1) additional lot intended for 

detention. 

 

The proposed PUD is governed by the R-6, Single Family Detached Residential Zoning 

District. No other uses are proposed within this request.  
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The Master Development Plan shows one proposed access point from St. Paul Avenue. 

 

No variances to the Zoning Ordinance are requested within this PUD. If approved, the 

applicant plans to submit an application for a preliminary plat. The Subdivision  

Regulations do require that cul-de-sacs that are proposed to exceed 1,000’ in length shall 

only be approved in subdivisions zoned as a PUD. The proposed cul-de-sac as shown on 

the Master Development Plan is 1,186.13’.  

 

The length of the cul-de-sac is the reason that this PUD is being requested.  The PUD 

Design Statement states that at least one (1) traffic calming island will be constructed 

within the right-of-way. The Subdivision Regulations require at least one island for every 

500’ of street length. Staff will require a minimum of two (2) traffic calming islands to be 

constructed in the right-of-way of the proposed street.  

 

Regarding the street length, staff has studied the abutting subdivisions, Kanaly’s 

Homeland 2
nd

 Addition (SE 4
th

 Street) and Homeland Addition (SE 6
th

 Street). SE 4
th

 

Street is approximately 1,318’ in length and serves 34 lots. SE 6
th

 Street is approximately 

1,320’ in length and serves 32 lots. The proposed street of SE 5
th

 in this PUD is shorter 

than SE 4
th

 and SE 6
th

 and provides an adequate turn-around at the end of the cul-de-sac. 

Due to the current configuration of this lot, a reasonable way to subdivide and develop 

the lot is with a cul-de-sac street running down the center.  

 

As no variances are being requested, development must meet all requirements of the 

Zoning Ordinance including but not limited to 85% masonry materials, 25’ front setback, 

7’ side setbacks, 20’ rear setbacks, 40% maximum coverage, 2 trees in each front yard 

and J-Drives or setback garages for 70% of the lots. The proposed lots have a width 

between 56’ and 60’ and a depth between 123’ and 153’. The proposed lot sizes exceed 

the minimum requirement for the R-6, Single Family Zoning District.  

 

During pre-application meetings between staff and the applicant prior to the initial 

preliminary plat hearing in 2018, there were many discussions about how to proceed with 

the 33’ strip of land that abuts Saint Paul Ave. on the far north side of the area of request. 

The lot was created many years ago and is non-conforming to current codes due to it 

being a flag shape. Section 38-48.5(A) of the Subdivision Regulations requires that lots 

be shaped regularly and prohibits flag shaped lots. Prior to submission of the withdrawn 

preliminary plat application, the applicant met with the property owner abutting the 33’ 

strip to the south. The applicant and property owner have agreed to deed the 33’ strip of 

land to the abutting property owner contingent upon approval of this preliminary plat. 

They submitted a letter signed by both parties detailing the agreement. If this zoning is 

approved and a new preliminary plat application is submitted, this agreement must be 

renewed and submitted as part of the application. Staff met with an Escrow Assistant at 

American Eagle Title on June 20, 2018 and confirmed that the transfer of property would 

be allowed by quit claim deed. 

 

Due to concerns from the surrounding neighbors when the initial preliminary plat was 

heard by the Planning Commission and City Council, staff recommended that the 

applicant meet with the neighbors prior to the hearings for this PUD.  
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During the Planning Commission meeting on January 2, 2019, a resident of St. Paul 

Avenue brought up several concerns regarding the length of the cul-de-sac, the density, 

increased traffic on St. Paul and drainage. Staff explained that the PUD zoning 

designation is intended to provide flexibility in design. The Subdivision Regulations do 

allow for cul-de-sacs to exceed 1,000’ in length if approved through a PUD. The current 

configuration of the lot does not allow for much flexibility in design, other than to have a 

cul-de-sac down the middle.  

 

Regarding the density, the Master Development Plan lists a density of 4.242 lots per acre 

with 35 lots and a total of 8.25 acres. The strip of land that will be deeded to the owner of 

the property at 521 St. Paul Avenue is approximately .17 acres. With this area excluded, 

the approximate area will be 8.08 acres. 35 lots / 8.08 acres = 4.33 lots per acre.  

 

In comparison, the proposed Windsor Meadows PUD is more dense than the subdivisions 

on 4
th

 and 6
th

 streets. The lots are comparable in width but the lots on 4
th

 and 6
th

 are 

deeper than the proposed Windsor Meadows lots, however, the Windsor Meadows lots do 

exceed the depth requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance requires 

a minimum of 100’ of depth for single family residential lots. The lots on the north side 

of the development are approximately 153’ deep and the lots on the south side are 

approximately 123’ deep.  

 

If this PUD is approved, the applicant may begin the process for submitting a preliminary 

plat application. The first step in this process is a pre-application meeting with staff. It 

was stated during the Planning Commission meeting that the density may decrease during 

preparation of a preliminary plat to account for necessary drainage and detention as well 

as the roundabout as noted in the engineering portion of this report.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Action Required: Approve or reject the ordinance to redistrict to Planned Unit 

Development for the property as noted herein, subject to the staff comments and 

recommendations as found in the January 8, 2019 agenda packet and made a part of PC-

1983 file.  

 

 

____________________________ 

Billy Harless, AICP 

Community Development Director 

 

KG 
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SECTION 1.0       INTRODUCTION 
 
The Planned Unit Development (PUD) of Windsor Meadows, consisting of 8.25 acres is located 
within the NE/4 of Section 1, Township 11N, Range 2W, of the Indian Meridian, Midwest City, 
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. The subject property is generally located in the 500 block of St. 
Paul Avenue.  
 
SECTION 2.0  LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
A part of the N/2 of the N/2 of the SW/4 of the NE/4 of Section 1. Township 11 North Range 2 
West of the Indian Meridian more particularly described as follows; Commencing at the 
Southeast Corner of said N/2 thence N89°27'29"W and along the South line of said N/2 a 
distance of 30.00 feet: thence due North and parallel to the East line of said N/2 a distance of 
328.64 to the Point of Beginning; thence N89°34'27"W a distance of  and parallel with the South 
line of said SW/4 a distance of 1,289.25; thence S0°01'30"E a distance of 326.03 feet; thence 
S89°27'29"E along the North line of the SE/4 of said SW/4 a distance of 1,049.13 feet; thence 
due north and parallel to said East Line a distance of 122.85 feet: thence S89°27'29"E a distance 
of 215.00 feet:; thence  S44°43’45”E a distance  of 35.52 feet; thence due North and parallel to 
the East line of said N/2 a distance of 100.00 feet; thence S45º16’15”W a distance of 35.19 feet; 
thence N89°27'29"W a distance of 215 feet ; thence due North and parallel to the East line of 
said N/2  a distance of 122.30 feet; thence S89º34’27”E a distance of 240.00 feet; thence due 
North and parallel to the East line of said N/2  a distance of 33.00 feet to the Point of Beginning 
and containing 8.25 Acres More or Less. 
 
SECTION 3.0  OWNER/DEVELOPER 
 
The owner of this property described in Section 2.0 is Walter and Sara Ballew Legacy Wealth 
Trust. The developer of the property is Frank McLendon with Windsor Development, LLC. 
 
SECTION 4.0  SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 
 
The subject property is presently undeveloped.  Surrounding properties are zoned and used for: 
 
North:  R-6 District and used for  Single Family Residential*. 
East:    R-6 District and used for  Single Family Residential*. 
South: R-6 District and used for  Single Family Residential 
West: R-6 District and used for   Single Family Residential* 
 
SECTION 5.0   PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS 
 
The elevation of the subject property is 1,247' to 1,269' MSE and the slope analysis reveals the 
stormwater runoff drains from the northeast to the southwest. The subject property has mostly 
sandy loam soils characteristics and the tree cover on the property is approximately 46%.  This 
property is in the Soldier Creek drainage basin and there are 8.25 acres in the drainage area. 
None of the property is in the FEMA 100 year flood plain. 
 



 

  

 
SECTION 6.0  CONCEPT 
 
The concept for this PUD is R-6 Single Family Residential. The subdivision will be marketed to 
residents 55 years of age and older with a minimum house size of 1,400 s.f. 
 
SECTION 6.1 DEVELOPMENT AND SUBDIVISION VARIATIONS 
 
The following represents variations to the R-6 single Family Residential base zoning district or 
other sections of the Midwest City Zoning Ordinance:   
 
Maximum Street Length: 1,000 feet 
Requested Street Length: 1,180 feet 
 
 
SECTION 7.0  SERVICE AVAILABILITY   
 
 
7.1 STREETS 
 
The nearest street to the north is SE 4th Street which has a right-of-way width of 30 feet and is 
not paved to city standards. The nearest street to the east is St. Paul Avenue which has a right-of-
way width of 50' and is paved to local street standards. The nearest street to the south is SE 6th 
Street which has a right-of-way width of 50 feet and is paved to local street standards.  
 
Proposed streets in this Planned Unit Development shall be public and shall have right-of-way 
widths of fifty feet (50') and at least one traffic calming island constructed within the street right-
of-way. 
 
7.2 SANITARY SEWER   
 
Sanitary sewer facilities for this property are available. An eight inch sanitary sewer main is 
located along the east right-of-way of St. Paul Avenue and along the west property line. 
 
7.3 WATER  
 
Water facilities for this property are available. An eight inch (8") water main is located along the 
west right-of-way of St Paul Avenue. Extension of the waterline to serve all of the proposed lots 
within the subdivision 
 
7.4 FIRE PROTECTION 
 
The nearest fire station to this property is located at 7316 SE 15th Street approximately 2.0 miles 
to the southwest.  
 
 
 
 



 

  

7.5  GAS SERVICE, ELECTRICAL SERVICE, AND TELEPHONE SERVICE 
 
Proper coordination with the various utility companies will be made in conjunction with this 
development. 
 
7.6   DRAINAGE 
 
The property within this Planned Unit Development is not within a FEMA 100 year flood plain 
and the location of the FEMA 100 year flood plain is delineated on the Preliminary Plat. A 
detention pond to manage stormwater runoff is proposed. 
 
9.0 USE AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
 
The use and development regulations of the R-6 Single Family Residential District shall 
govern this PUD, except as herein modified, including accessory uses subject to their appropriate 
conditions and review procedures for public hearings where applicable, unless otherwise noted 
herein. 
 
9.1   FAÇADE REGULATIONS 
 
Exterior building wall finish on all structures, exclusive of windows and doors, shall consist of a 
minimum 85% brick veneer, rock or stone masonry.  
 
9.2 LANDSCAPING REGULATIONS 
 
The subject parcel shall meet all requirements of the City of Midwest City’s Landscaping 
Ordinance in place at the time of development.   
 
9.3  PLATTING REGULATIONS 
 
All land within this PUD shall be contained within a final plat and any plat dedications shall be 
approved by the City Council prior to any occupancy permits being issued in the PUD. 
 
9.4 DRAINAGE REGULATIONS 
 
Development of this parcel will comply with the Midwest City Municipal Code.  
 
9.5 ACCESS REGULATIONS 
 
There shall be one access point from S. St Paul Avenue in this PUD. 
 
Streets or driveways on adjacent property within 200 feet of this Planned Unit Development shall 
be shown on the Master Development Plan.  
 
Sidewalks shall be constructed within the subdivision at the time of home building activity in 
order to avoid damage to the sidewalk during home building. 
 
 



 

  

 
9.6   SETBACK REGULATIONS 
 
Unless modified herein, side yard requirements in this PUD shall be seven feet (7') as required 
by the subdivision requlations.  
 
9.8 COMMON AREAS 
 
Maintenance of all common areas in the development and maintenance of all amenities located 
within the common areas shall be the responsibility of the homeowner association (HOMA). No 
structures, storage of material, grading, fill, or other obstructions, including fences, either 
temporary or permanent, that shall cause a blockage of flow or an adverse effect on the 
functioning of the storm water facility, shall be placed within the common areas intended for the 
use of conveyance of storm water, and/or drainage easements shown.  Certain amenities such as, 
but not limited to, walks, benches, piers, and docks, shall be permitted if installed in a manner to 
meet the requirements specified above.  
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PC-1983 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE RECLASSIFYING THE ZONING DISTRICT OF THE PROPERTY 

DESCRIBED IN THIS ORDINANCE TO PUD, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, 

AND DIRECTING AMENDMENT OF THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP TO 

REFLECT THE RECLASSIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY’S ZONING DISTRICT; 

AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA: 

ORDINANCE 

SECTION 1. That the zoning district of the following described property is hereby reclassified 

to PUD, Planned Unit Development, subject to the conditions contained in the PC-1983 file, and 

that the official Zoning District Map shall be amended to reflect the reclassification of the prop-

erty’s zoning district as specified in this ordinance: 

A part of the N/2 of the N/2 of the SW/4 of the NE/4 of Section 1, Township 11 North 

Range 2 West of the Indian Meridian more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the Southeast Corner of said N/2 thence N89°27’29”W and along the 

South line of said N/2 a distance of 30.00 feet: thence due North and parallel to the East 

line of said N/2 a distance of 328.64 to the Point of Beginning;  

Thence N89°34’27”W a distance of and parallel with the South line of said SW/4 a dis-

tance of 1,289.25; 

Thence S0°01’30”E a distance of 326.03 feet;  

Thence S89°27’29”E along the North line of the SE/4 of said SW/4 a distance of 

1,049.13 feet;  

Thence due north and parallel to said East line a distance of 122.85 feet; 

Thence S89°27’29”E a distance of 215.00 feet;  

Thence S44°43’45”E a distance of 35.52 feet;  

Thence due North and parallel to the East line of said N/2 a distance of 100.00 feet;  

Thence S45°16’15”W a distance of 35.19 feet;  

Thence N89°27’29”W a distance of 215 feet;  

Thence due North and parallel to the East line of said N/2 a distance of 122.30 feet;  

Thence S89°34’27”E a distance of 240 feet; 

Thence due North and parallel to the East line of said N/2 a distance of 33 feet to the 

Point of Beginning and containing 8.25 acres more or less. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are here-

by repealed. 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, sentence, clause or portion of this ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining por-

tions of the ordinance. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, 

on the _______ day of _______________________, 2019. 

THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLA-

HOMA 

________________________________ 

MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk 

APPROVED as to form and legality this _______ day of __________________, 2019. 

__________________________________ 

HEATHER POOLE, City Attorney 



 

City of Midwest City Police Department 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK 73110 

Office 405.739.1320 

Fax 405.739.1398 

www.MidwestCityOK.org 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Brandon Clabes, Chief of Police 

 

DATE:  January 08, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of appointing a Ward 5 and Ward 6 citizen to the Animal 

Ordinance Review Committee established at the December 11, 2018 City Council 

meeting to review and make recommendations regarding Midwest City animal 

ordinances relating to Chapter 8 – Animals and Fowl including Articles I through IX. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The Animal Ordinance Review Committee was established at the December 11, 2018 City Council 

meeting with Councilmembers Christine Allen, Jeff Moore and Españiola Bowen; and citizens from 

each ward. Appointees from Wards 1, 2, 3, and 4 were approved which included Amy Otto, Lindsey 

Hutchinson, Kim Templeman, and Sydni Boyd.  

 

The Committee would review Chapter 8 portion of the Midwest City ordinances (The list is attached.) 

and present their suggestions to the full Council at the March 12, 2019 Council meeting for 

consideration.  

 

Action is at the discretion of the council. 

 

 

Respectfully, 

 
Brandon Clabes 

Chief of Police 
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 Chapter 8 - ANIMALS AND FOWL  

 

o ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

 Sec. 8-1. - Cruelty to animals; abandonment; etc.  

 Sec. 8-2. - Definitions.  

 Sec. 8-3. - Transfer of pets and small animals.  

 Sec. 8-4. - Bird sanctuary—Designated.  

 Sec. 8-5. - Acts prohibited; exception.  

 Sec. 8-6. - Notice of dead and found animals.  

 Sec. 8-7. - Duty to report injury or death of animals hit by automobiles.  

 Sec. 8-8. - Diseased and injured animals.  

 Sec. 8-9. - Inspection authorized.  

 Sec. 8-10. - Penalty for violation.  

 Secs. 8-11—8-20. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE II. - IMPOUNDMENT  

 Sec. 8-21. - Stock pound master in charge of impounding animals; dogs excepted.  

 Sec. 8-22. - Disposition of impounded animals by public sale.  

 Sec. 8-23. - Notice of sale of impounded animals.  

 Sec. 8-24. - Redemption of impounded animals.  

 Sec. 8-25. - Monthly report by stock pound master.  

 Sec. 8-26. - Fees and charges.  

 Sec. 8-27. - Obstruction of impounding of animals prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-28. - Breaking open pound prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-29. - Penalty for violation.  

 Secs. 8-30—8-40. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE III. - DOMESTIC ANIMALS OTHER THAN DOGS AND CATS  

 

 DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

 Sec. 8-41. - Applicability.  

 Sec. 8-42. - Area, enclosure, location for large animals, except swine.  

 Sec. 8-43. - Area, enclosure, location for small animals, except dogs and 

cats.  

 Sec. 8-44. - Requirements for fences.  

 Sec. 8-45. - Sanitation standards generally.  

 Sec. 8-46. - Sanitation standards for pigeons.  

 Sec. 8-47. - Swine keeping.  

 Sec. 8-48. - Running at large prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-49. - Tethering on right-of-way.  

 Sec. 8-50. - Violations.  

 Secs. 8-51—8-65. - Reserved. 
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 DIVISION 2. - PERMIT  

 Sec. 8-66. - Required; application generally.  

 Sec. 8-67. - Contents of permit application.  

 Sec. 8-68. - Permit application to show compliance.  

 Sec. 8-69. - Health approval prerequisite.  

 Sec. 8-70. - Reserved.  

 Sec. 8-71. - Permits to keep pigeons.  

 Sec. 8-72. - Medical laboratories, educational institutions, veterinary 

hospitals exempted from distance requirements.  

 Sec. 8-73. - Preexisting nonconforming commercial establishments.  

 Sec. 8-74. - Violations.  

 Secs. 8-75—8-85. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE IV. - DOGS  

 Sec. 8-86. - Authority to seize, impound dog.  

 Sec. 8-87. - Running at large.  

 Sec. 8-88. - Failure to surrender violating dogs.  

 Sec. 8-89. - Tethering of dogs.  

 Sec. 8-90. - Reserved.  

 Sec. 8-91. - Nuisance dogs prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-92. - When a dog constitutes a nuisance.  

 Sec. 8-93. - Procedure for nuisance dogs.  

 Sec. 8-94. - Reclaiming dogs.  

 Sec. 8-95. - Unreclaimed dogs.  

 Sec. 8-96. - Animal waste.  

 Sec. 8-97. - Noisy dogs; complaints.  

 Sec. 8-98. - Violations.  

 Secs. 8-99—8-110. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE V. - CATS  

 Sec. 8-111. - Authority to seize, impound cats.  

 Sec. 8-112. - Failure to surrender violating cats.  

 Sec. 8-113. - Tethering of cats.  

 Sec. 8-114. - Reserved.  

 Sec. 8-115. - When cat constitutes a nuisance.  

 Sec. 8-116. - Nuisance cats prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-117. - Procedure for nuisance cats.  

 Sec. 8-118. - Reclaiming cats.  

 Sec. 8-119. - Unreclaimed cats.  

 Sec. 8-120. - Animal waste.  

 Sec. 8-121. - Noisy cats; complaints.  

 Sec. 8-122. - Isolation.  

 Sec. 8-123. - Release from pound.  

 Sec. 8-124. - Violations.  

 Secs. 8-125—8-130. - Reserved.
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o ARTICLE VI. - VACCINATION AND REGISTRATION  

 Sec. 8-131. - Rabies vaccination, registration, license fee required.  

 Sec. 8-132. - Certification of rabies vaccination.  

 Sec. 8-133. - Frequency of rabies vaccination.  

 Sec. 8-134. - Exemption for transient dogs or cats.  

 Sec. 8-135. - Veterinarian's records.  

 Sec. 8-136. - License fees; term.  

 Sec. 8-137. - Violations and penalties.  

 Secs. 8-138—8-150. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE VII. - RABIES REGULATIONS  

 Sec. 8-151. - Proclamation of rabies epidemic.  

 Sec. 8-152. - Procedure when rabies suspected.  

 Secs. 8-153—8-159. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE VIII. - ANIMAL WELFARE SHELTER OPERATION  

 Sec. 8-160. - Animal welfare shelter created.  

 Sec. 8-161. - Authorization to contract.  

 Sec. 8-162. - Fees.  

 Secs. 8-163—8-170. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE IX. - ANIMALS—KEEPING PROHIBITED  

 Sec. 8-171. - Animals—Keeping prohibited.  

 Secs. 8-172—8-180. - Reserved.  

 

o ARTICLE X. - VICIOUS ANIMALS  

 Sec. 8-181. - Vicious animals prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-182. - Attacks prohibited.  

 Sec. 8-183. - Summons and complaint.  

 Sec. 8-184. - Impoundment.  

 Sec. 8-185. - Hearing.  

 Sec. 8-186. - Determination.  

 Sec. 8-187. - Violation and penalties.  
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MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and Council 

 

FROM:  J. Guy Henson, City Manager 

 

DATE:  January 8, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of 1) establishing an Ad-Hoc Ordinance 

Oversight Council Committee to oversee ordinance updates; and 2) appoint 

three members of the City Council. 
 

 

As you may recall, this item was on the November 27
th

 City Council Agenda for consideration. 

No action was taken at that time and it was requested to return to the agenda on January 8, 2019.  

 

Mayor Dukes is requesting this item for the purpose of receiving updates on ordinance change 

suggestions. He anticipates quarterly meetings. He is recommending Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, and 

himself.  

 

Action is at the Council’s discretion.  

 

 

 

 

 

J. GUY HENSON 

City Manager 





Estimate of Effect of Changing Fines for Possession of Marijuana  

(Midwest City Ordinances 1-15 and 28-133) 

Based Upon the 207 Citations Issued in FY 2017-2018 

        

Calculations based upon Current Fines and Fees        

 Fine             $800     

 Fees
1
             $266     

  Total Fees and Fines per Citation     $1,066     

        

  Potential Assessments    $220,662   

  Judicial Reduction of Fines 
2
    -$11,386   

  Actual Payments    $209,276  $209,276 

        

Projection of Future Fines and Fees        

 Average Fine
3
             $130   

 Fees              $266     

  Total Fees and Fines per Citation         $396     

        

  Potential Future Assessments     $81,972   

  Estimated Judicial Reduction in Proposed Fines     -$4,099   

  Estimated Payments      $77,873    $77,873 

        

Estimated Annual Effect on Revenue       -$131,403 

        

                                                           
1
 Breakdown of Fees       

 Fees Payable to the State of Oklahoma       

  Oklahoma Board of Narcotics Fee        $5   

  Oklahoma Bureau of Investigation Fee   $150   

  Automated Fingerprint Identification System Fee    $10   

  Council on Law Enforcement Education and Training Fee   $10   

  Forensic Fee           $10   

  Subtotal of State Fees      $185 

 Fees Retained by the City of Midwest City       

  Police Fee          $6   

  Technology Fee        $45   

  Court Costs         $30   

  Subtotal of City Fees        $81 

  Total Fees       $266 

 
2
 Approximately 5%. 

 
3
 Using citations consisting of 90% first and second time offenders and 10% third time  

   offenders.  
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ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 3121, 

CHAPTER 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, SECTION 1-15 AND MUNICIPAL CODE 3005, 

CHAPTER 28, OFFENSES—MISCELLANEOUS, ARTICLE VIII, DANGEROUS 

DRUGS, SECTION 28-133; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA: 

 

ORDINANCE 

 

SECTION 1. The Midwest City Municipal Code 3121, Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 
1-15 is hereby amended to read as follows:   

Sec. 1-15. - Specific penalty for violations of Code.  

The following table is adopted with regard to specific violations of this Code, including the maximum 

fine and imprisonment for each specific offense noted:  

Chapter Section  Maximum Fine  Imprisonment  

5 5-42(b)  $200.00  10 days  

 

5-51  1,000.00  60 days  

 

5-90  200.00  

 

 

5-90.1(a)  1,000.00  90 days  

 

5-91  200.00  

 

24 24-81(a)  300.00  30 days  

 

24-81(b)  200.00  

 

 

24-83  600.00  60 days  

 

24-84  300.00  

 

 

24-88  800.00  60 days  



  1 

  2 

  3 

  4 

  5 

  6 

  7 

  8 

  9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

 

 2 

 

24-88.1  600.00  60 days  

 

24-88.2(c)(1)  800.00  60 days  

 

24-88.2(c)(2)  200.00  

 

 

24-89  300.00  30 days  

 

24-90  600.00  60 days  

 

24-143  200.00  

 

 

24-145  300.00  30 days  

28 28-8  800.00  60 days  

 

28-9  800.00  60 days  

 

28-25  100.00  30 days  

 

28-40  300.00  30 days  

 

28-41  750.00  60 days  

 

28-43  600.00  60 days  

 

28-54  300.00  30 days  

 

28-57  600.00  60 days  

 

28-57.1  600.00  60 days  

 

28-58  450.00  30 days  

 

28-60  450.00  30 days  

 

28-61  450.00  30 days  

 

28-62  450.00  30 days  
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28-75  600.00  60 days  

 

28-86  750.00  60 days  

 

28-86.1  750.00  60 days  

 

28-90  750.00  60 days  

 

28-90.1  600.00  60 days  

 

28-104  750.00  60 days  

 

28-122  500.00  30 days  

 

28-123  500.00  30 days  

 

28-124  750.00  60 days  

 

28-125  300.00  30 days  

 

28-127  500.00  60 days  

 

28-128  800.00  60 days  

 

28-133(a)  800.00  60 days  

 

28-133(b)(3) 

 

First and Second Offenses 

 

Third and Subsequent Offenses 

 

 

100.00 

 

400.00 

 

 

 

 

28-133 (b)(4)  

 

First and Second Offenses 

 

Third and Subsequent Offenses 

 

 

100.00 

 

800.00 

 

10 days 

 

60 days 

  

SECTION 2. The Midwest City Municipal Code 3005, Chapter 28, Offenses—Miscellaneous, 
Article VIII, Dangerous Drugs, Section 28-133 is hereby amended to read as follows:   
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Sec. 28-133. - Penalty.  

(a) Any person who violates any provision of this article shall,  upon conviction, and 

is convicted after trial, pleads of guilty, or enters a plea of nolo contendere, shall be 

punished by a fine or imprisonment in accordance with section 1-15 of this Code, 

plus costs, or by both such fine and imprisonment, and such punishment may be run 

consecutively for each separate offense. 

(b) Exceptions: 

1. Any person who presents a valid, unexpired, license from the Oklahoma 

Medical Marijuana Authority will not be in violation if this Article, provided 

the person does not legally possess: 

a. More than three (3) ounces of marijuana on their person; 

b. More than six (6) mature marijuana plants; 

c. More than six (6) seedling plants;  

d. More than one (1) ounce of concentrated marijuana;  

e. More than seventy-two (72) ounces of edible marijuana; and 

f. More than to eight (8) ounces of marijuana in their residence. 

2. The exception and restrictions of (b)(1) shall apply to an authorized parent 

of a license holder under 18 years of age or caregiver of an adult, who pre-

sents a valid, unexpired, license from the Oklahoma Medical Marijuana Au-

thority.   

3. Any person who does not present a valid, unexpired, license from the Okla-

homa Medical Marijuana Authority, and is convicted after trial, pleads guilty, 

or enters a plea of nolo contendere for possessing up to one and a half (1.5) 

ounces of marijuana and also claims a medical condition, shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor, and shall be punished by a separate fine in accordance with sec-

tion 1-15 of this Code, plus costs, and such punishment may be run consecu-

tively for each separate offense.   

4. Any person to whom the previous exceptions do not apply, who, upon con-

viction of possession of marijuana, pleads guilty or enters a plea of nolo con-

tendere, shall be liable in accordance with section 1-15 of this Code, plus 

costs, or by both fine and imprisonment, and such punishment may be run 

consecutively for each separate offense.   

 

5. Any persons or entities who are convicted because they do not possess a 

valid, unexpired, license from the Oklahoma Medical Marijuana Authority to 

dispense, grow, process, or transport marijuana shall be liable under subsec-
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tion (a), in accordance with section 1-15 of this Code, plus costs, or by both 

fine and imprisonment, and such punishment may be run consecutively for 

each separate offense.   

 

SECTION 3.  REPEALER.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are here-
by repealed. 

 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, sentence, clause or portion of this ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining por-
tions of the ordinance. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, 
on the _____day of _________, 2019. 

 

THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHO-
MA 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED as to form and legality this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

_______________________________________ 

HEATHER POOLE, City Attorney  
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ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 3121, 

CHAPTER 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, SECTION 1-15 AND MUNICIPAL CODE 3005, 

CHAPTER 28, OFFENSES—MISCELLANEOUS, ARTICLE VIII, DANGEROUS 

DRUGS, SECTION 28-133; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA: 

 

ORDINANCE 

 

SECTION 1. The Midwest City Municipal Code 3121, Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 
1-15 is hereby amended to read as follows:   

Sec. 1-15. - Specific penalty for violations of Code.  

The following table is adopted with regard to specific violations of this Code, including the maximum 

fine and imprisonment for each specific offense noted:  

Chapter Section  Maximum Fine  Imprisonment  

5 5-42(b)  $200.00  10 days  

 

5-51  1,000.00  60 days  

 

5-90  200.00  

 

 

5-90.1(a)  1,000.00  90 days  

 

5-91  200.00  

 

24 24-81(a)  300.00  30 days  

 

24-81(b)  200.00  

 

 

24-83  600.00  60 days  

 

24-84  300.00  

 

 

24-88  800.00  60 days  
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24-88.1  600.00  60 days  

 

24-88.2(c)(1)  800.00  60 days  

 

24-88.2(c)(2)  200.00  

 

 

24-89  300.00  30 days  

 

24-90  600.00  60 days  

 

24-143  200.00  

 

 

24-145  300.00  30 days  

28 28-8  800.00  60 days  

 

28-9  800.00  60 days  

 

28-25  100.00  30 days  

 

28-40  300.00  30 days  

 

28-41  750.00  60 days  

 

28-43  600.00  60 days  

 

28-54  300.00  30 days  

 

28-57  600.00  60 days  

 

28-57.1  600.00  60 days  

 

28-58  450.00  30 days  

 

28-60  450.00  30 days  

 

28-61  450.00  30 days  

 

28-62  450.00  30 days  



  1 

  2 

  3 

  4 

  5 

  6 

  7 

  8 

  9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

 

 3 

 

28-75  600.00  60 days  

 

28-86  750.00  60 days  

 

28-86.1  750.00  60 days  

 

28-90  750.00  60 days  

 

28-90.1  600.00  60 days  

 

28-104  750.00  60 days  

 

28-122  500.00  30 days  

 

28-123  500.00  30 days  

 

28-124  750.00  60 days  

 

28-125  300.00  30 days  

 

28-127  500.00  60 days  

 

28-128  800.00  60 days  

 

28-133(a)  800.00  60 days  

 

28-133(b)(3) 

 

First and Second Offenses 

 

Third and Subsequent Offenses 

 

 

100.00 

 

400.00 

 

 

 

 

28-133 (b)(4)  

 

First and Second Offenses 

 

Third and Subsequent Offenses 

 

 

100.00 

 

800.00 

 

10 days 

 

60 days 

  

SECTION 2. The Midwest City Municipal Code 3005, Chapter 28, Offenses—Miscellaneous, 
Article VIII, Dangerous Drugs, Section 28-133 is hereby amended to read as follows:   
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Sec. 28-133. - Penalty.  

(a) Any person who violates any provision of this article shall,  upon conviction, and 

is convicted after trial, pleads of guilty, or enters a plea of nolo contendere, shall be 

punished by a fine or imprisonment in accordance with section 1-15 of this Code, 

plus costs, or by both such fine and imprisonment, and such punishment may be run 

consecutively for each separate offense. 

(b) Exceptions: 

1. Any person who presents a valid, unexpired, license from the Oklahoma 

Medical Marijuana Authority will not be in violation if this Article, provided 

the person does not legally possess: 

a. More than three (3) ounces of marijuana on their person; 

b. More than six (6) mature marijuana plants; 

c. More than six (6) seedling plants;  

d. More than one (1) ounce of concentrated marijuana;  

e. More than seventy-two (72) ounces of edible marijuana; and 

f. More than to eight (8) ounces of marijuana in their residence. 

2. The exception and restrictions of (b)(1) shall apply to an authorized parent 

of a license holder under 18 years of age or caregiver of an adult, who pre-

sents a valid, unexpired, license from the Oklahoma Medical Marijuana Au-

thority.   

3. Any person who does not present a valid, unexpired, license from the Okla-

homa Medical Marijuana Authority, and is convicted after trial, pleads guilty, 

or enters a plea of nolo contendere for possessing up to one and a half (1.5) 

ounces of marijuana and also claims a medical condition, shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor, and shall be punished by a separate fine in accordance with sec-

tion 1-15 of this Code, plus costs, and such punishment may be run consecu-

tively for each separate offense.   

4. Any person to whom the previous exceptions do not apply, who, upon con-

viction of possession of marijuana, pleads guilty or enters a plea of nolo con-

tendere, shall be liable in accordance with section 1-15 of this Code, plus 

costs, or by both fine and imprisonment, and such punishment may be run 

consecutively for each separate offense.   

 

5. Any persons or entities who are convicted because they do not possess a 

valid, unexpired, license from the Oklahoma Medical Marijuana Authority to 

dispense, grow, process, or transport marijuana shall be liable under subsec-
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tion (a), in accordance with section 1-15 of this Code, plus costs, or by both 

fine and imprisonment, and such punishment may be run consecutively for 

each separate offense.   

SECTION 3.  REPEALER.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are here-
by repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, sentence, clause or portion of this ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining por-
tions of the ordinance. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, 
on the _____day of _________, 2019. 

THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHO-
MA 

_______________________________________ 

MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk 

APPROVED as to form and legality this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

_______________________________________ 

HEATHER POOLE, City Attorney  



 

 

      

 
NEW BUSINESS/                    

PUBLIC DISCUSSION 



MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 

The 6:00 PM meetings will be shown live on Channel 20. 

The recorded video will be available on Youtube and the City’s website within 48 hours at 

www.youtube@midwestcityok.org.  

The meeting minutes and video can be found on the City’s website in the Agenda Center: 

https://midwestcityok.org/AgendaCenter. 

To make a special assistance request, call 739-1215 or email pmenefee@midwestcityok.org 

no less than 24 hours prior to the start of a meeting. If special assistance is needed during a 

meeting, call 739-1388. 

mailto:pmenefee@midwestcityok.org


 

MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AGENDA 
City Hall - Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

 

January 08, 2019 - 6:01 PM 

 

A.      CALL TO ORDER. 

B.      CONSENT AGENDA.  These items are placed on the Consent Agenda so that Trustees, by unanimous consent,  

can approve routine agenda items by one motion. If any item proposed does not meet with approval of all Trustees, or 

members of the audience wish to discuss an item, it will be removed and heard in regular order. 

 
1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular 

meeting of December 11, 2018 as submitted. (City Clerk - S. Hancock)   

2. Discussion and consideration of accepting the report on the current financial condition of the 

Sheraton Midwest City Hotel at the Reed Center for the period ending November 30th, 2018. 

(City Manager - T. Lyon) 

 
3. Discussion and consideration of rejecting all bids for the one hundred fifty (150) LED 

Hospitality Televisions with Pro Idiom Technology for the Midwest City Sheraton Hotel. (City 

Manager - T. Lyon)  

 
C.      NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. The purpose of the "Public Discussion Section" of the Agenda is  

for members of the public to speak to the Authority on any Subject not scheduled on the Regular Agenda. The 

Authority shall make no decision or take any action, except to direct the City Manager to take action, or to schedule 

the matter for discussion at a later date. Pursuant to the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, the Authority will not engage in 

any discussion on the matter until that matter has been placed on an agenda for discussion. THOSE ADDRESSING 

THE AUTHORITY ARE REQUESTED TO STATE THEIR NAME AND ADDRESS PRIOR TO SPEAKING TO 

THE AUTHORITY. 
 

D.      ADJOURNMENT. 

  



 

 

      

 CONSENT AGENDA 



A notice for staff briefings of the Midwest City Municipal Authority was filed for the calendar year with 

the City Clerk of Midwest City. Public notice of this agenda was accessible at least 24 hours before this 

meeting at City Hall and on the Midwest City website (www.midwestcityok.org). 

Midwest City Municipal Authority Staff Briefing Minutes 

December 11, 2018 – 6:00 PM 

This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Conference Room on the second 

floor of City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of 

Oklahoma.  

Chairman Matthew Dukes called the meeting to order at 6:12 PM with the following members 

present: Trustees Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Españiola Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff 

Moore; and Secretary Sara Hancock. Absent: none. 

Discussion. 

Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or additional information 

for items on the Municipal Authority agenda for December 11, 2018. The Trustees had no 

questions regarding the agenda. 

Chairman Dukes adjourned the meeting at 6:13 PM. 

_______________________________________ 

ATTEST: MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Chairman 

__________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 



A notice for the regular Midwest City Municipal Authority was filed for the calendar year with the City Clerk of 

Midwest City. Public notice of this agenda was accessible at least 24 hours before this meeting at City Hall and on 

the Midwest City website (www.midwestcityok.org). 
 

Midwest City Municipal Authority Minutes 

 

December 11, 2018 – 7:01 PM 

 

This meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chamber in City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, 

Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma. Chairman Matt Dukes called the meeting to 

order at 7:37 PM with the following members present: Trustees *Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Españiola 

Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; and Secretary Sara Hancock. Absent: none. 

 

Consent Agenda.  Eads made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, as submitted, seconded by 

Bowen. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. 

Absent: none. Motion carried. 

  

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular meeting 

of November 27, 2018 as submitted. 

 

2. Discussion and consideration of accepting the report on the current financial condition of the 

Sheraton Midwest City Hotel at the Reed Center for the period ending October 31, 2018.  

 

NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. There was no new business or public discussion. 

 

At 7:38 PM, Allen made a motion to recess the meeting, seconded by Byrne. 

 

At 7:41 PM, Reed made a motion to return to the meeting and enter into executive session, seconded by 

Allen. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: 

none. Motion carried. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION.  

 

1. Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session as allowed under 25 O.S., § 

307(B)(3) for the purpose of discussing the purchase or appraisal of real property; and 2) in open 

session, authorizing the city manager to take action as appropriate based on the discussion in 

executive session. 

 

*At 8:22 PM, Eads left the meeting.  

 

At 8:45 PM, Reed made a motion to return to open session and authorize the city manager to proceed as 

discussed in executive session, seconded by Bowen. Voting aye: Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, 

and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: Eads. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT.  There being no further business, Chairman Dukes closed the meeting at 8:46 PM. 

 

ATTEST:            

      ______________________________________ 

                MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Chairman  

________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 



    THE CITY OF 

 MIDWEST CITY 
 

 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Honorable Chairman and Trustees 

  Midwest City Municipal Authority 

 

FROM: Tim Lyon, Assistant City Manager  

 

DATE:  January 8, 2019 

 

RE: Discussion and consideration of accepting the report on the current financial 

condition of the Sheraton Midwest City Hotel at the Reed Center for the period 

ending November 30th, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

This item is on the agenda at the request of the Authority.  Attached to this memorandum is 

information concerning the status of the Sheraton Midwest City Hotel at the Reed Center. 

 

Any time you have a question concerning the conference center and hotel, please feel free to contact 

me at 739-1201. 

 

 

Tim L. Lyon 
____________________________________ 

Tim Lyon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

Attachment (1)  

 

 
 



SHERATON MIDWEST CITY HOTEL AT THE REED CENTER

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

Revenue

Budgeted (MTD) 341,442 447,668 431,838 532,961 405,584          

Actual (MTD) 384,934 454,587 328,389 590,459 430,083          

Budgeted (YTD) 341,442 789,110 1,220,948 1,753,909 2,159,493       

Actual (YTD) 384,934 839,521 1,167,910 1,758,369 2,188,452       

Expenses

Budgeted (MTD) 418,478 449,923 421,755 478,040 410,232          

Actual (MTD) 418,401 431,481 383,381 506,459 399,967          

Budgeted (YTD) 418,478 863,401 1,285,156 1,763,196 2,173,428       

Actual (YTD) 418,401 849,882 1,233,263 1,739,721 2,139,688       

Revenue vs. Expenses

Budgeted (MTD) (77,036) 2,745 10,083 54,921 (4,648)             

Actual (MTD) (33,467) 23,106 (54,992) 84,000 30,117            

Budgeted (YTD) (77,036) (74,291) (64,208) (9,287) (13,935)           

Actual (YTD) (33,467) (10,361) (65,353) 18,648 48,764            

Key Indicators

Hotel Room Revenue 243,661 218,190 192,145 252,000 200,126          

Food and Banquet Revenue 114,062 191,794 115,059 291,647 183,751          

Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Revenue

Budgeted (MTD) 345,872 508,778 430,804 639,312 424,595          308,205           303,680           379,330           547,825           516,519           495,730           425,810           

Actual (MTD) 324,600 469,661 409,957 620,373 440,973          298,992           237,909           395,947           529,803           530,409           402,933           502,338           

Budgeted (YTD) 372,126 854,650 1,285,454 1,924,766 2,349,361       2,657,566        2,961,246        3,340,576        3,888,401        4,404,920        4,900,650        5,326,460        

Actual (YTD) 324,600 794,261 1,204,218 1,824,592 2,265,564       2,564,556        2,802,465        3,198,412        3,728,215        4,258,624        4,661,557        5,163,895        

Expenses

Budgeted (MTD) 345,872 474,833 419,305 526,754 414,341          383,878           389,188           392,180           494,172           482,514           455,507           418,995           

Actual (MTD) 398,222 466,528 391,915 410,925 430,597          434,233           326,576           366,587           482,215           465,386           418,445           482,536           

Budgeted (YTD) 345,126 846,959 1,266,264 1,793,018 2,207,359       2,591,237        2,980,425        3,372,605        3,866,777        4,349,291        4,804,798        5,223,793        

Actual (YTD) 398,222 864,750 1,256,665 1,667,591 2,098,188       2,532,421        2,858,997        3,225,584        3,707,800        4,173,185        4,591,630        5,074,166        

Revenue vs. Expenses

Budgeted (MTD) (26,254) 33,945 11,499 112,558 10,254            (75,373)           (85,508)           (12,850)           53,653             34,005             40,223             6,815               

Actual (MTD) (73,622) 3,133 18,042 209,448 10,375            (135,242)         (88,666)           29,360             47,587             65,023             (15,512)            19,802             

Budgeted (YTD) (26,254) 7,691 19,190 131,748 142,002          66,329             (19,179)           (32,029)           21,624             55,629             95,852             102,667           

Actual (YTD) (73,622) (70,489) (52,447) 157,001 167,376          32,134             (56,532)           (27,172)           20,415             85,439             69,926             89,729             

12/21/2018



    THE CITY OF 

 MIDWEST CITY 
 

 

 
 
 
To: Honorable Chairman and Trustees  

 Midwest City Municipal Authority   

 

From: Tim Lyon, Assistant City Manager    

 

Date: January 8, 2019  

 

Subject: Discussion and consideration of rejecting all bids for the one hundred fifty (150) LED 

Hospitality Televisions with Pro Idiom Technology for the Midwest City Sheraton 

Hotel. 

 

  
 

On Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Midwest City Municipal Authority 

opened bids for the purchase of One hundred fifty (150) or more New LED Hospitality 

Televisions with Pro Idiom Technology. Six (6) companies submitted bids. The request to reject 

all bids is due to the original specifications inadvertently requesting technology, Pro Idiom 

specifically, that is unnecessary and very costly. The mistake was not realized until after the bid 

opening. The City will make changes to the bid specifications to correct the mistake and re-bid 

for the purchase One hundred fifty (150) or more new televisions at a later date.    

 

Staff recommends rejecting all bids. 

  

Attached is the bid tabulation for the project.   

 

If you have any questions, please give me a call at 739-1201. 

 

Tim L. Lyon 
_______________________________ 

Tim L. Lyon, Assistant City Manager 

 

 

Attachment 



Bid Tabulation: 150 or more LED Hospitality TVs

screen brand model cost each quantity total option 1 option 2 option 3 option 4 option 5a option 5b

ACCEPTABLE BIDS

Commercial Sales & Services, Inc. 55 (LG) 55LV560H $663.00 150 $99,450.00 $35.00 $0.00 $2,900.00 $0.00 $10.00 $35.00

Commercial Sales & Services, Inc. 55 (Samsung) HG55NJ678UFXZA $679.00 150 $101,850.00 $35.00 $0.00 $2,900.00 $0.00 $10.00 $35.00

Knitec, Inc. 49 (Samsung) HG49NJ477MFXZA $399.00 150 $59,850.00 $59.00 $0.00 $4,900.00 $0.00 $5.00 $20.00

Knitec, Inc. 55 (Samsung) HG55NJ477BFXZA $589.00 150 $88,350.00 $59.00 $0.00 $4,900.00 $0.00 $5.00 $20.00

RCA Commercial Electronics 55 (RCA) J55LV842 $540.00 150 $81,000.00 $35.00 $0.00 $2,900.00 $0.00 $10.00 $35.00

BIDS WITHOUT TRADE-IN 

Troxell Communications 3 49 (Samsung) HG49NJ477MFX $398.95 150 $59,842.50 $128.12 $143.61 $1,035.00 $0.00 TBD TBD

Troxell Communications 4 55 (Samsung) HG55NJ678UFXZA $661.05 150 $99,157.50 $128.12 $143.61 $1,035.00 $0.00 TBD TBD

INCOMPLETE BIDS

SHI International Corp 49 (LG) 49LV560H $459.30 150 $68,895.00 $121.80 NB NB NB NB NB

SHI International Corp 55 (LG) 55LV560H $671.20 150 $100,680.00 $121.80 NB NB NB NB NB

Troxell Communications 1 49 (LG) 49LV560H $476.84 150 $71,526.00 $128.12 NB NB NB NB NB

Troxell Communications 2 55 (LG) 55LV560H $696.84 150 $104,526.00 $128.12 NB NB NB NB NB

Lodging Kit Company 55 (Samsung) $747.55 $849.64 150 $127,446.00 NB $15,313.72 NB $0.00 $0.00

Lodging Kit Company 49 (Samsung) $450.98 150 $67,647.00 NB $15,314.72 NB $0.00 $0.00

OPTION 1 Television installation

OPTION 2 Remote management appliance

OPITON 3 Remote management appliance installation

OPTION 4 Training

OPTION 5a Trade-in allowance 32"

OPTION 5b Trade-in allowance 42"

BIDDER CONTACT INFORMATION

Commercial Sales & Services, Inc., John Gomez, (972) 247-3906

Knitec, Inc., Jeff Jacobs, (949) 481-9372

Lodging Kit Company / Almo Corp., James Coombs,  (800) 345-2566

RCA Commercial Electronics, Scott Adams, (423) 293-0824

SHI International Corp., Sunni Groom, (405) 531-7962

Troxell Communications, Cody Faas, (405) 323-7526



 

 

      

 
NEW BUSINESS/                    

PUBLIC DISCUSSION 



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY AGENDA 

The 6:00 PM meetings will be shown live on Channel 20. 

The recorded video will be available on Youtube and the City’s website within 48 hours 

at www.youtube@midwestcityok.org.  

The meeting minutes and video can be found on the City’s website in the Agenda Center: 

https://midwestcityok.org/AgendaCenter. 

To make a special assistance request, call 739-1215 or email 

pmenefee@midwestcityok.org no less than 24 hours prior to the start of a meeting. If 

special assistance is needed during a meeting, call 739-1388. 

mailto:pmenefee@midwestcityok.org


MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AUTHORITY AGENDA 

City Hall - Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

January 08, 2019 - 6:02 PM 

A. CALL TO ORDER.

B. CONSENT AGENDA. These items are placed on the Consent Agenda so that the Trustees, by unanimous 
consent, can approve routine agenda items by one motion. If any item proposed does not meet with approval of all 
Trustees, or members of the audience wish to discuss an item, it will be removed and heard in regular order.

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing, and regular 
meeting of December 11, 2018, as submitted. (City Clerk - S. Hancock)

2. Discussion and Consideration of Approving the Fifth Amendment to the Sooner Rose Phase II

- Theatre Development Financing Assistance Agreement with MWC Warren Theatre, Inc.

(Economic Development - R. Coleman)

C. DISCUSSION ITEM.

1. Discussion and consideration of action to reallocate assets, change fund managers or make 
changes in the Statement of Investment Policy, Guidelines and Objectives. (City Manager - G. 
Henson)

D. NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. The purpose of the "Public Discussion Section" of the Agenda is 
for members of the public to speak to the Authority on any Subject not scheduled on the Regular Agenda. The 
Authority shall make no decision or take any action, except to direct the City Manager to take action, or to schedule the 

matter for discussion at a later date. Pursuant to the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, the Authority will not engage in any 

discussion on the matter until that matter has been placed on an agenda for discussion. THOSE ADDRESSING THE 

AUTHORITY ARE REQUESTED TO STATE THEIR NAME AND ADDRESS PRIOR TO SPEAKING TO THE 

AUTHORITY.

E. EXECUTIVE SESSION.

1. Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 O.S. § 
307(C)(10), to confer on matters pertaining to economic development, including the transfer 
of property, financing or the creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate 
within the City; and 2) in open session, authorizing the city manager to take action as 
appropriate based on the discussion in executive session. (City Manager - G. Henson)

F. ADJOURNMENT.



 

 

      

 CONSENT AGENDA 



A notice for staff briefings of the Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority was filed for the calendar 

year with the City Clerk of Midwest City. Public notice of this agenda was accessible at least 24 hours 

before this meeting at City Hall and on the Midwest City website (www.midwestcityok.org). 

 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority Staff Briefing Minutes  

 

December 11, 2018 – 6:00 PM 

 

This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Conference Room on the second 

floor of City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of 

Oklahoma.  

 

Chairman Matthew Dukes called the meeting to order at 6:13 PM with the following members 

present: Trustees Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Españiola Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff 

Moore; and Secretary Sara Hancock. Absent: none. 

 

Discussion. 

 

Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or additional information 

for items on the Hospital Authority agenda for December 11, 2018. J.R. Reskovac with 

Capitol Decisions, Inc. spoke with the Council. Staff and the Trustees discussed individual 

agenda items. 

 

Chairman Dukes adjourned the meeting at 6:24 PM. 

 

  

 _______________________________________ 

ATTEST: MATTHEW D. Dukes II, Chairman 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 

 



A notice for the regular Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority was filed for the calendar year with 

the City Clerk of Midwest City. Public notice of this agenda was accessible at least 24 hours before this 

meeting at City Hall and on the Midwest City website (www.midwestcityok.org). 

 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority Minutes 
 

December 11, 2018 – 7:02 pm 

 
This meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chambers at City Hall, 100 North Midwest 

Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma.  

 

Chairman Matt Dukes called the meeting to order at 7:38 PM with the following members 

present: Trustees *Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Españiola Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff 

Moore; and Secretary Sara Hancock. Absent: none. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA. Bowen made a motion to approve the minutes, as submitted, seconded by 

Allen. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. 

Absent: none. Motion carried. 

 

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing, and regular 

meeting of November 27, 2018, as submitted. 
 

2. Discussion and consideration of approving the use of $75,000 from the Hospital 

Authority In Lieu/ROR/Misc 9060, capital outlay budget to fund the local match of 

$75,000 for Phase II of the SCIP Recreational Trail. 

 

3. Discussion and consideration of approving the following agreement with Capitol 

Decisions, Inc. in the total amount of $60,000 to continue to provide consultant services 

regarding economic, community development and redevelopment interests in Midwest 

City for the period from January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEM. 
 

1. Discussion and consideration of action to reallocate assets, change fund managers or 

make changes in the Statement of Investment Policy, Guidelines and Objectives. No 

action needed.  

NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION.  
 
There was no new business or public discussion. 
 
At 7:40 PM, Reed made a motion to recess, seconded by Bowen. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, 
Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. Motion carried.  
 
At 8:46 PM, Allen made a motion to return to the meeting and enter into executive session, 
seconded by Bowen. Voting aye: Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. 
Nay: none. Absent: Eads. Motion carried.
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EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

1. Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 O.S. 

§ 307(C)(10), to confer on matters pertaining to economic development, including the 

transfer of property, financing or the creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or 

to locate within the City, and 2) in open session, authorizing the general manager/ 

administrator to take action as appropriate based on the discussion in executive session. 

 

At 9:16 PM, Byrne made a motion to return to open session, seconded by Allen. Voting aye: 

Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: Eads. Motion 

carried. 

 

Reed made a motion to authorize the city manager to proceed as directed in executive session, 

seconded by Byrne. Voting aye: Byrne, Bowen, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: 

none. Absent: Eads. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT.   

There being no further business, Chairman Dukes adjourned the meeting at 9:16 PM. 

 

ATTEST:     

                            ___________________________________ 

       MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Chairman 

 

______________________________________ 

SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 



J. Guy Henson, General Manager/Administrator 

Trustees: Matthew D. Dukes II, Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Espaniola Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore 

 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 

100 North Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 

Office (405) 739-1207/Fax (405) 739-1208 

www.midwestcityok.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:   Honorable Chairman and Trustees 

 

From:   Robert Coleman / Director of Economic Development 

 

Date:     January 8, 2019 

 

Subject:  Discussion and consideration of approving the Fifth Amendment to the Sooner Rose Phase II – 

Theatre Development Financing Assistance Agreement with MWC Warren Theatre, Inc.  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
     In August 2017, the Authority contracted with Enerfin Gathering (“Enerfin”) to relocate a decades old pipeline 

that diagonally cut across the property where the Warren Theatre was planned. The Authority’s contract engineer, 

Terry Haynes of SMC Consulting, provided plans to Enerfin that called for the pipe to be moved to a new 

easement near the Buena Vista Avenue right-of-way. It was supposed to be buried a minimum of three (3) feet 

below finished grade.  Enerfin completed the work about two months later and the Authority promptly paid the 

$125,000 invoice. 

 

   Key (“Key”) Construction Company working on behalf of Warren Theatres, on July 30, 2018, discovered the 

pipeline was buried too shallow as it was excavating dirt and preparing the parking lot base. Key brought the 

problem to the attention of Mr. Haynes and the Authority. Enerfin was contacted shortly thereafter and agreed to 

dispatch the contractor, Allred Construction Company, to correct the error. 

 

   Allred arrived onsite on or about September 1, 2018 and began excavating a trench approximately 8’ – 10’ wide 

the length of the existing pipeline. After repositioning the pipe, Allred began back filling in the trench with the 

same soil it had removed. Key Project Foreman Rick Coleman expressed concerns that Allred was not taking any 

measures to properly irrigate or compact the soil. Enerfin refused to absorb the additional expense to compact the 

backfill. 

 

     A series of heavy rainfalls inhibited Key’s efforts to complete the parking lot. When Key was finally able to 

work again, there were several areas over the trench that appeared to be unstable. Key hired a geotechnical 

engineering firm to conduct a very limited compaction test.  The test taken near the main Warren Theatre 

driveway near Buena Vista Avenue failed. 

 

   Key and Warren Theatre then approached the Authority about the problem.  Key refused to perform base 

stabilization or to pave over the trench line until it was properly compacted. The Authority enlisted the help of 

EST Engineering to conduct more thorough testing. EST found that compaction was lacking the entire length of 

the trench. 

 

     The City Attorney’s Office on December 14, 2018 transmitted a letter via FedEx to CEO David C. Cremer 

requesting his involvement in the matter, hoping he would be willing to authorize the work Enerfin’s local field 

office had rejected. He was given a December 20th deadline by which to respond.   

 

     Enerfin did not respond. 
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     We then transmitted a second letter demanding that Enerfin properly reconstruct the trench on or before 

January 8, 2019. No one has responded to this letter. Something must be done now or the Theatre’s opening could 

be setback even further.   

 

     This latest Amendment empowers the Authority to contract directly with Warren Theatres to subcontract the 

excavation, backfill, stabilization and testing of the trench at a total estimated cost of $24,000. We will then bill 

Enerfin directly for the work. 

     

    Staff recommends approval of this 5th Amendment. 

Please contact my office at (405) 739-1218 with any question. 

 
________________________________ 
ROBERT COLEMAN 

Director of Economic Development 

 

Attachments:   Proposed 5th Amendment 

   Original Pipeline Reconstruction Plan 

 



#645397 12/28/18 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA 
SOONER ROSE PHASE II – THEATRE  

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT  
FINANCING ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA 
 
 THIS SOONER ROSE PHASE II – THEATRE FIFTH AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT FINANCING 
ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT (this “Fifth Amendment”) is entered into as of the 8th day of January, 2019 
(the “Effective Date”), by and between the Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority, an Oklahoma 
public trust (the “Authority”), and MWC Warren Theatre, Inc., a Kansas corporation (“Warren”).   
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority, the City of Midwest City and Warren entered into that certain Sooner 
Rose II – Theatre Development Financing Assistance Agreement, dated April 24, 2017 (the “Original 
Theatre DFAA”), as amended by the Sooner Rose Phase II - Theatre First Amendment to Development 
Financing Assistance Agreement, dated July 25, 2017; and the Second Amendment to the Development 
Financing Assistance Agreement dated September 26, 2017; and the Third Amendment to the 
Development Financing Assistance Agreement dated October 24, 2017; and the Fourth Amendment to 
the Development Financing Assistance Agreement dated December 12, 2017 (collectively, the “Theatre 
DFAA”); all associated with the redevelopment and gentrification of an approximate 16.6-acre parcel of 
property located in the northwest quadrant of the intersection of Southeast 15th Street and Buena Vista 
Avenue, defined as the “Theatre Property” in the Original Theatre DFAA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority and Warren desire to amend the Theatre DFAA as set forth herein.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:  
 

1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated by 
reference.  

2. Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Fifth Amendment shall have the same meaning as 
provided in the Theatre DFAA unless otherwise expressly provided in this Fifth Amendment.  

3. 4.4.1.1 Warren’s Obligation. Warren agrees to contract with Key Construction, Inc. to remove, 
replace and compact the soil covering the Gas Line on Lot 1, Sooner Rose Warren Theatre 
Addition as described on Attachment A and to contract with EST, Inc. for performance of testing 
services as described on Attachment B. Such contract shall require the work and testing to be 
performed in accordance with EST Engineering’s November 16, 2018 recommendation 
(Attachment B).  Warren shall submit to the Authority a detailed invoice along with all test 
results to the Authority within two (2) weeks of the completion of the work, or as soon as 
reasonably possible thereafter.   

4. 7.1.1 Construction Contribution. In addition to other commitments outlined in the Theatre 
DFAA, within thirty (30) days of receiving the described invoice, the Authority shall pay to 
Warren the actual cost of excavating, backfilling, compacting and testing the Gas Line trench as 
described in the EST Engineering Report (dated November 16, 2018 and Attached as Attachment 
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B) in an amount not to exceed $24,000 (Twenty-Four Thousand Dollars and No Cents) without 
prior written approval by the Authority in advance of incurring additional expenses, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld provided the request for any additional expense is 
based on good engineering practices.   

5. No Further Amendments. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Theatre DFAA shall remain 
in full force and effect.  

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth Amendment as of the 

Effective Date. 

Approved and agreed to by the Authority on the Effective Date. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Secretary 
 

MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY, an Oklahoma public trust 

 
 

 
 
_____________________________, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form and legality on the Effective 
Date. 
 
 
________________________________ 
General Counsel for the Authority 
 

Approved and agreed to by Warren on the Effective Date. 
 
 MWC WARREN THEATRE, INC., a Kansas 

corporation 
 
 
___________________________________  
William J. Warren, President 
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“Attachment A” 
Work Location 
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“Attachment B” 
Recommendations from EST Engineering 
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DISCUSSION ITEM  



J. Guy Henson, General Manager/Administrator
Trustees: Matthew D. Dukes II, Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Españiola Bowen, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
100 North Midwest Boulevard 
Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 
Office (405) 739-1207/Fax (405) 739-1208 
www.midwestcityok.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Date:  

Subject: 

Honorable Chairman and Trustees 

Sara Hancock, Secretary 

January 08, 2019 

Discussion and consideration of action to reallocate assets, change fund managers 
or make changes in the Statement of Investment Policy, Guidelines and Objectives.  

Jim Garrels, President, Fiduciary Capital Advisors, asked staff to put this item on each agenda in the 
event the Hospital Authority’s investments need to be reallocated, an investment fund manager needs to 
be changed or changes need to be made to the Statement of Investment Policy on short notice. 

Action is at the discretion of the Authority. 

__________________ 
Sara Hancock, Secretary 



 

 

      

 
NEW BUSINESS/                    

PUBLIC DISCUSSION 



 

 

      

 EXECUTIVE SESSION 



J. Guy Henson, General Manager/Administrator 

Trustees: Matthew D. Dukes II, Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
100 North Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 

Office (405) 739-1207/Fax (405) 739-1208 

www.midwestcityok.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:   Honorable Chairman and Trustees 

 

From:   Guy Henson, General Manager/Administrator 

 

Date:     January 8, 2018 

 

Subject:  Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 

O.S. § 307(C)(10), to confer on matters pertaining to economic development, including 

the transfer of property, financing or the creation of a proposal to entice a business to 

remain or to locate within the City; and 2) in open session, authorizing the city manager 

to take action as appropriate based on the discussion in executive session. 

 

 

Appropriate information will be provided in executive session. 

 

 

 
 J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
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